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Independent Auditors Report

To the Shareholders of

Bank of Jordan

Public Shareholding Company

Amman — The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bank of Jordan and its subsidiaries “The Bank”
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 2020, and the consolidated
statements of profit or loss, comprehensive income, changes in owner’s equity and cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Bank as of December 31, 2020 and its consolidated financial position
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the Central Bank of Jordan.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
international independence standers) together with the other ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the Bank’s consolidated financial statements in Jordan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
for current year consolidated financial statements. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters:
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Adequacy of Expected Credit Loss Provision against Direct Credit Facilities

Key Audit Matters description

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

Credit facilities are considered important assets of the
Bank. The nature and characteristics of credit facilities
granted to customers vary from sector to sector and
from country to country due to the nature of the Bank's
geographical spread. Therefore, the methodology for
calculating the expected credit loss provision against
direct credit facilities is different due to sectors
differences and different risk assessment related to
these countries and their legal and organizational
requirements.

The calculation and accuracy of expected credit losses
requires the Bank's management to make assumptions
and definitions, including "probability of default”,
"significant increase in credit risk"...etc. It also
requires the use of estimates on the classification of
direct credit facilities on different stages and the
adequacy of the collaterals then the suspension of
interest in the event of default in accordance with the
instructions of the regolatory anthorities, such matters
makes expected credit loss provision against direct
credit facilities a key audit matter.

Net credit facilities granted by the Bank to customers
amounted to JD 1,467 million, which represent 54% of
the total assets as of December 31, 2020 (JD 1,410
million, which represent 52% of the total assets as of
December 31, 2019). The expected credit loss
provision against direct and indirect facilities
amounted to JD 151 million as of December 31, 2020
(JD 122 million as of December 31, 2019).

The audit procedures performed included a review and
understanding of the nature of credit facilities
portfolio, evaluating the Bank’s credit policy, internal
control system adopted in granting and monitoring
credit and evaluating the extent to which they comply
with the requirements of IFRS and comparing the
results with the instructions of the regulatory
authorities.

We completed our understanding of the Bank's
methodology for caleulating expected credit losses by
using experts where appropriate and assessing the
expected credit loss model, which includes the
following:

- Review of the methodology used by the Bank to
calculate the expected credit losses and its
conformity with the requirements of IFRS (9).

- Review of the expected credit loss methodology
preparation at the model’s level.

- Credit exposures stages classification of and their
reasonableness and determining the significant
increase in credit risk

- Review the validity and accuracy of the model used
in the calculation process and its components
{Probability of Default (PD), Loss Given Default
{LGD), Exposure to Defauit (EAD) and effective
interest rate and related accruals).

- Review the assumptions used for the forward looking
and macroeconomic factors

- Review of the of expected credit loss calculations.

- Review of the completeness of infonmation used in
the calculation of expected credit losses and review
of the related maker-checker process and it’s related
supporting documentation.

- We have compared the expected credit losses

provision calculated according to the International
Financial Reporting Standard No. (9} as adopted by
Central Bank Jordan with the expected credit loss
provision calculated in accordance with the
instructions of Central Bank of Jordan No. (47/2009)
and that the group has recorded whichever is more
strict according to each stage.

- Review of the governance procedures related to the
expected credit loss calculations.
We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
related to the credit facilities and the expected credit
loss provision against credit facilities and related
risks in the accompanying notes.
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Foreion Currencv Translation Reserve / Investments in Foreign Subsidiaries

Key Audit Matters description

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

Due to the deployment of the Bank’s foreign
branches in several countries and the dealing
in various foreign currencies, the Bank may

The audit procedures included testing the internal control
system relating to the evaluation of Intemational
Accounting Standard No. 29 “Financial Reporting in

be exposed to fluctuation of exchange rates
risks arising from some of those countries’
prevailing conditions. Therefore, translating
the assets and liabilities of foreign branches
and subsidiaries from the local currency (the
functional currency) to Jordanian dinar is
significant to our audit. Moreover, the
exchange differences arising from evaluating
the net investment in foreign branches and
subsidiaries are shown within other
comprehensive income items.

Hyperinflationary Economies™ and the determination of
foreign currency exchange rates adopted by management.
In addition, the audit procedures included reviewing a
sample of foreign currency exchange rates adopted by
management and matching them with those set by the
Central Bank of Jordan, re-calculating a sample of the
differences arising from translating those currencies which
presented within other comprehensive income items and
obtaining the subsidiary’s financial statements, verifying
management’s exchange rates, and matching them with the
exchange rates of the Central Bank of Jordan.

Management is responsible for the other information. This comprises the other information in the annual report
excluding the consolidated financial statements and the independent anditor thereon, in which we expected to
be made available to us after the date of our andit report. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the

consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with International financial Reporting statement as adopted by Central Bank of Jordan, and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the Bank’s
effectiveness of the internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Bank to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements, We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards
procedures.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and regulations preclude
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Bank maintains proper accounting records duly organized and in line with the accompanying

consolidated financial statements. We recommend that the General Assembly of Shareholders approve these
consolidated financial statements.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are a translation version of the statutory consolidated
financial statements which are issued in the Arabic Language and to which reference should be made.

Kawasmy and Partners
KPMG

Hatem Kawasmy Amman — Jordan
License No. (656) February 10, 2021



BANK OF JORDAN
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

STATEMENT (A)

Assets

Cash and balances with central banks

Balances with banks and financial institutions

Deposits with banks and financial institutions

Financial derivatives

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income

Direct credit facilities at amortized cost
Financial assets at amortized cost
Property and equipment — Net
Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Owners® Equity
Liabilities:

Banks and financial institutions’ deposits
Customers’ deposits

Cash margins

Other provisions

Income tax provision

Deferred tax liabilities

Borrowed funds

Other liabilities

Total Liabilities

Owners’ Equity:

Equity Attributable to the Bank's shareholders
Paid-up capital

Statutory reserve

Voluntary reserve

General banking risks reserve

Special reserve

Foreign currency translation differences
Fair value reserve

Retained eamings

Total Equity Attributable to the Bank's Shareholders
Non-controlling interests

Total Owners’ Equity

Total Liabilities and OQwners’ Equity

Board of Director’s Chairman

NotE

41
10
11

12
13
14
15
21
16

17
13
19
20
21
21
22
23

24
25
25
25
25
26
27
28

DECEMBER 31,
2020 2019
JD JD

349,537,989 384,396,176
190,722,330 188,323,327
89,525,567 208,123,765
- 38,261
15,157,042 628,716
84,526,410 80,865,636
1,466,739,098 1,409,525 437
348,454,969 272,535,799
53,993,594 52,802,587
6,872,445 5,986,282
21,808,399 22,804,298
85,076,144 82,071,242
2,712,413,987 2,708,101,526
70,762,354 151,244,578
1,909,187,576 1,919,098,107
119,819,309 120,593,921
5,302,150 5,011,211
19,881,866 23,803,895
48,946 3,081,065
84,582,326 23,667,921
40,422,412 41,493,803
2,250,006,939 2,287,994,501
200,000,000 200,000,000
99,190,875 94.065,645
46,537 134,165
2,804,326 2,196,491
5,849,743 5,849,743
(12,855,521) {12,268,120)
(6,092,218) 24,954,157
165,814,735 99,400,640
454,758,477 414,332,721
7,648,571 5,774 304
462,407,048 420,107,025
2.712,413,987 2,708,101,526

Chief Executive Officer

‘The accompanying notes from (1) to (49) constitute an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements and should be read with them.



BANK OF JORDAN
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

STATEMENT (B)

Interest income

Less: Interest expense

Net Interest Income

Net — Commissions income

Net Interest and Commissions Income

Foreign currencies income

Gain (loss) from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash dividends from financial assets at fair value through
comprehensive income

(Gain from recognition of financial assets

Gain on sale of financial assets — Debt instruments

Other income

Total Income

Employees expenses

Depreciation and amortization

Other expenses

Financial assets expected credit loss expenses

(Recovered from) expense of assets foreclosed by the Bank provision

Other provisions

Total Expenses

Profit Before Income Tax

Less; Income tax expense

Profit for the Year Statements (C) and (D)

Attributable to:

Bank's Shareholders
Non-controlling Interests
Profit for the Year

Eamings per share for the year attributable to the Banks' shareholders

Basic/Diluted

For the Year Ended December 31,

Note 2020 2019
JD D

30 136,687,014 159,814,954
31 28.779.524 43,447,831
107,908,390 116,367,123
32 19,747,212 23,743,185
127,755,602 140,110,308
33 2,642,709 3,233,546
34 15,056,222 (15,230)
11 510,741 547,272
11 3,652,011 -
11,13 ] 191,679
35 3,865,275 5.336.976
153,482,560 149,404,551
36 30,980,308 33,497,668
14,15 9,254,938 8,726,851
37 28,881,388 26,492,603
38 31,868,913 18,629,356
16 (357,796) 429,848
20 781,231 498,064
101,408,982 88,274,390
52,073,578 61,130,161
21 16,606,516 20,752,116
35,467,062 40,378,045
35,794,598 40,163,256
(327.536) 214,789
35,467,062 40,378,045
39 0.179 0.201

The accompanying notes from (1) to (49) constitute an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements and should be read with them.

Board of Director’s Chairman

Chief Executive Officer




BANK OF JORDAN

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

STATEMENT (C)

Profit for the Year - Statement (B)

Other comprehensive income items:

Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to consolidated statement of profit or loss:

Change in fair value reserve of debt instruments classfied as financial assets at
fair value through comprehensive income

Foreign currencies translation differences

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to consolidated statement of profit or loss:

Gain from sale of financial assets at fair value through
comprehensive income - net after tax

Change in fair value reserve of equity instruments classfied as financial assets
at fair value through comprehensive income - net of tax

Total Consolidated Comprehensive Income-Statement (D)

Total Consolidated Comprehensive Income attributable to:
Bank's Shareholders

Non-controlling Interests

For the Year
Ended December 31,
2020 2019
D A13)]
35,467,062 40,378,045
(397,243 1,016,235
4,167,292 {14,208)
3,770,049 1,002,027
2,337,257 -
725,655 (2,730,094)
3,062,912 (2,730,094)
42,300,023 38,649,978
40,502,256 38,442,114
1,797,767 207,864
42,300,023 38,049,978

The accompanying notes from (1) to (49) constitute an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements and should be read with them.
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BANK OF JORDAN
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

STATEMENT (E)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Profit before income tax — Statement (B)
Adjustments for Non-Cash Items:
Depreciation and amortization

Financial assets expected credit loss expenses
(Gain) from sale of property and equipment

(G'i!in) Unrealized loss from financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Gain from recognition of financial assets

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations

Other provisions

{Recovered from) expense of assets foreclosed by the bank provision
Assets foreclosed by the bank revaluation loss

Foreign currency exchange differences

Profit before changes in assets and liabilities

Changes in Assets and Liabilities:

Decrease (increase) in restricted balances

Decrease 1n deposits with banks and financial institutions

(maturing over 3 months)

Pecrease (increase) in financial assets at fair value through profit or
08s

{(Increase) decrease in direct credit facilities at amortized cost
(Increase) in other assets

{Decrease) in deposits at banks and financial institutions (maturing over
3 months)

(Decrease) increase in customer’s deposits

(Decrease) increase in cash marging

Increase in borrowed funds

{Decrease) increase in other Habilities

Net Change in Assets and Liabilities

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities before paid Taxes, end-
of-Service Indemnity Provision, and Lawsuits Provision

End-of-service indemnity and lawsuits provisions paid
Taxes paid
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash Fiows from Investing Activities:

(Purchase) of financial assets at amortized cost

Maturity of financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through
comprehensive income

Financial derivatives

{Purchase) of property and equipment and advance payments to acquire
property and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

(Purchase) of intangible assets

Net Cash Flows (Used in) Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Foreign currency translation differences

Dividends paid to shareholders

Net Cash Flows from (used in) Financing Activities

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents
Net (decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of the year
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of the Year

For the Year Ended December 31,

Note 2020 2019

1)) D
52,073,578 61,130,161
14,15 9,254,938 8,726,851
38 31,868,913 18,629,356
35 (717,916) 6,692
34 (14,988,346) 22,192
11 (3.652,011) -
33 (2,530,549) (3,246,156)
20 781,231 498.064
16 (357.796) 429,348
35 . 326,702
3,808,660 3,232
75,540,702 86,526,942
10,617,369 (1,464,875)
118,685,314 27,202,911
460,020 (481,231)
(92,428,376) 43,539 293
(3,026,481) (4,561,114)
(80,000,000) -
(9.910.531) 51,305,621
(774.612) 3,325,004
60,135,362 4,365,730
(3.013.214) 2332182
744,851 125,563,521
76,285,553 212,090,463
20 (415,042) (681,001)
21 (22,692.105) (23,151.663)
53,178,406 188.257.799
(138,276,286) (132,384,857)
61,855.877 63,646,459
- (42,479,388)
2,900,734 17,438,194
276.515 (27,660)
(6,877,093) (7,036,457)
900,708 82,830
10 (2,124.672) (1,986,497)
(81,344,217 (102.697.876)
4,167,292 (14,208)
(56,300) (35,738,306)
4,110,492 (35,752,514)
33 2,530,549 3,246,156
(21,524,770 53,053,565
40 434,442 966 381,389,401
40 412,918,196 434,442,966

The accompanying notes from {1} to (49) constitute an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements and should be read with them.



BANK OF JORDAN
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
AMMAN — JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
General

Bank of Jordan was established in 1960 as a public shareholding Limited Company with
headquarters in Amman — Jordan. The bank was registered on March 3, 1960 under number (1983)
according to the Companies Law No. 33 for the year 1962 with an authorized capital of JD 350,000,
represented by 70,000 shares at a par value of JID 5 per share. However, the Bank’s authorized and
paid-up capital was increased in several stages, the last of which took place in accordance to the
general assembly's resolution at their extraordinary meeting held on April 9, 2016, for which, the
Bank’s capital was increased from JD 155/1 million to JD 200 million through the capitalization of
JD 13,702,858 from voluntary reserve and JD 31,197,142 from retained earnings. The legal
procedures related to the capital increase were completed on April 19, 2016.

The Bank provides all financial and banking services within its scope of activities. Those services are
offered at its (80) branches across Jordan, {16) branches across Palestine, Bahrain branch, and its
subsidiaries in Jordan and Syria (Excel for Financial Investments Company, Jordan Leasing
Company and Bank of Jordan - Syria).

The Bank has obtained all necessary approvals from Central Bank of Jordan and the regulatory
authorities in Iraq for the establishment of a branch in Iraq. The branch is still in establishment phase.
The consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors in its meeting
No. (629) held on January 28, 2021, and subject to The Central Bank of Jordan approval.

Consolidated Financial Statements Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements for the Bank and its subsidiaries were prepared in accordance
with Intemnational Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the Intemational Accounting
Standards Board and the interpretations issued by International Financial Reporting Interpretation
Committee affiliated with the International Accounting Standards Board as adopted by the Central
Bank of Jordan.

The main differences between Intemational Financial Reporting Standards that shouid be applied
and what was adopted by the Central Bank of Jordan are as follows:

Expected credit losses allowances are calculated in accordance with the Central Bank of Jordan
(CBJ} instructions No. (13/2018) “International Financial Reporting Standard No. (9)
Implementation” dated June 6, 2018 and in accordance with the Regulatory authorities instructions
in the countries that the Bank operates whichever is more strict, the main significant differences are
as follows:

Debt instruments issued or guaranteed by the Jordanian government are excluded, so that credit
exposures issued or guaranteed by the Jordanian government are treated with no credit losses.

When calculating credit losses against credit exposures, the calculation results in accordance to
International Financial Reporting Standards (9) are compared with the instructions of the Central
Bank of Jordan No. {(47/2009) dated December 10, 2009 for cach stage separately and the greater
results are recorded.

In accordance with the mstructions of the Central Bank of Jordan and the instructions of the
supervisory authorities in the countries in which the bank operates, intercst and commissions are
suspended on non-performing credit facilities.

Assets foreclosed by Bank are presented at the consolidated statement of financial position within
other assets at the value that has been acquired by the Bank or the fair value, whichever is lower, and
are reassessed individually on each consolidated financial statements date, and any impairment in
their value is recorded as a loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss but the increase is not
recorded, to the extent that it does not exceed the value of the previously recorded impairment.
Starting the year 2015, and in accordance with the Central Bank of Jordan Circular No. 10/1/4076
dated March 27, 2014 and Circular No. 10/1/2510 dated February 14, 2017, the Bank has started to
calculate gradual provision against the assets foreclosed by the bank in exchange of credit facilities
that have been in possession for more than 4 years. Central Bank of Jordan issued Circular No.
10/1/16239 dated November 21, 2019 approving the extension of Circular No. 10/1/2150 dated
February 14, 2017, confinming to postpone the provision calculation until the end of year 2020 and
amending the second clause of it. In accordance with the Central Bank of Jordan circular
No.10/3/16628 dated January 27/2020, circular No 15/10/2510 was extended till December 31, 2021.
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Additional provisions are calculated in the consolidated financial statements against some of the
Bank's foreign investments in some neighbouring countries.

The net outcome of the differences between the Central Bank of Jordan instructions and the
International Financial Reporting Standards represented by having the Bank to book additional
allocations to comply with these instructions.

The consolidated financial statements were prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through comprehensive
income and financial derivatives measured at fair value at the date of the consolidated financial
statements. Moreover, hedged financial assets and financial liabilities are stated at fair value.

Functional and Presentation Currency
These financial statements are presented in Jordanian Dinar, which is the Bank’s functional currency.

Significant Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of Uncertainty Estimates

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements and application of the accounting policies require
management to make judgments, estimates, and assumptions that affect the amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities and to disclose potential liabilities. Moreover, these estimates and
Jjudgments affect revenues, expenses, provisions, in general, expected credit losses, as well as
changes in fair value that appear in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and within
shareholders’ equity. In particular, the Bank’s management requires judgments to be made to
estimate the amounts and timing of future cash flows. These estimates are necessarily based on
multiple hypotheses and factors with varying degrees of estimation and uncertainty. Meanwhile, the
actual results may differ from estimates due to the changes arising from the conditions and
circumstances of those estimates in the future,

Judgments, estimates, and assumptions are reviewed periodically. Moreover, the effect of the change
in estimates is recognized in the financial period in which the change occurs if the change affects
only the financial period. On the other hand, the effect of the change in estimates is recognized in the
financial period in which the change occurs and in future periods if the change affects the financial
period and future financial periods.

Management believes that its estimates in the consolidated financial statements are reasonable.
Based on the following details:

Impairment of foreclosed assets

Impairment of foreclosed assets is recognised based or on accredited and updated real-estate
evaluations performed by certified appraisers for the purpose of asset impairment calculation, at
which the impairment is reviewed periodically Starting from the year 2015 and in accordance with
the Central Bank of Jordan Circular No. 10/1/4076 dated March 27, 2014 and Circular No. 10/1/2510
dated February 14, 2017 the bank has started to calculate gradual provision against the assets
foreclosed by the bank in exchange of credit facilities that have been in possession for more than 4
years. Central Bank of Jordan issued Circular No. 10/1/16239 dated November 21, 2019 approving
the extension of Circular No. 10/1/2150 dated February 14, 2017, in which it confirmed postponing
the provision calculation until the end of year 2020 and amending the second clause of it In
accordance with the Central Bank of Jordan circular No.10/3/16628 dated January 27/2020, circular
No 15/10/2510 was extended till December 31, 2021.

Tangible and intangible assets useful life

Management periodically reassesses the economic useful life of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, based on the general condition of these assets and the expectation of their useful
economic lives in the future. The impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year.

Income tax

Management recognizes income tax expense deferred tax assets, deferred tax liabilities and required
tax provision for the year based on management’s estimate for taxable profit in accordance with the
prevailing laws, regulations and IFRSs.
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Litigation provision

A provision is made to meet any potential legal liabilities based on a legal study prepared by the
Bank’s legal counsel. This study identifies potential future risks and is reviewed periodically.
Provision for end-of-service indemnity

Recalculation and formation of end of service benefits for each employee for current and prior
periods which are discounted to their present value,

Assets and liabilities at cost

Management periodically reviews assets and liabilities to assess and evaluate impairment, and any
loss incurred is recognised within the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year,

Allowance for expected credit losses

Management is required to use significant judgments and estimates to estimate the amounts and
timing of future cash flows and assess the risks of a significant increase in credit risks for financial
assets after initial recognition and future measurement information for the expected credit Iosses.
The most important policies and estimates used by the Bank's management are detailed in note (43).

Evaluation of business model

The classification and measurement of financial assets depend on the results of the principal and
interest payments test on the principal outstanding and the business model test. The Bank defines a
business model at a level that reflects how the groups of financial assets are managed together to
achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgment that reflects all relevant
evidence, including how to assess the performance of the assets and measure their performance, the
risks that affect the performance of assets and how they are managed, and how asset managers are
compensated. The Bank monitors financial assets measured at amortized cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income and derecognized before maturity to understand the reason for
derecognition and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business held. In this
respect, control is part of the Bank's continuous assessment of whether the business model under
which the remaining financial assets are retained is appropriate, and whether it is inappropriate if
there is a change in the business model, and therefore, a future change is made in the classification
of those assets.

Significant increase in credit risk

The expected credit loss is measured as an allowance equivalent to the expected credit loss of 12
months for the assets of the first stage, or the credit loss over the life of the assets of the second or
third stage. The asset moves to the second stage if credit risk increases significantly since initial
recognition. IFRS (9) does not specify what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In
assessing whether the credit risk of any asset has increased significantly, the Bank takes into account
reasonable and reliable quantitative and qualitative information. The estimates used by the Bank's
management concerning the significant change in credit risk that result in a change in the
classification within the three stages (1, 2 and 3) are shown in detail in note (43).

Establish groups of assets with similar credit risk characteristics

When expected credit losses are measured on a collective basis, financial instruments are grouped
basing on credit risks shared qualities for example (instrument type, credit risk severity, guarantee
type, initial recognition date, remaining period till due date, industry, geographical location for the
lender, etc.) the bank continuously monitors the convenience of credit risks properties to assess
whether it is still consistent. This is required to guarantee that in case there are any changes in credit
risk properties the assets get redistributed accordingly. That may result in building up new portfolios
of the transfer of existing assets to existing portfolios that better reflect credit risk properties for that
group of assets.
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Re-division of portfolios and movements between portfolios

The re-division of portfolios and movements between portfolios is more common when credit risk
increases significantly (or when such a large increase is reflected). Therefore, assets are transferred
from expected credit losses of between (12) months to another portfolio or vice versa. However, this
may happen within the portfolios that continue to be measured on the same basis as expected credit
losses for a 12-month period or a lifetime, but the amount of the expected credit loss changes due to
the varying credit risk of portfolios.

Models and assumnptions used

The Bank uses various models and assumptions in measuring the fair value of financial assets as
well as in assessing the expected credit loss described in note (43). The judgment is applied when
determining the best models for each type of asset as well as for the assumptions used in those
models, which include assumptions regarding the main drivers of credit risk.

. Classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities

The Bank classifies financial instruments or components of financial assets at initial recognition
either as a financial asset or a financial liability, or as an equity instrument in accordance with the
substance of the contractual agreements and the definition of the instrument. The reclassification of a
financial instrument is subject to the substance of the financial statements and not to its legal form.
The Bank shall determine the classification at initial recognition and reassess such determination, if
possible and appropriate, at each date of the consolidated statement of financial position. When
measuring financial assets and liabilities, certain assets and liabilities of the Bank are re-measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. In assessing the fair value of any assets or liabilities, the
Bank uses available observable market data. In the absence of Tier 1 inputs, the Bank conducts
evaluations using professionally qualified independent evaluators. The Bank works closely with
qualified external evaluators to develop appropriate valuation and data valuation techniques.

. Fair value measurement

If the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities included in the consolidated statement of
financial position cannot be obtained from active markets, these fair values are determined using a
range of valuation techniques involving the use of accounting models. If possible, the entered data
for those models will be extracted from the market data. In the absence of such market data, fair
values are determined by making judgments. These provisions include liquidity considerations and
model data such as derivative volatility, longer-term discount rates, pre-payment ratios and default
rates on asset-backed securities. Management believes that the valuation techniques used are
appropriate to determine the fair value of financial instruments.

. Derivative financial instruments

The fair values of derivative financial instruments measured at fair value are generally obtained by
reference to quoted market prices, discounted cash flow models and, where appropriate, recognized
pricing models. In the absence of prices, fair values are determined using valuation techniques that
reflect observable market data. These techniques include comparison with similar instruments at
observable market prices, discounted cash flow analysis, pricing option models and other valuation
techniques commonly used by market participants. The main factors that management takes into
consideration when applying the model are:

The expected timing and probability of future cash flows on the instrument where such cash flows
are generally subject to the terms of the instrument, although the management’s judgment may be

required, where the counterparty’s ability to repay the instrument in accordance with contractual
terms is in doubt; and
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An appropriate discount rate for the instrument. Management determines the instrument discount
rate at a rate higher than the non-risk rate. In assessing the instrument by reference to comparative
instruments, Management considers the maturity, structure, and degree of classification of the
instrument based on the system in which the existing position is compared. When evaluating tools
on a model basis using the fair value of the main components, they also consider the need to adjust

for a several factors, such as bid differences, credit status, portfolio service costs, and uncertainty
about the model.

Leases

Some leases of office premises have extension options exercisable by the Group up to one year
before the end of the non-cancellable contract period. Where practical, the Group looks to include
extension options in new leases to supply operational flexibility. The extension options held are
exercisable only by the Group and not by the lessors. The Group assesses at lease commencement
date whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension options. The Group reassesses whether
it is reasonably certain to exercise the options if there is a significant event or significant changes in
circumstances within its control.

Keyv Sources of Uncertainty Estimates

The principal estimates used by Management in applying the Bank’s accounting policies that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements are as
follows:

Determining the number and relative weight of scenarios, the outlook for each type of product /
market. and the identification of future information relevant to each scenario

When measuring the expected credit loss, the Bank uses reasonable and supported future
information based on the assumptions of the future movement of the various economic drivers and
the manner in which they affect each other.

Probability of Default

The potential for default is a key input in measuring the expected credit loss. The probability of
default is an estimate of the probability of default over a given period of time, which includes the
calculation of historical data, assumptions, and expectations relating to future circumstances.

Loss Given Default

Loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising from default. It is based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due and those that the financer expects to collect, taking into
account cash flows from collateral and integrated credit adjustments.

Fair Value Measurement and Valuation Procedures

When estimating the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, the Bank uses available
observable market data. In the absence of level (1) inputs, the Bank conducts evaluations using
appropriate valuation models to determine the fair value of financial instruments.

Lease Payments Discount

Lease payments are discounted using the implicit lease interest rate or the incremental borrowing
rate,

Management have applied the judgments and estimates to determine additional borrowing rate on
the start of the lease date.
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We believe that the estimates and judgments adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are consistent with the estimates and judgments adopted in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statement for the year ended December 31, 2019 except for the following:

The Corona Virus (COVID-19) pandemic has spread across different geographical regions of the
world, disrupting business and economic activities and caused doubts globally. For which financial
and monetary authorities, both domestic and international declared various support measures in all
parts of the world to face the potential negative effects, as at the present time there is a significant
increase of uncertainty in determining the economic impact that is manifested, for example, in the
volume of liquidity and volatility in Assets prices, foreign currency exchange rates, a noticeable
decrease in long-term interest rates, an assessment of the significant increase in credit risk and
different macroeconomic factors. Accordingly, Bank of Jordan management has closely monitored
the situation and has activated its business continuity plan and other risk management practices to
manage any potential disruptions that the Corona Virus (COVID -19) outbreak may cause to the
Bank's business, operations and financial performance.

Bank of Jordan management has also performed study over the potential impacts of the current
economic fluctuations in determining the amounts recognized for the financial and non-financial
assets of the Bank, which represents the management best estimates based on the information
available, knowing that, given the current situation, as a result the markets remain volatile and the
recorded amounts continue to be sensitive to fluctnations,

Provision for expected credit losses:

The uncertainties caused by the outbreak of the Corona virus (Covid-19) require updating the inputs
and assumptions used to determine "expected credit losses” as of December 31, 2020. The expected
credit losses were estimated based on a set of expected economic conditions as at that date given the
rapid development for the situation, the Bank took into account the effect of high volatility on future
macroeconomic factors, when determining the severity and likelihood of economic scenarios to
determine expected credit losses. This volatility was reflected by modifying the basic scenarios
building methods and weights specific to these scenarios. Future factors used are determined from
the statistical distribution of credit cycle index factors, which can be derived from a number of
observable historical factors such as risk returns, credit growth, credit margins or assumptions as
well as forward looking,

The Bank has updated the macroeconomic factors used in calculating the propability of default to
reflect the Corona Virus (COVID-19) pandemic impacts results in coordination with Moody’s,
which was identified from the statistical distributions of credit cycle index factors. The Bank
performes continous studies and reviews over these factors and scenarios.

In addition, Bank of Jordan management has paid particular attention to the impact of the Corona
virus (COVID-19) on the qualitative and quantitative factors when determining the significant
increase in credit risk and assessing indicators of impairment of risk in potential sectors affected.
This has resulted in a decrease in the classification of some credit exposures, recognition of expected

credit losses and provisions for impairment as shown in the stated disclosuer No. (43) to the
consolidated financial statements.

5. Changes in the Accounting Polices

The Application of the New and Amended International Standards

A- Amendments that did not have a material impact on the banks consolidated financial
statements:
The following new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards were adopted,
effective starting from or after January 1, 2020, when preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the Bank, which did not significantly affect the amounts and disclosures stated in
the consolidated financial statements for the year and prior years, noting that they may have an
impact on the accounting treatments of future transaction and arrangements:

-6-
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New and revised standards

Amendments to new and revised IFRSs

Amendments to IAS (1)
“Presentation of Financial
Statements”

(Effective January 1, 2020)

Amendments to IFRS 3 “Business
combinations”
(Effective January 1, 2020)

Amendments to International
Financial Reporting Standard (9),
International Accounting
Standards (39) and International
Financial Reporting Standard (7)
“Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform™.

(Effective January 1, 2020)

COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions (Amendment to
IFRS 16)

(Effective June 1, 2020)

These amendments are mainly related to the significance
definition.

These amendments clarify the definition of business as the
international accounting standards board published the revised
financial reposting framewerk. This includes revised definitions
on measurement, derecognition, presentation, and disclosure.

In addition to amended conceptual framework, the IASB issued
amendments to the guidelines on the conceptual framework in
the IFRS standards, which contain amendments to IFRS (2, 3, 6
and 14) and IAS (1,8,34,37 and 38) and IFRIC (12,19} and
(20,22), and interpretations of standing committee for the
interpretation of standards mumber (32), in order to update those
statements with regard to references and quotaions from the
framework or to refer to a differenct version of the conceptual
framework.

These amendments clarify the definition of a business, in
accordance with instructions received by the IASB, the
application of the current guidance is complicated and result in
many transactions to be classified as business mergers,

“Interest Rate Benchmark Reform” — these amendments provide
some exemptions regarding fixing the interest rate between
Banks (LIBOR) which should not cause to end hedge
accounting in general. Even though ineffective hedging should
continue to be recorded in the statement of comprehensive
income. Due to the general nature of hedge instruments that are
based on LIBOR prices, these exemptions will affect companies
in all industries.

Amendments to IFRS 16.

Lease benefits related to Corona virus (Amendments to IFRS
16).
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B) New and revised IFRSs issued and not vet effective:

The Bank has not adopted the following new and amended IFRSs issued but not yet effective as of
the date of the consolidated financial statements. The details are as follows:

New and revised standards Effective
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform-Phase 2 1 January 2021
(Amendments to IFRS9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to 1 January 2022
IAS 37)

Annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 1 January 2022
Property, Plant and Equipmet: Proceeds before intended Use 1 January 2022
(Amendments to IAS 16)

Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3) 1 January 2022
Classification of liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments 1 January 2023

to 1AS 1)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance 1 January 2023
Contracts

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an incvestor and its associate  Available for optional
or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28) adoption/ effective date

referred indefinitely

Management expects to apply these new standards, interpritations, and amendments to the
consolidated financial statmenst of the Bank when they are applicable. Moreover, the adoption of
these new standards, interpritations, and amendments may have no material impact on the Bank’s
consolidated financial statements in the initial application period.
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6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies applied by the Bank in these consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2020 are the same as those applied by the Bank in its conseclidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2019, except for International Financial Reporting
Standards amendments and improvements that become effective on and after January 1, 2020
disclosed in note {5-A).

Basis of Consolidation of Financial Statements

The Consolidated financial statements comprise of the financial statements of the Bank (and its

subsidiaries which are subject to its control), the principle of control sets cut the following three
elements of control:

- Power over the investee.
- Exposure, or rights, to variable returmns from its involvement with the investee; and
- The ability to use power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor's returns.

The Bank reassess whether it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control at cach reporting year,

If the voting rights for the Bank decreased below the majority voting rights at any of the subsidiaries,
the Bank has control when its voting rights are sufficient to give the Bank the ability to direct the
activities of the subsidiary facility from one side only.

And the Bank takes into consediration all facts and circumstances when estimating whether the Bank
has sufficient voting rights that enables the Banks control. Among those facts and circumstances are:

- The size of the voting rights that the Bank posesses and the distribution of other voting rights.

- Possible voting rights that the Bank posessess and any other parties that posess voting rights as such.

- Emerging rights from other contractual arrangements; and,

- Any other facts and circumstances that indicates that the Bank may or may not become liable when
its required to make decisions, including voting mechanism in previous general assembly meetings.

Subsidiaries are consolidated when the Bank controls the entity and consolidation pauses when the
Bank loses control over the subsidiary. Specifically; the aquired or disowned subsidiaries during the

year their results are included in the consolidated profit and loss statement from the control till the
loss of control date.

Profits and losses and every item from the comprehensive income items gets distributed to the
owners in the entity and non-controling interests, the comprehensive income of subsidiaries are
distrbuied to the owners at the entity and the non-controlling interests even if this distribution would
lead to a deficit in the total balance of the non-controlling interests.

Adjustments on the subsidiaries financial stetments are performed, on necessity to match the
accounting policies of the Bank.

All assets, liabilities, owners equity, income, intercompany transactions, and balances between the
Bank and the subsidiaries are removed on consolidation,

NCI in subsidiaries are determined separately from the Bank’s equity in these subsidiaries. NCI are
measured initially at their proportionate share of the acquirer’s identifiable net assets at the date of
acquisition,

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions. When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets
and liabilities of the subsidiary, and any related NCI and other components of equity. Any resulting

gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured
at fair value when control is lost.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses (except for foreign
currency transaction gains or losses) arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated.
Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.
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When the Bank loses control over a subsidiary, resulting profit or loss from the disposal of the
subsidiary is recognised in the profit and loss statement by calculating the difference between (A)
total fair value of the reveiced amount and the fair value of any ramaining shares and (B) the current
value of the assets (including good will) netted from it the liabilities of the subsirdiaries are and any
non-controling interests. All previously recognised amounts are staed in the statement of
comprehensive income regarding that subsidiary as if the Bank had just disposed of the assets and
liabilities relating to that subsidiary. The fair value of the investment held at the previous subsidiary
at the loss of control date as a fair value on initial recognition of subsequent accounting according to
the international financial reporting standard (9) “financial instruments” on application of the
standard, or the initial recognition cost of the investment at an associate or in a joint project.

The Bank has the following subsidiary companies as of December 31, 2020:
Bank's Substdiary’s
Ownership Nature of Place of  Acquisition

Name of Subsidiary Paid-up Capital Percentage Business Operation Date
o
Excel for Financial Financial March 23,
Investments Company JD 3.5 Million 100 Brokerage Amman 2006
3,000 Million Banking
Bank of Jordan ~ Syria* {Syrian — Lira) 49 Activities Syria May 17, 2008
Finance QOctober 24,
Jordan Leasing Company  JD 20 Million 100 Lease Amman 2011

The most important information of the subsidiaries for the years 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

December 31, 2020 ¥or the Year 2020
Total Total Total
Name of Subsidiary Total Assets Liabilities Revenues Expenses
JD JD D D
Excel for Financial Investments
Company 5,828,061 181,040 311,221 233,138
Bank of Jordan — Syria* 47,376,307 32,379,107 1,408,044 2,050,271
Jordan Leasing Company 29.359,260 4,467,660 1,877,867 464,067
December 31, 2019 For the Year 2019
Total Total Total
Name of Subsidiary Total Assets Liabilities Revenues Expenses
D ID D JD
Excel for Financial Investments
Company 5,780,304 211,366 540,816 328,947
Bank of Jordan — Syria*® 53,849,233 42377741 3.690,478  3,269.415
Jordan Leasing Company 28,262,123 4.784,310 2,016,553 59,949

*The results of Bank of Jordan — Syria has been consolidated in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements due to the Bank's power to govern the financial and operating policies of the
subsidiary Company.

Segmental Information

Business is a group of assets and operations that jointly provide products or services subject to risks
and returns different from those of other business segments, to the effect that it is measured
according to the reports used by the Executive Directors and the main decision maker at the Bank.

Geographical sector relates to providing products or services in an economic environment subject to

specific risks and returns different from those operating in other sectors of other economic
environmnents.

-10-
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Net Interest Income

Interest income and expense for all financial instruments, except for those classified as held for
trading, or those measured or designated as at fair value through profit or loss, are recognized in ‘Net
Interest Income’ as ‘Interest Income’ and ‘Interest Expense® in the statement of income using the
effective interest method. Interest on financial instruments measured at fair value through the
statement of income is included within the fair value movement during the year.

The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts the estimated future cash flows of the financial
instrument through the expected life of the financial instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. The future cash flows
are estimated, taking into account all the contractual terms of the instrument.

Interest income / interest expense is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of non-credit impaired financial assets (i.e. at the amortized cost of the financial
asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance), or to the amortized cost of financial
liabilities. For credit-impaired financial assets, the interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less the allowance for expected credit losses). For financial assets originated or
purchased credit-impaired, the effective interest rate reflects the expected credit losses in
determining the future cash flows expected to be received from the financial asset.

Interest income and cxpense in the Bank’s consolidated statement of income also includes the
effective portion of fair value changes of derivatives designated as hedging instruments in cash flow
hedges of interest rate risk. For fair value hedges of interest rate risk related to interest income and
expense, the effective portion of the fair value changes of the designated derivatives, as well as the
fair value changes of the designated risk of the hedged item, are also included in interest income and
expense, interest expenses also include the interest expenses against the lease liabilities.

Net Fees and Comimission Income

Fees and commission income and expense include fees other than those that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The fees included in this part of the Bank’s consolidated statement of
income include, among other things, fees charged for servicing a loan, non-utilization fees relating to

loan commitments when it is unlikely that these will result in a specific lending arrangement, and
loan syndication fees.

Fee and commission expenses concerning services are accounted for as the services are received.

A contract with a customer that results in a recopgnized financial instrument in the Group’s financial
statements may be partially in the scope of [FRS 9 and partially in the scope of IFRS 15. If this is the
case, then the Group first applies IFRS 9 to separate and measure the part of the contract that is in
the scope of IFRS 9 and then applies [FRS 15 to the residual.

Net Trading Income
Net trading income includes all gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial assets
and financial liabilities held for trading. The Bank has elected to present the full fair value

movement of trading assets and liabilities in trading income, including any related interest income,
expense, and dividends.

Net Income from Other Financial Instruments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Net income from other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss includes all gains and
losses from changes in the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss except those that are held for trading. The Bank has elected to present the full fair value
movement of assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in this line, including the
related interest income, expense, and dividends.
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The fair value movement on derivatives held for economic hedging where hedge accounting is not
applied are presented in ‘Net income from other financial instruments at fair value through the
statement of income. However, for designated and effective fair value hedge accounting
relationships, the gains and losses on the hedging instrument are presented in the same line in the
statement of income as the hedged item. For designated and effective cash flow and net investment
hedge accounting relationships, the gains and losses of the hedging instrument, including any
hedging ineffectiveness included in the statement of income, are presented in the same line as the
hedged item that affects the consolidated statement of income.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. This is the ex-

dividend date for listed equity securities, and usually the date when shareholders approve the
dividend for unlisted equity securities.

The presentation of dividend income in the consolidated statement of the statement of income
depends on the classification and measurement of the equity investment, i.e.:

For equity instruments which are held for trading, dividend income is presented as trading income;
For equity instruments classified at fair value through other comprehensive income, dividend
income is presented in dividends from financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income hine within the statement of income.

For equity instruments not classified at fair value through other comprehensive income and not held

for trading, dividend income is presented as net income from other instruments at fair value through
the statement of income.

Financial Instruments

Inifial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the Bank’s consolidated statement of
financial position when the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Loans and customers overdrafts are recognized once booked on the customer’s account,

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributed to the acquisition or the issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities as appropriate on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributed to the acquisition of financial assets or financial

liabilities at fair value through the statement of income are recognized immediately in the statement
of income.

If the transaction price differs from fair value at initial recognition, the Bank will account for such
difference as follows:

If fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability or
based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, then the difference is
recognized in the statement of income on initial recognition (i.e. day 1 the statement of income);

In all other cases, the fair value will be adjusted to become it in line with the transaction price (i.e.

day 1 the statement of income will be deferred by including it in the initial carrying amount of the
asset or liability).

After initial recognition, the deferred gain or loss will be recognized in the statement of income on a
rational basis, only to the extent that it arises from a change in a factor (including time) that market

participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability or when derecognizing the
instruments.
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Financial Assets

Initial Recognition

All financial assets are recognized on the trading date when the purchase or sale of a financial asset
is under a confract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the timeframe
established by the market concemed. They are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs,
except for those financial assets classified as fair value through profit or loss. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets classified as fair value through profit or loss
are recognized immediately in the consolidated profit or loss.

Subsequent Measurement

All recognized financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortized cost or fair value on the basis of the entity’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. Specifically:

Debt instruments held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding (SPPI), are subsequently measured at amortized cost;

Debt instruments held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the contractual
cash flows and to sell the debt instruments, and that have contractual cash flows that are {SPPI), are
subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income;

All other debt instruments (e.g. debt instruments managed on a fair value basis, or held for sale) and
equity investments are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss.

However, the Bank may irrevocably make the following selection / designation at initial recognition
of a financial asset on an asset-by-asset basis:

The Bank may irrevocably select to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
that is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business
combination to which IFRS 3 applies, in other comprehensive income; and

‘The Bank may irrevocably designate a debt instrument that meets the amortized cost or fair value
through other comprehensive income criteria as measured at fair value through the statement of
income, if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch (referred to as the
fair value option).

Debt Instruments at Amortized Cost or at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
The Bank assesses the classification and measurement of a financial asset based on the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the asset and the Bank’s business model for managing the asset.

For an asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, its contractual terms should give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding (SPPI).

For the purpose of solely payments of principal and interest test, principal is the fair value of the
financial asset at initial recognition. That principal amount may change over the life of the financial
asset (e.g. if there are repayments of principal). Interest consists of the consideration for the time
value of money, for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a
particular period of time, and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as a profit margin. The
solely payments of principal and interest assessment is made in the currency in which the financial
asset is denominated,

Contractual cash flows that are SPPI are consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Contractual
terms that introduce exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to
a basic lending arrangement, such as exposure to changes in equity prices or commodity prices, do
not give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. An
originated or an acquired financial asset can be a basic lending arrangement irrespective of whether
it is a loan in its legal form.
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Assessment of Business Models

An assessment of business models for managing financial assets is fundamental to the classification
of a financial asset. The Bank determines the business models at a level that reflects how groups of
financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. The Bank’s business
model does not depend on management’s intentions for an individual instrument; therefore, the

business model assessment is performed at a higher level of aggregation rather than on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

The Bank has more than one business model for managing its financial instruments, which reflect
how the Bank manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The Bank‘s business

models determine whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling
financial assets, or both.

The Bank considers all relevant information available when making the business model assessment.
However, this assessment is not performed based on scenarios that the Bank does not reasonably
expect to occur, such as so-called ‘worst case’ or ‘stress case’ scenarios. The Bank takes into
account all relevant evidence available such as:

The stated policies and objectives of the portfolio and application of those policies whether the
management strategy focuses on obtaining contractual revenues, maintaining specific profit rate
matching the profit of financial assets with the period of financial liabilities that finance those assets.

How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model
are evaluated and reported to the entity’s key management personnel;

The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and, in particular, the way in which those risks are managed; and

How the business managers are compensated (e.g. whether the compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected).

At initial recognition of a financial asset, the Bank determines whether newly recognized financial
assets are part of an existing business model or whether they reflect the commencement of a new
business model. The Bank reassess its business models each reporting period to determine whether
the business models have changed since the preceding period.

When a debt instrument measured at fair value through other comprehensive income is
derecognized, the cumulative gain/loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to the statement of income. In contrast, for an equity investment designated
as measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, the cumulative gain/loss previously
recognized in other comprehensive income is not subsequently reclassified to the statement of
income but transferred within equity.

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income are subject to impairment.

Financial Assets - Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solelv pavments of
principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the
credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and
for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as the
profit margin,

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Group considers the contractual terms
of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that
could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this
condition. In making the assessment, the Group considers:

Contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows.

Prepayment and extension terms.

Terms that limit the Bank’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse loans).
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Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are:

Assets with contractual cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest; or/and

Assets that are held in a business model other than held to collect contractual cash flows or held to
collect and sell; or

Assets designated at fair value through profit or loss using the fair value option.

These assets are measured at fair value, with any gains/losses arising on re-measurement recognized
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Reclassifications

If the business model under which the Bank holds financial assets changes, the financial assets
affected are reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to the new
category apply prospectively from the first day of the first reporting period following the change in
business model, which results in reclassifying the Bank’s financial assets. The changes in the
contractual cash flows are considered under the accounting policy on the modification and de-
recognition of financial assets described below.

Foreign Exchange Gains and Losses
The carrying amount of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. Specifically:

For financial assets measured at amortized cost that are not part of a designated hedging relationship,
exchange differences are recognized in the statement of income;

For debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income that are not part of
a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences on the amortized cost of the debt instrument
are recognized in the statement of income. Other exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income in the investment’s revaluation reserve;

For financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss that are not part of a designated
hedge accounting relationship, exchange differences are recognized in the statement of income either
in ‘net trading income’, if the asset is held for trading, or in ‘net income from other financial
instruments at fair value through the statement of income, if otherwise held at fair value through the
statement of income; and

For equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, exchange
differences are recognized in other comprehensive income in the investment’s revaluation reserve.

Fair Value Option

A financial instrument with a fair value that can be reliably measured at fair value through profit or
loss (fair value option), can be classified at initial recognition even if the financial instruments are
not acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing, The fair value option
may be used for financial assets if it significantly eliminates or significantly reduces the
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise have resulted in the measurement of
the asset or liability or recognized the related gain or loss on a different basis (accounting mismatch).
The fair value option for financial liabilities can be chosen in the following cases:

If the selection leads to a significant cancellation or reduction of the accounting mismatch.

If the financial liabilities are part of a portfolio managed on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy; or

If a derivative is included in the underlying financial or non-financial contract, and the derivative is
not closely related to the underlying contract.

These instruments can not be reclassified from the fair value category through profit or loss while
retained or issued. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized at fair value
with any unrealized gain or loss arising from changes in fair value recognized in investment income.
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Impairment
The Bank recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on the following financial
instruments that are not measured at fair value through the statement of income:

Balances and depaosits at banks and financial institutions;

Direct credit facilities (Loans and advances to customers);
Financial assets at amortized cost (Debt investment securities);
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income;

Off statement of financial position exposures subject to credit risk (Financial guarantee contracts
issued).

No impairment loss is recognized on equity investments.

With the exception of purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI), financial assets (which are
considered separately below), expected credit losses are required to be measured through a loss
allowance at an amount equal to;

12-month expected credit loss, i.e. lifetime expected credit loss that results from those default events

on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date, (referred to as
Stage 1); or

Full lifetime expected credit loss, ie. lifetime expected credit loss that results from all possible
default events over the life of the financial instrument, (referred to as Stage 2 and Stage 3).

A loss allowance for full lifetime expected credit loss is required for a financial instrument if the
credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, For all

other financial instruments, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month
expected credit loss.

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of the present value of credit losses.
These are measured as the present value of the difference between the cash flows due fo the Bank
under the contract and the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive arising from the weighting of
multiple futire economic scenarios, discounted at the asset’s effective interest rate.

For unutilized loan limits, the expected credit loss is the difference between the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due to the Bank if the holder of the

commitment draws down the loan and the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive if the loan is
utilized; and

For financial guarantee confracts, the expected credit loss is the difference between the expected
payments to reinsburse the holder of the guaranteed debt instrument less any amounts that the Bank
expects to receive from the holder, the client, or any other party.

The Bank measures expected credit loss on an individual basis, or on a collective basis for portfolios
of loans that share similar economic risk characteristics. The measurement of the loss allowance is
based on the present value of the asset’s expected cash flows using the asset’s original effective
interest rate, regardless of whether it is measured on an individual basis or a collective basis.

Expected credit losses allowances are calculated in accordance with the Central Bank of Jordan
(CBJ) instructions No. (13/2018) “International financial reporting standard No. (9)
Implementation” dated June 6, 2018 and in accordance with the Regulatory authorities instructions
in the countries that the Bank operates whichever is more strict,

The main significant differences are as follows:

Debt instruments issued or guaranteed by the Jordanian government are excluded, so that credit
exposures issued or guaranteed by the Jordanian government are treated without credit losses.

When calculating credit losses against credit exposures, the calculation results are compared
according to the International Financial Reporting Standard No. (9) with the instructions of the
Central Bank of Jordan No. (47/2009) dated December 10, 2009 for each stage separately and the
strictest results are taken in the recognition.
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Credit-Impaired Financial Assets

A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Credit-impaired financial assets are
referred to as Stage 3 assets. Evidence of credit-impairment includes observable data about the
following events:

Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

The lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;
The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties; or

The purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

It may not be possible to identify a single discrete event. Instead, the combined effect of several
events may have caused financial assets to become credit-impaired. The Bank assesses whether debt
instruments that are financial assets measured at amortized cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income are credit-impaired at each reporting date. To assess if sovereign and
corporate debt instruments are credit impaired, the Bank considers factors such as bond yields, credit
ratings, and the ability of the borrower to raise funding.

A loan is considered credit-impaired when a concession is granted to the borrower due to a
deterioration in the borrower’s financial condition, unless there is evidence that as a result of
granting the concession, the risk of not receiving the contractual cash flows has reduced
significantly, and there are no other indicators of impairment. For financial assets where concessions
are contemplated but not granted, the asset is deemed credit-impaired when there is observable
evidence of credit-impairment including meeting the definition of default. The definition of defauit
includes unlikeliness to pay indicators and a back-stop if amounts are overdue for 90 days or more.
However, in cases where the assets impairment is not recognized after 90 days overdue are
supported by reasonable information.

Purchased or Originated Credit-Impaired {POCI) Financial Assets

Purchased or (Originated Credit-impaired) financial assets, are treated differently because the asset
is credit-impaired at initial recognition. For these assets, the Bank recognizes all changes in lifetime
expected credif loss since initial recognition as a loss allowance with any changes recognized in the
statement of income. A favorable change for such assets creates an impairment gain.

Definition of Default

Critical to the determination of expected credit loss is the definition of default, The definition of
default is used in measuring the amount of expected credit loss and in the determination of whether
the loss allowance is based on 12-month or lifetime expected credit foss, as default is a component
of the probability of default (PD) which affects both the measurement of expected credit losses and
the identification of a significant increase in credit risk below.

The Bank considers the following as constituting an event of defauli:

The borrower is past due more than 90 days on any material credit obligation to the Bank; or
The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Bank in full.

The definition of default is appropriately tailored to reflect different characteristics of different types
of assets. Overdrafis are considered as being past due once the customer has breached an advised
limit or has been advised of a limit smaller than the current amount outstanding.

When assessing if the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation, the Bank takes into account
both qualitative and quantitative indicators. The information assessed depends on the type of the
asset. For example, in corporate lending, a qualitative indicator used is the breach of covenants,
which is not relevant for retail lending. Quantitative indicators, such as overdue status and non-
payment on another obligation of the same counterparty are key inputs in this analysis. The Bank
uses a variety of sources of information to assess default that is either developed internally or
obtained from external sources.
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Significant Increase in Credit Risk

The Bank monitors all financial assets, issued loan commitments, and financial guarantee contracts
that are subject to the impairment requirements to assess whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If there has been a significant increase in credit risk,
the Bank measures the loss allowance based on lifetime rather than 12-month expected credit loss.

The Bank’s accounting policy is not to use the practical expedient that financial assets with ‘low’
credit risk at the reporting date are deemed not to have had a significant increase in credit risk. As a
result, the Bank monitors all financial assets, issued loan commitments, and financial guarantee
contracts that are subject to impairment for significant increase in credit risk.

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recoguition, the Bank compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the
reporting date, based on the remaining maturity of the instrument, with the risk of a default
occurring that was anticipated for the remaining maturity at the current reporting date when the
financial instrument was first recognized. In making this assessment, the Bank considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort, based on

the Bank’s historical experience and expert credit assessment including forward-locking
information.

Multiple economic scenarios form the basis of determining the probability of default at initial
recognition and at subsequent reporting dates. Different economic scenarios will lead to a different
probability of default. It is the weighting of these different scenarios that forms the basis of a

weighted average probability of default that is used to determine whether credit risk has significantly
increased.

For corporate lending, forward-looking information includes the future prospects of the industries in
which the Bank’s counterparties operate, obtained from economic expert reports, financial analysts,
govemnmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar organizations, as well as consideration
of various internal and external sources of actual and forecast economic information. For retail
lending, forward-looking information includes the same economic forecasts as corporate lending
with additional forecasts of local economic indicators, particularly for regions with a concentration
to certain industries, as well as internally generated information of customer payment behavior. The
Bank allocates its counterparties to a relevant internal credit risk grade depending on their credit
quality. The quantitative information is a primary indicator of significant increase in credit risk and
is based on the change in lifetime probability of default by comparing;

The remaining lifetime probability of default at the reporting date; with
The remaining lifetime probability of default for this point in time that was estimated based on facts
and circumstances at the time of initial recognition of the exposure.

The probability of default used is forward looking, and the Bank uses the same methodologies and
data used to measure the loss allowance for expected credit loss.

The qualitative factors that indicate significant increase in credit risk are reflected in probability of
default models on a timely basis. However, the Bank still considers separately some qualitative
factors to assess if credit risk has increased significantly. For corporate lending, there is particular
focus on assets that are included on a ‘watch list’. An exposure is on a watch list once there is a
concern that the creditworthiness of the specific counterparty has deteriorated. For retail lending, the
Bank considers the expectation of forbearance and payment holidays, credit scores and events such
as unemployment, bankruptcy, divorce, or death.

Given that a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is a relative measure, a given
change, in absolute terms, in the probability of default will be more significant for a financial
instrument with a lower initial probability of default than for a financial instrument with a higher
probability of default.

As a backstop when an asset becomes more than 30 days past due, the Bank considers that a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred, and the asset is in stage 2 of the impairment model,
i.e. the loss allowance is measured as the lifetime expected credit loss.
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Modification and Derecognition of Financial Assets

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of a
financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified between initial recognition and maturity of the
financial asset. A modification affects the amount and/or timing of the contractual cash flows either
immediately or at a future date. In addition, the introduction or adjustment of existing covenants of
an existing loan would constitute a modification even if these new or adjusted covenants do not yet
affect the cash flows immediately but may affect the cash flows depending on whether the covenant

is or is not met (e.g. a change to the increase in the interest rate that arises when covenants are
breached).

The Bank renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulty to maximize collection and
minimize the risk of default. A loan forbearance is granted in cases where although the borrower
made all reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms, there is a high risk of default,
or default has already happened, and the borrower is expected to be able to meet the revised terms.
The revised terms in most of the cases include an extension of the maturity of the loan, changes to
the timing of the cash flows of the loan (principal and interest repayment), reduction in the amount
of cash flows due (principal and interest forgiveness) and amendments to covenants. The Bank has
an established forbearance policy, which applies for corporate and retail lending.

When a financial asset is modified, the Bank assesses whether this modification results in
derecognition. In accordance with the Bank’s policy, a modification results in derecognition when it
gives rise to substantially different terms. To determine if the modified terms are substantially
different from the original contractual terms, the Bank considers the following:

Qualitative factors, such as contractual cash flows after modification are no longer SPPI, change in
currency or change of counterparty, the extent of change in interest rates, maturity, covenants. If
these do not clearly indicate a substantial modification, then;

A quantitative assessment is performed to compare the present value of the remaining contractual
cash flows under the original terms with the contractual cash flows under the revised terms, both
amounts discounted at the original effective interest,

In the case where the financial asset is derecognized, the loss allowance for expected credit loss is
re-measured at the date of derecognition to determine the net carrying amount of the asset at that
date. The difference between this revised carrying amount and the fair value of the new financial
asset with the new terms will lead to a gain or loss on derecognition. The new financial asset will
have a loss allowance measured based on 12-month expected credit loss except in the rare occasions,
where the new loan is considered to be originated-credit impaired. This applies only in the case
where the fair value of the new loan is recognized at a significant discount to its revised par amount
because there remains a high risk of default which has not been reduced by the modification. The
Bank monitors credit risk of modified financial assets by evaluating qualitative and quantitative
information, such as if the borrower is in past due status under the new terms.

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified, and the modification does not result in
derecognition, the Bank determines if the financial asset’s credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition by comparing:

The remaining lifetime probability of default estimated based on data at initial recognition and the
original contractual terms; with

The remaining lifetime probability of default at the reporting date based on the modified terms.

For financial assets modified as part of the Bank’s forbearance policy, where modification did not
result in derecognition, the estimate of probability of default reflects the Bank’s ability to collect the
modified cash flows taking into account the Bank’s previous experience of similar forbearance
action, as well as various behavioral indicators, including the borrower’s payment performance
against the modified contractual terms, If the credit risk remains significantly higher than what was
expected at initial recognition, the loss allowance will continue to be measured at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit loss. The loss allowance on forborne loans will generally only be measured
based on 12-month expected credit loss when there is evidence of the borrower’s improved
repayment behavior following modification leading to a reversal of the previous significant increase
in credit risk.
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Where a modification does not lead to derecognition, the Bank calculates the modification gain/loss
comparing the gross carrying amount before and after the modification (excluding the provision for
expected credit loss). Then the Bank measures expected credit loss for the modified asset, where the
expected cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in calculating the
expected cash shortfalls from the original asset.

The Bank derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the asset’s cash flows
expire (including expiry arising from a modification with substantially different terms), or when the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assct are transferred to
another entity. If the Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Bank recognizes its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Bank retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Bank continues to
recognize the financial asset and recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain/loss that
had been recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in the
statement of income, with the exception of equity investment designated as measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income, where the cumulative gain/loss previously recognized in other
comprehensive income is not subsequently reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Write-off

Financial assets are written off when the Bank has no reasonable expectations of recovering the
financial asset. This is the case when the Bank determines that the borrower does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The Bank may apply enforcement activities

to financial assets written off. Recoveries resulting from the Bank’s enforcement activities will result
in impairment gains.

Presentation of Allowance for Expected Credit Less in the Consolidation Statement of
Financial Position

Loss allowances for expected credit loss are presented in the statement of financial position as
follows:

For financial assets measured at amortized cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of
the assets;

For debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income: no loss allowance
is recognized in the statement of financial position as the carrying amount is at fair value. However,

the loss allowance is included as part of the revaluation amount in the investments revaluation
TCSErve.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: as a provision; and

Where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the Bank
cannot identify the expected credit loss on the loan commitment component separately from those on
the drawn component: the Bank presents a combined loss allowance for both components. The
combined amount is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the drawn

component. Any excess of the loss allowance over the gross amount of the drawn component is
presented as a provision.

Financial Eiabilities and Equity

Debt and equity instruments issued are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

A financial Hability is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset, or to
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions potentially
unfavorable to the Bank, or a contract that will or may be settled in the Bank’s own equity
instruments and is a non-derivative contract for which the Bank is or may be obliged to deliver a
variable number of its own equity instruments, or a derivative contract over own equity that will or
may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash {or another financial asset) for a
fixed number of the Bank’s own equity instruments.
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Loans and Advances

‘Loans and advances’ captions in the consolidated statement of financial position include:
loans and advances measured at amortized cost; they are initially measured at fair value plus
incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently at their amortized cost using the effective
interest method;
Loans and advances mandatorily measured at FVIPL or designated as at FVTPL; these are
measured at fair value with changes recognized immediately in profit or loss; and
Lease receivables.
Interests and commissions on non-operating credit facilities granted to customers are suspended in
accordance with the Central Bank of Jordan instructions, the Regulatory authorities in Syria and the
Palestinian Monetary Authority whichever is strict.

Credit facilities and their related suspended interests are included in off-balance sheet provisions,
and that is in accordance with the board of directors’ decisions.

Suspended interests for the accounts that have legal cases are included in off-balance sheet
provisions, and that is in accordance with the board of directors’ decisions.

When the Group purchases a financial asset and simultaneously enters into an agreement to resell the
asset (or a substantially similar asset), at a fixed price on a future date (reverse repo or stock
borrowing), the consideration paid is accounted for as a loan or advance, and the underlying asset is
not recognized in the Group’s financial statements,

Eqguity Instruments

Paid up Capital

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Bank are recognized at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Treasury Shares

Repurchase of the Bank’s own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly in equity. No
gain or loss is recognized in statement of income on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Bank own equity instruments.

Compound Instruments

The component parts of compound instruments (e.g. convertible notes) issued by the Bank are
classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. A
conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Bank’s own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments. In the case there are non-closed related
embedded derivatives, these are separated first with the remainder of the financial liability being
recorded on an mortised cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon
conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at fair value through profit or loss or
‘other financial liabilities’.

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through the Statement of Prefit or loss

Financial Habilities are classified as at fair value through the statement of income when the financial
liability is (i) held for trading, or (i) it is designated as at fair value through the statement of Profit
and loss. A financial liability is classified as held for trading if

It has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term: or

On initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Bank
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

It is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.
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A financial liability, other than a financial liability held for trading, or contingent consideration that
may be paid by an acquirer as part of a business combination, may be designated as at fair value
through the statement of Profit or loss upon initial recognition if:

Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise; or

The financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Bank’s
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

It forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IFRS 9 permits the

entire hybrid (combined) contract to be designated as at fair value through the consolidated
statement of Profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any gains/losses
arising on re-measurement recognized in the statement of income to the extent that they are not part
of a designated hedging relationship. The net gain/loss recognized in the consolidated statement of
Profit and loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘net

income from other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss line item in the
consolidated statement of Profit and loss.

However, for non-derivative financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that Hability is recognized in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive Profit or loss would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in the consolidated statement of Profit or loss. The remaining amount of
change in the fair value of liability is recognized in the consolidated statement of income. Changes
in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognized in other
comprehensive income are not subsequently reclassified to the statement of Profit or loss; instead,
they are transferred to retained earnings upon derecognition of the financial liability.

For issued loan commitments and financial guaraniee contracts designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, all gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of Profit or loss.

In making the determination of whether recognizing changes in the liability’s credit risk in Profit or
loss comprehensive income will create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in the consolidated
statement of income, the Bank assesses whether it expects that the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk will be offset in the statement of income by a change in the fair value of another
financial instrument measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Other Financial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities, including deposits and borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net

of transaction costs. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition,
Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

The Bank derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Bank’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial

liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income or loss.

_27 .



BANK OF JORDAN

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
AMMAN — JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

When the Bank exchanges with the existing lender one debt instrument into another one with
substantially different terms, such exchange is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, the Bank accounts for
substantial modification of terms of an existing liability or part of it as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new liability. It is assumed that the terms are
substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the new terms,
including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using the original effective rate, is at

least 10 per cent different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the
original financial liability,

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Bank enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments some of which are held for trading
while others are held to manage its exposure to interest rate risk; credit risk; and foreign exchange
rate risk. Held derivatives include foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps, cross
currency interest rate swaps, and credit default swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain/loss is
recognized in the statement of income immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective
as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the statement of income
depends on the nature of the hedge relationship. The Bank designates certain derivatives as either
hedges of the fair value of recognized assets, liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedges),
hedges of highly probable forecast transactions, hedges of foreign currency risk of fimm

commitments (cash flow hedges), or hedges of net investments in foreign operations (net investment
hedges).

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognized as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a
negative fair value is recognized as a financial liability, A derivative is presented within other asset
or other liability if the remaining maturity of the instrument is more than 12 months, and it is not

expected to be realized or settled within 12-months. Other derivatives are presented within other
assets or other liabilities.

Embedded Derivatives

Derivatives embedded in financial liabilities or other non-financial asset host contracts are treated as
separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host
contracts, and the host contracts are not measured at fair value through profit or loss.

An embedded derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a non-current liability if the remaining
maturity of the hybrid instrument to which the embedded derivative relates is more than 12 months

and is not expected to be realized or settled within 12 months. Other embedded derivatives are
presented as other assets or other liabilities.

Financial Guarantee Contracts
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to

reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument,

Financial guarantee contracts issued by a group entity are initially measured at their fair values and,
if not designated as at fair value through profit or loss and not arising from a transfer of a financial
asset, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

The amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with IFRS 9; and

The amount initially recognized less, where appropriate, the cumulative amount of Profit or loss
recognized in accordance with the Bank’s revenue recognition policies.

Financial guarantee contracts not designated at fair value through the statement of Profit or loss are

presented as provisions in the consolidated statement of financial position, and the re-measurement
is presented in other revenue,

The Bank has not designated any financial guarantee contracts as at fair value through profit or loss.
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Commitments to Provide a Loan at a Below-Market Interest Rate

Commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate are initially measured at their fair

values and, if not designated as at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at the
higher of:

The amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with IFRS 9; and

The amount initially recognized less, where appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognized in accordance with the Bank’s revenue recognition policies.

Commitments to provide a loan below market rate not designated at fair value through profit or loss
are presented as provisions in the consolidated statement of financial position and the re-
measurement is presented in other revenue,

The Bank has not designated any commitments to provide a loan below market rate designated at
fair value through the statement of Profit or loss.

Derivatives

Derivatives for Trading

The fair value of derivative financial instruments held for trading (such as forward foreign exchange
contracts, future interest contracts, swaps, foreign exchange options rights) is recognized in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and fair value is determined at the prevailing market
rates. If this information is not available, the assessment methodology is disclosed, and the change in
fair value is recognized in the consolidated statement of Profit or loss.

Hedge Accounting

The Bank designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments in respect of foreign currency risk
and interest rate risk in fair value hedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges of net investments in foreign
operations, as appropriate. Hedges of foreign exchange risk on firm commitments are accounted for
as cash flow hedges. The Bank does not apply fair value hedge accounting of portfolio hedges of
interest rate risk. In addition, the Bank does not use the exemption to continue using IAS 39 hedge
accounting rules, i.e. the Bank applies IFRS 9 hedge accounting rules in full.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Bank documents the retationship between the hedging
instrument and the hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for
undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an
ongoing basis, the Bank documents whether the hedging instrument is effective in offsetting changes
in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk, which is when the
hedging relationships meet all of the following hedge effectiveness requirements:

There is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument;

The effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic
relationship; and

The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the
hedged item that the Bank actually hedges, and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the Bank
actually uses to hedge that quantity of the hedged item.

The Bank rebalances a hedging relationship in order to comply with the hedge ratio requirements
when necessary. In such cases discontinuation may apply to only part of the hedging relationship.
For example, the hedge ratio might be adjusted in such a way that some of the volume of the hedged
item is no longer part of a hedging relationship, hence hedge accounting is discontinued only for the
volume of the hedged item that is no longer part of the hedging relationship.

If a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectiveness requirement relating to the hedge
ratio but the risk management objective for that designated hedging relationship remains the same,
the Bank adjusts the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship (i.e. rebalances the hedge) so that it
meets the qualifying criteria again.
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In some hedge relationships, the Bank designates only the intrinsic value of options. In this case, the
fair value change of the time value component of the option contract is deferred in other
comprehensive income, over the term of the hedge, to the extent that it relates to the hedged item
and is reclassified from equity to the statement of income when the hedged item does not result in
the recognition of a non-financial item. The Bank’s risk management policy does not include hedges
of items that result in the recognition of non-financial items, because the Bank’s risk exposures
relate to financial items only.

The hedged items designated by the Bank are time-period related hedged items, which means that
the amount of the original time value of the option that relates to the hedged item is amortized from

equity to the statement of income on a rational basis (e.g. straight-line) over the term of the hedging
relationship.

In some hedge relationships, the Bank excludes from the designation the forward element of forward
contracts or the currency basis spread of cross currency hedging instruments. In this case, a similar
treatment is applied to the one applied for the time value of options, The treatment for the forward
element of a forward contract and the currency basis element is optional, and the option is applied on
a hedge-by-hedge basis, unlike the treatment for the time value of the options which is mandatory.
For hedge relationships with forwards, or foreign currency derivatives such as cross currency
interest rate swaps, where the forward element or the currency basis spread is excluded from the
designation, the Bank generally recognizes the excluded element in other comprehensive income,

The fair values of the derivative instruments used for hedging purposes and movements in the
hedging reserve are determined in equity.

Fair Value Hedges

The fair value change on qualifying hedging instruments is recognized in the statement of income
except when the hedging instrument hedges an equity instrument designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income. The
Bank has not designated fair value hedge relationships where the hedging instrument hedges an
equity instrument designated at fair value through other comprehensive income,

The carrying amount of a hedged item not already measured at fair value is adjusted for the fair
value change attributable to the hedged risk with a corresponding entry in the statement of Profit or
loss. For debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, the carrying
amount is not adjusted as it is already at fair value, but the part of the fair value gain or loss on the
hedged item associated with the hedged risk is recognized in the statement of Profit or loss instead
of other comprehensive income. When the hedged item is an equity instrument designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income, the hedging gain/loss remains in other comprehensive
income to match that of the hedging instrument.

Where hedging gains/losses are recognized in the statement of income, they are recognized in the
same line as the hedged item.

The Bank discontinues hedge accounting only when the hedging relationship (or a part thereof)
ceases to meet the qualifying criteria (after rebalancing, if applicable). This includes instances when
the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised. The discontinuation is accounted
for prospectively. The fair value adjustment to the carrying amount of hedged items for which the
effective interest rate method is used (i.e. debt instruments measured at amortized cost or at fair
value through other comprehensive income) arising from the hedged risk is amortized to the
statement of Profit or loss commencing no later than the date when hedge accounting is
discontinued.

Cash Flow Hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives and other qualifying hedging
instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognized in the cash flow
hedging reserve, a separate component of other comprehensive income, limited to the cumulative
change in fair value of the hedged item from inception of the hedge less any amounts recycled to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
reclassified to the statement of income in the periods when the hedged item affects the statement of
income, in the same line as the recognized hedged item. If the Bank no longer expects the

transaction to occur, that amount is immediately reclassified to the consolidated statement of income
or loss.

The Bank discontinues hedge accounting only when the hedging relationship (or a part thereof)
ceases to meet the qualifying criteria (after rebalancing, if applicable). This includes instances when
the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or where the occurrence of the
designated hedged forecast transaction is no longer considered to be highly probable. The
discontinuation is accounted for prospectively. Any gain/loss recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognized when the forecast
transaction is ultimately recognized in the statement of income. When a forecast transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the gain/loss accumulated in equity is reclassified and recognized
immediately in the consolidated statement of Profit or loss.

Hedges of Net Investments in Foreign Operations

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges.
Any gain/loss on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognized
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve.

Gains and losses on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge
accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve are reclassified to the statement of income in
the same way as exchange differences relating to the foreign operation as described above.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized
amounts and the Bank intends to either settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simuitaneously.

Accounts Managed on Behalf of Customers
These represent the accounts managed by the Bank on behalf of its customers, but do not represent

part of the Bank's assets, fees and commissions on such accounts are shown in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss, a provision against the impairment in the capital-guaranteed portfolios
managed on behalf of customers is taken.

Fair Value

Fair value is defined as the price at which an asset is to be sold or paid to convert any of the
liabilities in a structured transaction between the market participants on the measurement date,
irrespective of whether the price can be realized directly or whether it is estimated using another
valuation technique. When estimating the fair value of an asset or liability, the Bank takes into
consideration when determining the price of any asset or liability whether market participants are
required to consider these factors at the measurement date. The fair value for measurement and / or
disclosure purposes in these financial statemnents is determined on the same basis, except for
measurement procedures that are similar to fair value procedures and are not fair value such as fair
value as used in IAS 36.

In addition, fair value measurements are classified for the purposes of financial reporting to level (1),
(2) or (3) based on the extent to which the inputs are clear concerning the fair value measurements
and the importance of inputs to the full fair value measurements. These are as follows:

Level inputs (1): inputs derived from quoted (unadjusted) prices of identical assets or liabilities in
active markets that an enterprise can obtain on the measurement date;

Level inputs (2): inputs derived from data other than quoted prices used at level 1 and observable for
assets or liabilities, either directly or indirectly;

Level inputs (3): are inputs to assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market prices,
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Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Bank has an obligation on the date of the consolidated statement

of financial positicn arising from a past event and the costs to settle the obligation are both probable
and can be reliably measured.

Emplovees Benefits

Short term employee benefits

Employees short term benefits are recognised as expenses when delivering relevant services.
Liability is recorded against the related commitment when the bank is legaly obliged implicitly or

explicitly to pay for past services rendered by the employee and the liability can be estimated
reliably.

Other long term employee benefits
The banks liabilities relating to employees benefits are the future benefits amount that the employees
received regardless of their prior and current service periods. There benefits are discounted to

specify their current amount. Remeasurment is recognised in the consolidated statement for profit or
loss in the period that they emerged.

Income Tax
Income tax expenses represent accrued taxes and deferred taxes.

Income tax expenses are accounted for on the basis of taxable income. Taxable income differs from
declared income in the consolidated financial statements because the latter includes non-taxable
revenues or disallowed taxable expenses in the current year but deductible in subsequent years, tax
acceptable accumulated losses, and items not accepted for tax purposes or subject to tax.

Taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax rates according to the prevailing laws, regulations, and
instructions enforced in the countries where the Bank operates.

Deferred taxes are taxes expected to be paid or recovered as a result of temporary timing differences
between the value of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the value of
taxable amounts. Deferred tax is calculated on the basis of liability method in the consolidated
statement of financial position according to the rates expected to be applied when the tax liability is
settled, or deferred tax assets are recognized.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are reviewed as of the date of the consolidated

financial statements and reduced in case it is expected that no benefit or need will arise, partially or
totally.

Foreclosed Assets

Assets foreclosed by bank are presented at the consolidated statement of financial position within
other assets at fair value or at the value of their ownership by the bank whichever is less, at the date
of the consolidated financial statements these assets gets re-evaluated individually, and any
impairment in their value is recorded as a loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss but the
increase is not recorded as revenue, Subsequent value increase is taken to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss to the extent that it does not exceed the previously recorded impairment amount.
Starting from the year 2015 and in accordance with the Central Bank of Jordan Circular No.
10/1/4076 dated March 27, 2014 and Circular No. 10/1/2510 dated February 14, 2017 the bank has
started to calculate gradual provision against the assets foreclosed by the bank in exchange of credit
facilities that have been in possession for more than 4 years. Central Bank of Jordan issued Circular
No. 10/1/16239 dated November 21, 2019 approving the extension of Circular No. 10/1/2150 dated
February 14, 2017, in which it confirmed postponing the provision calculation until the end of year
2020 and amending the second clause of it. In accordance with the Central Bank of Jordan circular

No.10/3/16628 dated January 27/2020, circular No 15/10/2510 was extended till December 31,
2021.
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Mortgaged Financial Assefs

These financial assets are mortgaged to third parties with the right to sell or re-mortgage. These
financial assets are revalued according to the accounting policies at the date of initial classification,
Repurchase and Resale Agreements

Assets sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase at a specified future date (repos) will
continue to be recognized in the Bank’s consolidated financial statements, This is due to the Bank’s
continuing control of these assets and the fact that exposure to the risks and rewards of these assets
remains with the Bank. These assets continue to be evaluated in accordance with the applied
accounting policies (where the buyer has the right to use these assets (sell or re-lien), they are
reclassified as liened financial assets). The proceeds of the sale are recorded under loans and
borrowings. The difference between the sale and the repurchase price is recognized as an interest
expense over the agreement term using the effective interest rate method.

Assets purchased with a corresponding commitment to resell at a specified future date (reverse
repos) are not recognized in the Bank’s consolidated financial statements since the Bank is not able
to control these assets or the associated risks and benefits. The related payments are recognized as
part of deposits at banks and financial institutions or direct credit facilities as applicable, and the
difference between the purchase and resale price is recognized as interest income over the agreement
term using the effective interest rate method.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment loss in
its value. Moreover, depreciation is calculated (except for lands) when the assets are ready for use on
the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of these assets as follows:

Yo
Buildings 2-15
Equipment and Fixtures 15
Furniture 9
Vehicles 15
Computers 15
Improvements and Decorations 15

When the carrying amounts of Property and Equipment exceed their recoverable values, assets are
written down, and impairment losses are recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The useful lives of Property and Equipment are reviewed at the end of each year. In case the
expected useful life is different from what was determined before, the change in estimate is recorded
in the following years,

Property and Equipment are derecognized when disposed of or when there is no expected future
benefit from their use.

Intangible Assets

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of acquisition or purchase of
investment in an associate or subsidiary company over the Bank’s share in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets at the date of acquistion. Goodwill arising from the investment in subsidiaries will
be separately shown under intangible assets, while that arising from the investment in associates will
be shown as part of investment in associates and subsequently adjusted for any impairment losses.

Goodwill is allocated to each of the Bank’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units
for the purpose of impairment testing.

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, at the date of the consolidated financial statements, if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the estimated recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit

or group of cash-generating units is less than their carrying amount. Moreover, impairment losses
are charged to the consolidated statement of Profit or loss.
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Other Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired through business combination are recorded at their fair value on that date.
Other intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost.

Intangible assets are classified based on the assessment of their useful life to definite and indefinite.
Intangible assets with definite lives are amortized over their useful economic life, while intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are assessed for impairment at each reporting date, and impairment
loss is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Internally generated intangible assets are not capitalized and are expensed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Indications of impairment of intangible assets are reviewed, and their useful economic lives are
reassessed at each reporting date. Adjustments are reflected in the current and subsequent periods.

Computer Software’s
Computer Software’s are shown at cost at the time of purchase and amortized at an annual rate of
15% - 20%.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets except for
deferred tax assets to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated,

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to
selk.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognized.

Foreign Currencies

For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position of each
entity of the Group are presented in the functional currency unit of the Bank and the presentation
currency of the consolidated financial statements.

The standalone financial statements of the Bank's subsidiaries are prepared. Moreover, the
standalone financial statements of each entity of the Barnk are presented in the functional currency in
which it operates. Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of the Bank are
recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of those transactions. At the balance sheet
date, financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of
exchange prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are not
reclassified.

Exchange differences are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in
which they arise except for:

Foreign exchange differences on transactions made in order to hedge foreign exchange risk.

Foreign exchange differences on monetary items required to / from a foreign operation that are not
planned to be settled, are unlikely to be settled in the near future (and therefore, these differences
form part of the net investment in the foreign operation), and are initially recognized in the
comprehensive income statement and reclassified from equity to the income statement when selling
or partially disposing of net investment.

In order to present the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Bank's
foreign operations are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at the statement of financial
position date. Income is also converted to average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates change significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates are used on the date
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of the transactions. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognized in other consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and collected in a separate line item of equity.

When foreign operations are disposed of (i.e. disposal of the Bank’s entire share from foreign
operations, or resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary in foreign operations, or partial
exclusion by its share in a joint arrangement, or an associate company of a foreign nature in which
the share held is a financial asset), all foreign exchange differences accumulated in a separate item
under equity in respect of that transaction attributable to the Bank owners are reclassified to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

In addition, in respect of the partial disposal of a subsidiary involving foreign operations that do not
result in the Bank losing control of the subsidiary, its share of the accumulated exchange differences
is credited to net comprehensive income at a rate that is derecognized and not recognized in the
consolidated statement of Profit or loss. For all other partial liquidation (such as partial liquidation of
associates or joint ventures that do not result in the Bank losing significant infiuence or joint co

ntrol), the share of accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Leases

The Bank has adopted IFRS 16, "Leases”, which supersedes the existing guidelines on leases,
including IAS 17 "Leases" and International Interpretation (4) "Determining whether an
arrangement confains a lease and SIC Interpretation (15) "Operating leases - incentives” and SIC
interpretation (27) "evaluating the substance of transactions involving the legal form of a lease".

The Bank has adopted the second option of the modified retrospective approach of accounting -
which allows comparative figures presented under IAS 17 "Leases” not to be restated — which is
permitted under IFRS 16 at the first-time adoption of IFRS 16 over the individual Operating leases
(for each lease separately), the right to use leased assets is generally measured at the amount of the
lease obligation using the interest rate at initial application.

The Bank determines whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is considered or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration as the definition of a lease in the standard.

Bank acting as a lessee

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Bank
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative
stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of property the Bank has elected not to separate
non-lease components and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease
component,

The Bank recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencenient date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the
underlying asset to the Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset
reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be
depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as
those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability,

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be
readily determined, the Bank uses its incremental borrowing rate.

The Bank determines the borrowing rate by Analyzing its loans from various external sources and
making some adjustments to reflect the lease terms and the type of leased assets.
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Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at
the commencement date;

the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to
terminate the lease.

The Iease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is
a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

When lease liabilities are measured using this method, the adjustments are made to related right of

use asset or in the consolidated statement of profit or loss if the net book value for the related right
of use asset was not fully depreciated.

The right-of-use of assets are presented within property and equipment caption and the related lease

liabilities are presented in other liabilities (Borrowed funds) in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Bank has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease Habilities for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets, the Bank recognizes the
lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Bank as lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether the lease is a finance lease
or an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the
case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment,
the Group considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic
life of the asset.

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment requirements in IFRS 9 to the net investment
in the lease. The Group further regularly reviews estimated unguaranteed residual values used in
calculating the gross investment in the lease.

For contracts entered into before 1 January 2019, the Group determined whether the arrangement
was or contained a lease based on the assessment of whether:

fulfilment of the arrangenient was dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets; and
the arrangement had conveyed a right to use the asset.

As a lessee

The groub did not have any finance leasees under IAS (17).

Assets held under other leases were classified as operating leases and were not recognized in the
Group’s statement of financial position. Payments made under operating leases were recognized in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received were
recognized as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease.
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As a lessor

When the Group acted as a lessor, it determined at lease inception whether each lease was a finance
lease or an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Group made an overall assessment of whether the lease transferred
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this was
the case, then the lease was a finance lease; if not, then it was an operating lease. As part of this

assessment, the Group considered certain indicators such as whether the lease was for the major part
of the economic life of the asset.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances with central banks and balances with banks and
financial institutions, less balances due to banks and financial institutions maturing within three
months and restricted funds.

Earnings per Share

The Group presents basic and diluted EPS data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss that is attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the weighted-
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by
adjusting the profit or loss that is attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted-average
number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Cash and Balances with Central Banks

This item consists of the following:

December 31,
2020 2019
D D
Cash at vaults 66,521,033 72,423,711
Balances at Central Banks: - -
Current accounts and demand deposits 78,251,193 45,510,029
Term and notice deposits 112,910,906 95,075,098
Certificates of deposit 282,000 69,513,000
Statutory cash reserve 91,663,345 102,130,953
349,628,477 384,652,791
Less: Expected credit loss (90,488) (256,615)
349,537,989 384,396,176
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- Balances at central banks amounted to JD 283,107,444 as of December 31, 2020 (JD 312,229,080 as of

December 31, 2019), these balances are distributed to credit stages as follows:

As of
December
As of December 31, 2020 31,2019
Stage Stage Stage
Item One Two Three Total Total
Balance at the beginning of the year 312,229,080 - - 312229080 286,177,151
New balances during the year 50,576,970 - - 50,576,970 63,185,504
Paid balances (79,698,6006) - - (79,698,606) (37,133,575)
283,107,444 283,107,444 312,229,080
Transferred to stage one - - - - -
Transferred to stage two - - - - -
Transferred to stage three - - - - -
Changes due to the adjusments - - - - -
Adjusment due to exchange rates
fluctuations - - - - )
Balance at the End of the Year 283,107,444 - - 283,107,444 312,229,080
Distribution of the total balances with central banks according to the banks internal credit rating
categories was as follows:
As of December 31, 2020 Asof
December
Stage One Stage Two 31,2019
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage
Item Level Level Level Level  Three Total Total
Credit risk rating based
on the Bank's internal
credit rating system:
1 220,427,349 - - - - 220,427,349 247,706,557
2 - - - - - - -
3 - - - - - - -
4 - - - - - - -
5 - - - - - - -
6 62,680,095 - - - - 62,680,095 64,522,523
7 - - - - . - -
8 - - - - - - -
9 - - - - - - -
10 - - - - - - -
Total 283,107,444 - - - - 283,107.444 312,229,080
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- The expected credit loss allowance movement summary was as follows:

As of December 31, 2020

Stage One Stage Two As of
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage December
Item Level Level Level Level Three Total 31, 2019

Balance at the beginning of the year 256,615 - - - - 236,615 194,054
Expected credit loss on new

balances during the year 21,966 - - - - 21,966 172,243
Expected credit loss reversal on

Paid balances (54,503) - - - - (54,503) (109,642)

224,078 - - - - 224,078 256,655

Transferred to stage one - - - - - - -

Transferred to stage two - - - - - - -

Transferred to stage three - - - - - - -

Changes due to the adjusments - - - - - - -
Adjusment due to exchange rates

fluctuations (133,590) - - - - (133,590) (40)

Balance at the End of the Year 90,488 “ - - - 90,488 256,615

- Statutory cash reserve, amounted to JD 91,663,345 as of December 31, 2020 (JD 102,130,953 as of
December 31, 2019).

Restricted balances other than cash reserve amounted to JD 2,275,906 as of December 31, 2020 (JD
2,440,098 as of 31 December 2019).

Term and notice Deposit balance includes JD 10,635,000 maturing within a period exceeding three
months as of December 31, 2020 (JD 10,635,000 as of December 31, 2019).

Expected credit losses allowance was not calculated in accordance with the requirements of the
International Financial Reporting Standard (9) on the Central Bank of Jordan balances as at
December 31, 2020 and 2019 that is in accordance with the Central Bank of Jordan Instructions

No.13/2018 dated June 6, 2018, regarding the application of International Financial Reporting
Standard No. (9).
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8.Balances with Banks and Finaneia! Institutions

This item consists of the following: Local Banks and

Foreign Banls and
Financial Institutions Financiaf Institutions Total
As of December 34,
20620 2059 2020 2019 2028 29
D 12 1D D D D
Current accounts and demand deposits - 172,137,756 121,074,922 172,137,756 121,074,922
Deposits maturing within 3 months or less 15,000,000 48,376,500 3,588,480 18,874,863 18,588,480 67,251,363
15,006,000 48,376,500 175,726,236 139,949,785 190,726,236 188,326,285
Less: Expected credit loss (69} (263) (3,837 (2,695) {3,906} {2,958}
14,999,931 48,176,237 175,724,519 139,947,090 194,722,330 188,323,327
Distribution of the total balances with banks and financial institutions according to the banks internal credit rating categeries was as follows:
As of December
Asof D bher 31, 2620 31,2019
Stage One Stage Two
Item Fondividual Level  Collective Level  Endividus! Level  Collective Level Stage Three Total Total
Credit risk rating based on the Bank's internal
credit rating systen;
! 121,274,657 - - - - -
z 60,366,896 - - - - 121,274,657 119,503,328
3 5,464,250 - - - - 60,366,896 13,534,979
4 69,967 - - - - 5,464,250 17,968,927
5 3,448,318 - - - - 69,967 2,742,570
5 - - - - - 3,448,318 34,474,000
7 - - - - - - 101,581
8 - - - - 101,097 101,097 -
9 - - - - - - -
16 - - - - $,051 1,05% -
Total 190,624,088 - - - 102,148 190,726,236 188,326,285
Balances at Banks® and finarcial institutions credit stages distribution was as follows-
As of December
As of December 31, 2020 31,2009
Stape One Stage Twe
Item Individuak Level _Collective Level _Individual Level Collective Level Stage Three Total Total
Batance at the beginning of the year 188,224,704 - 101,581 - - 188,326,285 152,122,328
Impairment loss for new balances during the year 70,375,920 - ; - - 70,375,920 141,274,189
Paid balances (64,324.977) - - - - (64,324977} {66,390,140)
194,275,647 - - - - 194,377,228 197,006,375
Transferred to Stage One “ - - - - -
Transferred te Stage Two . - - - - -
Transferred to Stage Three (645} - {104,3581) - 102,226 - -
Im_pacz on allowance - at year _e.-nd due to _ B . 625 625 50,019
adiusbnents amoni stages duning the vear -
Changes due te the adjustments 1,186,955 - - - - (1,186,855) (8,730,109)
Adjustment due to exchange rates fuctuations {2,463.959) - - - {703) {2,461.662) -
Balance at the End of the Year 190, 624,0_2}3a - - - 102 148 169,726,236 188,326,285
The maovement on the expected credit loss provision was as follows:
As of December
As of December 31, 2020 31,2019
Stage One Stage Two
Ytem Individual Level Collective Level Individual Level Collective Level Stage Three Total Total
Bal?.nce at the bf:ginm'ng of the year afler IFRS 2527 _ 431 ; _ 2958 1,634
{9) implementation
Credit loss on new balances during the year 72 - - - - 702 58
£xpected credit loss reversal- Paid balances (282) - - - - {282} {1,138)
2047 - - - - 378 2554
Transferred to Stage Cne - - - - - - -
Transferred to Stage Two - - - - - . -
Transferred to Stage Three {645) - {431) - 1,076 - -
Impact on allowance - at year _end due to . . . _ 678 578 131
adjustments among stages duringe the year
Changes due to the adjustments 1,589 - - ~ - 1,58¢ {23)
Adjustment due te exchange rates fluctuations (1,636) - - - {703) (L,739) (2}
Balance at thie End of the Year 23855 - - - 1,951 1906 2558

Non-interest bearing balances at banks and financial institutions amounted to JI¥ 50,413,347 as of Drecember 31, 2020 (D 20,497,643 as of December 31, 2619),

Restricted balances at banks and financial institutions amounied to JD 3,037,779 as of December 31, 2020 {JD 3,023,348 as of December 31, 2019),
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aisits wit nks and Figaneial Instituti

Thus item consisls of the llowing:

Deposits matuning withiss 3 o 6 months
Dapozits matring within 6 to 9 months
Deposits maturing within 9 months 1o a year
Deposits maturing after | year

Less: Expected crdit loss

Dustnbution of the tolal deposits with banks and financial mnstitutions accozding to the banks imternal credit rating categones was as follows:

Item

Credit raung categotics based on the Bank's raling system:

0 0 W B R e

=
E

- Deposits wilh banks and financial mslitutions credit stages distribution was as follows:

Item
Ealance at the beginmng of the year
New batances during the year
Paid balances

Transferred to Stage One

Transferresd to Stage Two

Transferred to Stage Three

Changes due to the adjustments

Wrllen off- Balances

Adstment due te exchangs rates fluctualions
Balance at the End of the Year

The movement on the expected credit loss provision was as follows:

Eem
Balance at the beganning of the year
Credit loss on new balances durine the vear
Expected credit less reversal- Paid balances
Transferred to Stage One
Transferred to Stage Tuo
‘Transferred to Stage Three
Changes due to the adjustments
Witten off- Balances
Adustment due to exchange rates Auctualions
Balance at the End of the Year

“There are no restncied deposils as of December 31, 2020 and 2019,

Lacal Banks and Farrign Banks and
Financial Institutéons Financial Institutions Tatal
As of [recember 31, As of December 31, As of December 3,
2016 2019 2020 2019 2020 2009
EHo 1D i Jn iD n
- 25,000,000 564,000 11,002,225 564,000 36,007,225
- - - 1,051,089 - 2,051,089
§9,000,000 146,085,000 - 24,106,000 §9.000,000 170,191,000
49,004,000 171,085,000 564,000 37,164,314 89,56£,000 208,249,314
{38.428) (88.612) (5) (36911 (38430 (125,549)
88961572 170996388 563,995 37.827,377 89.525 567 208,123,765
As of Decembier
As of Becembier 31, 2020 31,2009
Stage Gne Stage Two
Padividuak Level Collective Level Individual Level Callective Level Stage Three “Fota Total
- - - - - - L0, 225
74,000,000 - - - - 14,006,000 100,000,600
15,040,600 B - - - 15,000,000 27,051,089
K . R . . . 70,191,000
564,008 - - - - 364,000 -
89,564,000 - 89,564,000 108,249,314
Asof December
As of December 31, 2020 31, 201%
Stage One Siage Two
tndividual Level Collective Level Individual Level Callective Level Stage Three Total Totat
208,249,314 - - - - 208,249,314 235,452,225
384000 - - - - 564,000 2051089
£109.249,314) - b - L3 (109.249.314) (29,254,000
93564000 99564000 208,243,314
{16,000,600) - - - - (10,000,000} -
$9.564,000 - - - - 39,364,000 208.249.314
As of December
As of December 31, 2020 31,2019
Stage Oae Stage Two
Individual Level Celleetive Levet Individual Love) Collective Level Stage Three Total Total
123,549 - - - - 125,549 16,998
6,103 - - - - 4101 112,242
(106,995) - - - - (108,995) {3,691
13776 - - - - 13776 -
38,431 . . N - 38433 125540
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Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

This item consists of the following;

As of December 31,
2020 2019
JD JD
Shares listed in focal active markets 32,883 512,720
Shares unlisted in local active markets™ 124,159 115,996
Right to receive financial assets at fair value 15,000,000 -
15,157,042 628,716

* The fair value for unlisted investments had been calculated in accordance with the Bank’s share of the net

assets of these Investments based on the latest audited financial statements for the Company in which the
Bank invested.

**This item represents financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represented by a contingent right to

receive financial assets that have been recognized by the bank in accordance with the requirements of
International Accounting Standard no. (32} and to comply with the agreement signed on December 23, 2018
which is considered an integral part of it and related to the sale of capital assets, these assets have been
evaluated at it's fair value on the date of the consolidated financial statements, which resulted m valuation
profits with the same amount.

11. Financial Asseis at Fair Value Through Comprehensive Income

This item consists of the following:
) As of December 31,

2020 2019

JD JD

Shares listed in local active markets 4,587,610 45,214,112
Shares unlisted in local active markets* 2,455,669 2,941.952
Shares listed in foreign active markets 5,411,781 5,580,083
Shares unlisted in foreign active markets® 46,726,887 1,219,501
Total of equity instruments 59,181,947 54,955,648
Corporate bonds 25,344 463 25,909,988
Total of debt instruments 25,344,463 25,909,988

84,526,410 80,865,636

- Total cash dividends from financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income amounted to JD
510,741 for the year ended December 31, 2020 (JD 547,272 for the year ended December 31, 2019),

*  The fair value for unlisted investments had been calculated in accordance with the Bank’s share of the net
assets of these Investments based on the lastest audited financial statements for the Company in which the
Bank invested or observable market inputs.

ES

During the year 2020, the Bank has invested in unlisted financial assets at foreign active markets which
resulted in a gain from initial recognition with an amount of JD 3,652,011 in accordonce with the
requirments of International financial reporting standard No. (9).
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Debt instruments included in the financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income distibution according to the bank’s
internal credit rating was as follows:

Asof
December 31,

Item As of December 31, 2020 2019
Credit risk rating based on the Stage Two
Bank's internal credit rating Stage One Individual Stage
system Individual Level Eevel TFhree Total Taotal
] R R R - -
2 - - - - -
3 - - - - .
4 - - R - -
5 18,129,573 - - 18,129,573 14,875,218
6 7,214,890 - - 7,214,890 11,034,770
7 - - - -
8 - - - - -
9 . - - . .
10 - - - - -
Total 25,344,463 - - 25,344,463 25,909,988

The movement of debt instruments included in the financial assest at fair value through comprehensive income during the year was
as follows:

As of
December
As of December 31, 2020 31,2019
Stage Stage Stage

ftem One Two Three Total Total
Fair value at the beginning of the year 25,909,988 - - 25,909,988 -
New investments during the year - - - - 25,909,988
Matured investiments during the year - - - - -
25,909,988 - - 25,909,988 25,909,988
Transferred to stage one - - - - -
Transferred to stage two - - - - -
Transferred to stage three - - - - -
Changes due to the adjusments (565,525) - - (365,525) -
Balance at the End of the Year 25,344,463 - - 25,344,463 25,909,988

The expected credit loss allowance movement summary against debt instruments included in the financial assets at fair value through
comprehensive income during the year was as follows:

As of
As of December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Stage Stage Stage

Item One Two Three Total Total
Balance at the beginning of the Year 77,271 - - 71271 -
New invesment during the year - - - - 77,271
Matured invesments - - - - -
77,271 - - 77,271 77,271
Transferred to stage one - - - - “
Transferred to stage two - - - - -
Transferred to stage three - - - - -
Changes due to the adjusments 134,933 - - 134,933 -
Adjustments due to exchange rates fluctations - - - - -
Balance at the End of the Year* 212,204 - - 212,204 77,271

*Expected credit loss allowance above was not presented in the consolidated statement of financial position due to fact that
the book value of investments in bonds at fair value through comprehensive income represents their fair value.
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12. Direct Credit Facilities at amortized cost
This item consists of the following:

December 31,
2020 2019
JD JD
Individual (Retail Custemers): 557,702,675 488,438,680
Overdraft accounts 13,786,902 12,835,949
Loans and discounted bills* 518,981,439 451,086,250
Credit cards 24,934,334 24,516,481
Real estate loans 259,123,143 238,577,717
Corporate: 621,426,028 681,832,288
Large corporate customers 375,831,841 438,140,685
Overdraft accounts 65,042,272 74,961,948
Loans and discounted bills* 310,789,569 363,178,737
SMEs 245,594,187 243,691,603
Overdraft accounts 50,666,441 55,061,893
Loans and discounted bills* 194,927,746 188,629,710
Government and public sector - 181,364,510 122,691,256
Total 1,619,616,356 1,531,539,941
Less: expected credit loss provision {141,725,555) (112,104,787)
Less: Interest in suspense {11,151,703) (9,909,717)
Net Direct Credit Facilities at amortized cost 1,466,739,098 1,409,525 437

Net of interest and commission received in advance amounting to JD 16,427,772 as of December 31, 2020
(JD 17,143,660 as of December 31, 2019).

- Non-performing credit facilities amounted to JD 137,962,291 representing (8/5%) of the direct credit
facilities balance for the year (JD 114,630,680 representing 7/5 %) for prior year).

- Non-performing credit facilities after deducting the suspended interest amounted to JD 126,812,522
representing (7/8%) of direct credit facilities after deducting the suspended interest for the year (JD
104,723,259 representing (6/9%) for prior year).

- Credit facilities granted to and guaranteed by the Jordanian Government amounted to JD 12,813,252
representing (0/79%) of total direct credit facilities for the year (JD 32,598,476 representing (2/13%) for the
prior year). Moreover, credit facilities granted to the public sector in Palestine amounted to  JD 57,511,269

(JD 46,734,985 for the prior year). In addition to credit facilities granted to foreign governments amounted
to JD 20,158,288,
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Total direct credit facilitics credit stages distribution was as follows:

As of December 31, 2020
Stage One Stage Two
Tter Individual Level Collective Level Individual Level Collective Level Stage Three Total

Balance at the beginning of the year 663,999,644 619,133,135 100,655,921 33,100,561 14,630,680 1,531,539,94t
New facilities during the year 77,492,024 133,583,810 900,782 1,312,784 2,851,410 216,140,810
Facilities paid (32,342,669} (45,279,106) {4,719,654) (1,753,602) (4,952,378) (89,047,409)

709,148,999 707,457,839 96,837,049 32,659,743 112,529,712 1,658,633,342
Transferred to Stage One 61,429,998 21,017,814 (61,429,998) (19,765,843) (1,251,580) -
Transferred to Stage Two (46,520,596} (9,287,954) 47,943,747 10,194,415 (2,331,212) -
Transferred to Stage Three (14,702,520} (3,161,359 {9,622,678) (6,464,342} 33,950,899 -
Effect on the allowance at the end of the year as a result of
classification changes between the three stages during the year {11,668,629) {630,614) {5,285,853) (985,622) (1,006,282) (19,577,000)
Changes due to the adfustments (16,673,567} 10,134,796 3,296,048 (38,184) 1,817,435 (1,463,472)
Written-off Balances - - . . (595,302) {595,203)
Adjustment due to exchange rates fluctuations (8,212,611) (102,174) {3,866,352) {49,096) (5,151,078) (17,381,311)
Balance at the End of the Year 672,800,674 725,428,348 67,873,963 15,551,080 137,962,291 1,619,616,356
- The combined movement the total expected credit foss allowance was as follows:

As of December 31, 2620
Stage One Stage Two
Item Individuat Level Collective Level  Individual Level  Colfective Level
Stage Three Total
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,033,638 5,357,779 11,796,862 984,202 91,932,306 112,104,787
Credit loss on new balances during the year 302,216 660,668 214,720 5,331,446 6,378,560 12,887,610
Expected credit loss reversal of matured facilities (120,274) {346,518) (1,631,171 {18,841) (2,750,512) (4,867,316)
2,215,580 5,671,929 10,380,411 6,296,807 95,560,354 120,125,081

Transferred to Stage One 556,325 829,225 (556,325) (182,354) (646,871) -
Transferred to Stage Two (104,643} (68,643) 449,000 634,302 (910,016) -
Transferred 1o Stage Three (11,388) (36,702) (86,163) {66,243) 200,996 -
Effect on the allowance at the end of the year as a result of
classification changes between the three stages during the year (400,893) {728,991) 34,533 (555,607) 28,836,461 27,185,503
Changes due to the adjustments (448,439) {1,943,611) 186,924 (633,827) 186,866 (2,472,087)
Written off~ Balances - - - - (564,671) (564,671)
Adjustment due 1o exchange rates fluctuations (1,845) (5,160) (39,551) (20,710) (2,481,005) (2,548,271)
Balance at the End of the Year 1,804,197 3,718,047 10,368,829 5,452,368 120,382,114 141,725,555

_40 -



-

LBLPOITII 0E'7E6'T6 T0TFE6 TYBIGLT ) GLLTLSE'S BEY'ELT A¥DA DU JO P AN 3¥ AU
191180 GEF 18F - (£2) ) (ig) suonenIany sa1es a5UBYI%a Of anp wusulsnipy
(Lra'sss™) (Lr6'ses T} - - - - saoup[eg ~JjO BANLIAM
(Lo¥'8LL) (50£'+E9°1) (1zi'zen) $68°CE $L0°089 16646 siuoUnsnipe Ayl 0) anp safuey)
£81'¢6S° 1T 065'068'EC (Leo'19v°'1) SLE'L0T (629'L86) £922°9%) 160K o FuLINp 55EIS 9011 U UG SIFUEGD LONEILIESE
0 1|nsal e sz J2ak o) JO PUD AU 1B JJUBMO[[E JU) U0 1531)4
- 8659 (Fiv's82) (z£8'98) (rpe'es) (806°LE) sany] aeig o) paLajsulL,
- (eTe'ps1) 06+'999°1 TL8'POS (8s8'sE1) (181°8¢2) om], o3mi§ 01 paLIJSUR],
- (6¥L'v08) (816°297) Qg1'80n) £99°TLO° 1E1°801 auQ sfelg 01 paugjsueL],
LSBPIELE £H0'SPGTL ZOEPREL LOL981°LT €LB'SRLY ZE6'T96°]

(199°850%61) (660°LES 1} (bSr'srr) (L0z'¢59°e) 9LL'ETe) (szI°L6) SIUIIOR] PAIMIEN JO {ESIaN3I SSO[ UPAIS paraadyy]
FLS'SIF'Y] TEY960°TL 664718 048691 LOFEL0" | 999'v1 € Teaf By} FuLMp SIDUB[EY MAU U0 SS0[ PALT
#F9¢00°L6 OIS CBECL LEGFII' PPSTLY P TPE980' Y 16E°SPL'] g2k ay) Jo Sumutiag du) e Sdug| ey

1101, Dy g, ARG PAIT 3NN [PAVF [ENPIAIPU]  PAVTIABMIOD  AIT [uRpIAIpU] 13y
oaL], 280)1G auQ o8e1g
6107 “FE AU JO SV
SMO[]0} SC 52 2DUTMOFE S50 1IP2ID Pa3Iadxa JuI0) ) JUIWIAOLE PIVIQUIOD St ], -
IPG66ES LS| 089°0E9° i1 195°001°¢¢ 126°559°001 SEIEST6IY PPO666°£99 A¥ax A1) JO pusf 9y JT duT[BY

(5L8'9T) (89t'9) (96¢'T (vL6'®) ($02) (reT'6) suopeniany sales afueyoxa 01 anp wawisnlpy

{r96'198°1) (#96°198°1) - - - - SaoUR[RE JJO-UANIM,

{es°L16'vTI) (es6'1EL'D) (618'cL¥) (pe0'sel'D (rL6'60E"91) (£8£"9£T'601) sjusunsnipe sy o) anp saduey)

(901°¢99°¢ 1) (3088887} (L09'9£6) (629°11T'L1) (889°000°1) 9L9'TLE OL 10K 2 Supnp Saffess a0:1 aY) UGAMIDG SOFUELD LONTILISSE]D

10 7)nsal 2 §8 183K 2Y) JO P AL} 1B 20UBMO[]R J1[) U0 19337
- LLT'LEY OF (16£998°L) (860°161°9) (99¢'zTE's) (TTt'6L0'61) 021y oFe1g 0} PaIID)SUERI]
- (cor'Lzs'n FISTRLGET LPL'96F P01 (180'966'07) (£L0'256'¢01) oav], 27EIS 01 pALISUBL],
- (eTs'Lb0') Or8'vTL's) (£29'$H£'¢T) £9¢°TLL01 £L9°SPE'ET suQ 2RI ) paLJsuel],
0P I0TLY'T 9TT'LET 98 00TrT16E TLO'IS0'FF £80°010°rS9 LS¥'855°858

(0s9"pEe’L6) (s62'€TL'®) (es1'Tzsn) (501018'D) (362'E0S°€S) (69L'0Lb"05) pied saor
0z6'9zT a1 £55°607°C SSP'0L6'T STH'CE0'E 780122911 TOF'0LL'SY pak oy Bupnp SO AN
OLL'QIL'CLS 856'05L°16 8T6'SL6°LE 6pLCER 10€'162°168 PE8'POT0CS Jeak o Busuuiag ag) e 23ue(eg

0], aa1q g, a8mg LB |

[3A2F 2A1122][0D)

19ATY [ERpIAIPH]

[3ADT 241339107}

194277 prup

oA, 98NS

M) IDRIG

GE0Z ‘1€ JOQUIada(t 30 sV

SMO[[0) SB SEA UORNALOSIP 52FeIS 1P S[I9% HPIL POHP (MO,

SINTWIELVLS TVIDNVNIA QALYAITOSNOD THE OL STLON
NVAHOL ~ NVININY

{(ANVJIINOD ALINIT ONKITOHIAVHS DT 1)

NYQUOr 40 NV



BANK OF JORDAN

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

AMIMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Expected credit loss allowance against credit facilities

‘The following is the movement on the expeeted credit loss allowance againts direct credit facilities

Balance — Beginning of the year

[mpairment foss of new facilities during the year
Reversed from impairment loss of the (settled) balances

Effect on the allowance at the end of the year as a result of
classification changes between the three stages during the
year

Changes due to the adjustments

Written-off balances

Adjusiment due to exchange rates fluctuations

Balance at the End of the Year

Distributed as follow:
Allowance on individual level

Allowance on collective level
Balance at the End of the Year

Balance — Beginning of the year
Impainment ioss of new facilities during the year

Reversed from impaiement loss of the (settled) balances

Transterred to Stage One
Transferred to Stage Two

Transferred to Stage Three

Effect on the allowance at the end of the year as a result of
ciassification changes between the three stages during the
year

Changes due to the adjustments

Written-off balances

Adjustment due to exchange rates fluctuations

Balance at the End of the Year

Distributed as fallow:

Allowance on individual tevel

Allowance on collective level

Bafance at the End of the Year

As of December 31, 2020
Corporates
Government
Individual (Retail  Real Estate  Large Corporate and Public
Customers) Loans Customers SMEs sector Total
JD JD JD ID JD JD

36,194,481 7,134,274 42,395,693 26,037,867 342,472 112,104,787

8,480,250 2,105,683 1,367,495 897,315 36,867 12,887,610
{1,724,671) (680,587) (2,325,393) (136,665) - (4,867,316)

42,950,060 8,559,370 41,437,795 26,798,517 379,339 120,125,081

4,213,373 1,860,072 14,492,439 6,619,619 - 27,185,503
(2,326,083) (248,493) 119,475 24,266 (41,252} (2,472,087)
(82,971) - - (481,700) - (564,671)
(134,746) (83,297) {2,158,565) (171,663) - (2,548,271)

44,619,633 10,087,652 53,891,144 32,789,039 338.087 141,725,555

10%,199 1,532,208 53,747,406 32,239,778 338,087 87,958,768

44,518,434 3,555,354 143,738 549,261 - 53,766,787
44,619,633 10,087,652 53,891,144 32,789,039 338,087 141,725,555

As of December 31, 2019
Corporates
Government
Individual (Retail Real Estate Large Corporate and Public
Customers) Loans Customoers SMEs sector Total
JD JD ID JD JD JD

29,508,935 6,150,599 39,872,490 21,263,030 204,590 97,004,644
9,626,128 1,125,767 2,539,558 1,116,262 11,159 14,418,874
(7,598,587 (1,383,027) (7,575.493) (2,501,554) - {i9,058,661)
31,536,476 5,893,339 34,836,555 19,882,738 115,749 92,364,857

4,376,096 1,062,844 6,819,728 9,340,515 - 21,593,183
241,454 178,180 611,314 (1,936,138) 126,723 (778,467
(87,682) - - {1,468,263) - (1,555,947)

134,137 (89 128,096 219,017 - 481,161
36,194,481 7,134,274 42,395,693 26,037,867 342,472 112,104,787
168,410 1,456,259 42,249,329 25,544,883 342,472 69,761,353
36,026,071 5,678,015 146,364 492,984 - 42,343,434
36,194,481 7,134,274 42,395,693 26,037,867 342,472 112,104,787
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BANK OF JORDAN
(FUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LTMITED COMPANY)
AMDMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Polowing are the details for sach business seginent as of December 31, 2020;

A) Individual Portfolio (Retmi)

As of December 31, 2620

As of Decernher 38, 2019

Stage One Staye Tway
Individual
Eiem Level Collective Level  ladividual Level  Coltective Level Stage Three Total Talal
Credit risk rating based on the Bank's intomal credit tating system:
4 - . . . R . R
5 92,653 - - - - 842,653 56894
6 17876 - - - - 71,876 626,042
. - - - - - - 51,656
8 - - - - 107,946 107,946 -
g - - - - - - 90,319
b - - B B 612,946 612,936 394,969
Unclassified - 508,080,383 - 8411144 0,569,727 556,061,254 487,003,300
Total 920,529 508,080,383 - 8,401,144 40,290,612 557,702,673 488,438,680
Related Facilities Movement Disclosure:
As af Decembier 31, 2019
As of December 31, 2020
Stage Oae Stage Two
Individuak y . . . ™ .
Ttem Level Collective Level  Individual Level  Cellective Level Stape Three Tatsl Total
Batance at the beginning of the year 632936 314,486,858 51,656 17,493,887 15723413 88,438,680 $47,614,876
New facibties dunng the year 422,689 04,290,500 . 1.154.703 081,976 96,819,568 92,429,199
Fagilitics released 01,7000 37,850,550} (7.216) (2,562,723} (1,569,530) (31,326,719 (44,337,373
1072925 490,626,808 44,440 17,080,797 34,335,359 543.961.829 495,726,702
Transferred to Stage One R 10,221,134 - (9,467,81%) (753,319 * "
Teansferod (o Stage Twn - {5,069,110) - 557,065 (457.955) . :
Transferred 16 Stage Three {96,362) (2,757.967) - (3.890.213) 6,744,562 )
The cffect on the allowance 25 at the ond of the year as a rosult of 3 change in . . 788,740 245,751 1139319 1,294 648
classification beteen the three stages dunng the year (536,330) (788,740) 245, (L139,319) (1,294,648)
Changes resulung froim modificarion (19,354) 15,372,204 (15415 (71,628) (24,073 15,241,257 15,872,190)
Written-off faailitics . - - - (90,472) (90,472) {120,884)
Adjustments due 1o changes 1m exchange rites (37,160) (16,3563 (29,025 (3,322) {179.737) (370,600) (3000
Total Balance at the Ead ol the Year 91,529 503,030.383 - 3,410,044 40,290,619 557,702,675 188,138,680
Eapected cradit loss allowance maviment;
As of December 31, 2020 As of December 31, 3519
Stage One Stage Two
Indwldual o ective Level  Individual Level  Coltective Level
[temy Eevet Staye Three Total Total
Balance sl the beginning of the year 2.691 4450098 1 943516 16,793, 145 36,194,481 29,508,935
[mpainnsit Loss of new balances duning the year 3 338,651 B 5330615 2,640,976 8,480,250 9,626,129
Recovenes [rons impainnent loss on faciies due (4941 (311.995) sy (16.572) (L.395.595) {1,724,671) (7,598,587
1,205 4,676,734 1 6,257,559 32,013,526 42,950,060 31,516,477
Transferzad to Stage One . 657,598 - (122,932) (529,666} - -
Transferred 1o Siage Two - (45,197) - 442,517 {397,320) - .
Transferred to Stage Three o) (14,86%) - (33,130 88,036 - -
The effect on the allowance as at the end of the year as a result of a change in 1211373 £30,006
classification between the three stages duning the vear - (589,285} - (388,999) 5,191,661 A M
Changes tsulling from modification (1,026) 11,590.036) (6} (13419 (21,596} (2,326,083) 241 454
Wiitten-olT faciliies . . . . #2,971) (82,971) {87,682)
Adjustments due to changes in exchange mtes (135 A7) (19 (5,488} (128.240) (134,746) 134,136
Tatal Batance at the End of the Vear 1006 3,074,089 - 5,411,108 36.133.430 44,619,633 36,194,481
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BANK OF JORDAN

{PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY}

AMMAN - JORDAN

WOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATERMENTS

B) Real Eslate Loan Portfolio

As of December

As of Decentber 31, 2020 31,2019
Stage One Stage Two
Endividual
Item Individual Level Collective Level Level Collective Level _ Stage Three Total Total
Credit risk rating catepories based on the Bank's internal credit rating system:
. . . . . . . .
2 391,015 ~ - - - 391,015 v
1 341,315 - - - - 541,135 187,877
4 876,982 - - - - 876,982 135,577
5 7636921 - 06,635 - - 7.843.556 5510847
6 12,373,196 - 2.643.002 - - 15.017.198 14005.7118
7 " . 120,098 - - 120,098 9,046,500
3 - - - - 23834 33,334 1,246,376
9 - - - - - - 219,057
10 - - B - 1403064 1.403,064 941,805
Unclassified - 213536822 - 6758473 12610876 232906081 207,283,950
Total 21,819429 213,536,822 970,735 6,758,473 14,037,684 259,123,143 238571,
Related facilities movement disclesure:
As of December
As of December 31, 2029 31,2009
Item Stage One Stage Two
Individual
Individual Level _Collective Level Level Collective Level _ Stage Three TFotal Totak
Batance at the beginning of the year 19,840,019 180,947,729 9.046.500 15232595 13500874 238570717 248 820.243
New facilities during the year 1,442,838 37833673 _ 158.081 35,424,642 30805176
Facitities Released {2641,569) {6.950.462) (496,128) (152363 (1408866y _ (11.699.388) (21,633,378
18,641,338 211,830.940 8,550,372 15,238,313 12,092,008 266,352,911 257,972,041
Teansfecred 0 Stage One 5,753,288 $0,650,572 (5.758,288) (10,151,507 (498.665) . -
Transferred to Stage Two (54.551) (3891223 442936 17290949 {788,111 - -
Transferred ta Stage Tarce . (389.89) {420,330) (2.487,860) 3298,136 . .
The effect on the allowance as at the end of the yearas a result of a change in {136.543) (23.304) (4.005) (123.847) (29.352) 317881 (1 407 966
classification between the three stages during the year N = * o * ¥ .
Changes Tesulting from modification {2,398,703) {4.554,049) 160,100 199 07087  (6642,356) {17,985,355)
Written-off facilitics _ _ - _ . _ _
Adjustments due to changes in exchanpe rates _ (85.818) _ (40.774) (142.889) 269481 (503)
Total Balance at the End of the Year 21,819,429 213,536,822 2,970,735 6758473 14,037,684 _ 259,123,143 238,577,757
Expected credit loss atlowance movment:
As of December
As of Becembrer 31, 2020 31,2019
Stage One Stage Two
Individual Level  Collective Level Tadividuat Collective Level
Item Level Stage Three Total Total
Balance at the beginning of the year 36.076 865.727 77.000 36,645 6.115.873 7134274 6,150,599
Impairment Loss of new balances during the year 3957 112,956 199250 831 1.788.685 2.105.683 1.125,767
Reseverics from impaimment loss on fcilitics due @.491) (29.702) 4.275) (2.025) (640,094) {680,587} (383,027
35542 948,981 271,975 35,454 7267418 8559370 5,893,339
Transferred to Stage One 62952 176,138 (62.952) (52933 (177.208) - -
Transfered to Stage Two 39 (19254 79,193 169,476 (29,326) . -
Transferred Lo Stage Thrse - (1,770) (5,774} (12,018) 19,562 - -
The effect on the allowance as at the end of the year as a result of a change in 1 B6C.072 | 062,544
<classification between the three stapes during the year (54,956) (138,800} {79,139) (146,987) 2279994 aE e
Changes resulting from modification 15481 (335.051) 1678 59,998 7471 {248,493} 178,180
Written-off facilitics i . . . . . .
Adjustments due to changes in exchange rates B (4.288) . (15.222) (63.787) (83.297) 159)
Total Balance at the Enil of the Year 58.890 206,981 37,698 9,164,127 10,087,652 7134274
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BANK OF JORDAN

(PUBLIC SHARENOLDING LEMITED COMPANY)

AMMAN - FORDAN

NOTES T0O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

C) Facilties granted to corporates

As of December

As of December 31, 2020 3£,201%
Stage One Stage Two
Item Endividual Lovel c“;_':f‘c'l‘" Individuzl Level c"l"':f_:ll"“ Stage Three Toul Totat
Credit nsk rmuing categories based on the Bank's intemal eredit mting system:
| 159 - - . - 155 .
z 11.145.957 . . . . 11,145,957 7.619.500
: 2460242 - - - - 2460042 .
N 57,414,311 - 6.348,269 . - 63,762,580 71,595,239
5 99,001 549 - 14,757,816 . - 113,759,365 67,064,921
6 88,677,740 - 10.769.241 . . 99,436,990 199,728,805
7 16,307,000 - 2,422,068 . . 18,729,068 57,712,298
8 . - . . 369,053 369,05 5.811,592
9 - - . - 13,527,705 14,527,705 50,227
10 - . - - 31035943 31,035.943 20,867,405
Unelassified - 263,608 - 172,510 153,663 594,781 917,698
Tatal 295,006,567 263,608 34,197,394 177,510 16,086,362 375,831,841 43R, 140,685
As of December
Related facililics movement disclosure: As of December 31, 2020 31,2019
Stage One Stage Twa
ttem Individual Level Cull.l:l:l‘ i Individuak Level Coﬂ:tnjl‘ * Staye Three Total Total
Balance at the beginning of the year 346,908,465 739170 $7.712.292 BR7 35151535 435,140,685 IK5.610,545
New facilnies durig the year 14,951,795 53,281 363,448 - 1,583,681 12,052,206 44,075,339
Facilitics released (20997249 (267.22% (LE16860 - (761,994 (21.544.529) (11,240,397
0863011 525,123 56,389,683 18,817 33,571,622 431.348.362 518,445,187
Tranzferred to Stage One 0,572.057 - (40,572,957} - " - -
Transferred to Stage Two (27.000.812) (183,009 27,000,812 183,09 . - -
Transferred 10 Stage Thice (13,355,333 - (2:494,129) - 16,449,612 - -
The effeet on the allowance a3 at the end of the year a3 a resub of o change m
classification between the three stages during the year {16,291,833) - (4.866,254) (36,181) (1,508,973) (16,783,258) (6.692,334)
Changes resnlung from modification {29,785.023) 78,522 2,532,674 1775 1711979 (24,652117) (73.530.500)
Writicn off facilities . - - - . - .
Adfustments due to changes in exchange rates 163958303 - (1662338 - (137.878) (14,196.1461 23,559}
Tatal Balance at the End ef the Year 295006967 263608 34.297.394 172,510 6086362 ITERILBAL 3% 140,685
Expected credit {oss allowance movinent:
As of December
As of December 31, 2020 3L2n9
Stape One Stage Two
e Todividual Level C“:_‘::'ell" ¢ Individual Leved C“:j::‘:l"° Stage Three ot Totat
Balance at the beginnimg of the year 978,778 7908 11,502,371 425 20006211 42.305.693 39,872,390
Impaiment Loss af new balances dunng the year 145.981 456 1,870 - 1.217.186 1,367,495 2,539.55%
Recoveries from impainnent loss on facilines due (79.012} {1.808) (LEIT.74T - (6168263 12.335,393) {7.575.493)
1,045,749 6556 Y.588,404 425 30,496,571 41,437,198 34,836,855
Translersed 1o Stage One 07979 - (307,979} - - .
Transferred to Stage Two (44204 2,544) FYRY) 544 . - -
Transferred to Stage Three 0,467 - (7.706) - 1317 - -
The effect on the allowance a5 at the cnd of the year as a result of a change in
classification betwesn the three stages during the year (128091) - 1332 ‘12) 14.677.914 14,482,439 619,723
Changes resulting from modification (2532939) feliln 10,393 oD 8332 119,575 614,314
Waiten off faalitics - - - - - . -
Adjustments due to changes in exchange mtes (1,676} - 29049 - (2,117.640) (2.158,565) 128096
Total Balatice at the End of the Year 845976 1920 9580819 2085 43,460,344 53891144 $2.395 693
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BANK OF JORDAN

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LEMITED COMPANY)
AMMAN-JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

D) Facilities pranted 10 SME's

As of December

As of December 31, 2020 31,2019
Stage One Stage Two
Fem m‘i:ii‘;“ Collective Level  Individual Level  Collective Level Stage Three Tagal Tatal
Credit risk rating categories based on the Bank's internal credit rating system;
1 . - . - B . -
2 4,774,931 - - - - 4774931 -
3 18,063,131 - 1,022,525 - - 19.115,656 1.320,597
4 39,853,503 - 660,573 - - 40,514,078 1835262
5 59,196,225 - 10,303,809 - - 69,500,034 41237593
6 51,771,447 - 7.510,605 - - 59,282,052 128,483,516
7 - - 11.108,322 - - 11,108,322 33845467
8 - - - - 2.721983 2727983 286,695
9 - - - - 2085131 2.051,37¢ 13,508,303
10 . - - - 32085936 32085936 20,234405
Unclassified - 3,547,535 . 203,953 682,336 4,433,324 3939765
Total 173,689,239 3,547,535 30,605,834 203,553 37,547,626 245,594,187 243,691,603
As of December
Related facilities movement disclosure; Asof D ber 31, 2020 3L 2010
Stage One Stage Two
ttem [m:f:i‘i'iml Colleetive Level  Individeal Levef  Collective Level Stage Three Total Total
Balance at the beginning of the year 173,876,968 2969,37% 33,845,467 345,332 12,654,458 241,691,603 258,358,659
New facilities during the year 10,516,364 1,416,355 437,334 - 285,753 12,655,806 16,953,385
Facilitics Released (RA72451) 210,871) (2,400,247 (33.516) {903,988 (12,226,773) (20.303.502)
175,725,181 4,174,862 31,882,554 311,B66 32,020,223 244,120,636 255,208,542
Transferred to Stage One 15,698,753 136,508 (15,098,753) (146,508) - - -
Teansferred to Stage Two (19,465,633) (144,522) 20,501,959 163,302 (1,055,146) . -
Transfered 1o S1age Three (650,655) (13.496) 6,708,169} {86,269) 7,458,589 - -
The effect on the allowance as at the end of the year as a result of & change in
classification between the three stages during the year (1,239.530) (10,930} 415,597 1316854 286,522 (1.416,:442) (4,270,158}
Changes resulting from modification 6,005,047 (603,837 618,689 (1,534) 22,453 6,039,308 (5,502,187
Written off facilitics - - - - (504,738) (504,731) (1,741,0803
Adjustiments due to changes in exchange rates (1,779,621) - (174889 - {690.574) {2,645.084) {3,514)
Total Batance at the End of the Year 173,689,239 3.517,535 30,605,834 203,953 ITSAT0L6 245,594,187 243,691,603
As of December
Expected credit foss affowanee movement: As of December 31, 2020 31, 2019
Stage One Stage Two
Ttem Ind::i:lelllal Collective Level  Individual Level Colleetive Lovel Stage Three Total Total
Balance at the beginning of the year 673,620 34,047 217,460 3613 25,109,127 26,037,867 2£,268,030
Impairment Loss of rew balances during the year 115,401 3,605 11,660 - 761,709 897,315 1,116,262
Recaveries from impairment loss on facilitics due 36,1717y 3.813) (9,134) (244} (82,997} (136.665) (2,501,554)
752,744 39,639 219926 3,369 15,782,839 26,798,517 19,882,738
Transferred to Stage One 185,354 1,459 (135,154} (L,589) - -
Transferred to Stage Two (60,330) (1.648) 125,583 14,765 (283,370) - -
Transferred 1o Stage Three {1,383) 64 (72,683) (£.095) 5,225 - -
The effect on the allowance as at the end of the year as a result of a change in
classification between the three stages during the year (147,806 (902) 100,244 {18,80%) 6,686,892 6,619,619 9,340,515
Changes resulting from modification (168,348} {16,432) 193,645 264) 15,665 24,266 {1,936,535;
Witten off facilities - . - - (81,700 (481,700) (1,468,265}
Adjustments due o changes in exchange rates 35 . (292) - {171.336) (171663} 219,017
Tatal Balaoce at the End of the Year 52&%&[ 21,682 58!_:D=19=[ 1,477 31,624,215 32.7% 26,037,867

-45-



BANK OF JORDAN

{PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
AMMAN - FORDAN

NOTES TO TIIE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

E) Facilities Granted to the Government and the Peblic Sector:

As of December

As of December 31, 2020 31,2019
Stage One Stage Two
Hem Individual Level Collective Level Individual Level Collective Levet Stape Three Tatal Total
Credit risk rating categories based on the Bank’s internzl credit rating system:
L 93,694,953 - - 93,694,953 32,598,476
2 . - R .
3 . - R . .
4 . - R . .
5 13,068,288 - - 13,668,283 -
6 74,601,269 - - 74,601,269 90,092,780
7 - - . .
8 - - . .
9 . - . .
10 - - - -
Unclassilied - - - -
Tatal 181,364,510 . - 181,364,510 122,691,156
As of Pecember
As of December 31, 2020 31,2019
Refated facilities movement disclosure:
Stage One Stage Two
item Individual Level Collective Level Endividual Levet Colective Level Stage Taree Total Total
Balance 1 the beginning of the year 121,691,256 - 122,691,256 134,694,447
New facilitics during the year 50,158,288 - 50,158,288 9,563,821
Facilitics Released - N - -
Fransfired to Stage One 172,849,544 - 112,849,544 144,658,268
Transfared to Stage Twe . . - .
Transferred to Stage Three - - - -
The cffcet on the alfowance as at the end of the year as a resukt of a change
in classification berween the three stages during the year - - B -
Changes resulting from modification 2,514,966 . 8,514,966 21,967,012
Written off facilities . . .
Adjustments due 1o changes in exchange rates . . . -
Total Balznce at the End of the Year 181,364,510 - - - - 181,364,510 122,691,256
Expected credit loss allowance iovement;
As of December
As of December 31, 2020 31,2019
Siage One Stage Twe
Individual Level Collective Level Individual Level Callective Level
Erem Stage Three Tetal Tatak
Balance at the beginning of the year 32472 - 342,473 204,390
Impairment Loss of naw balances during the year 36,867 - 36867 11,159
Recoveries [rom impairment loss on facilities due - - - -
379,339 - 379339 215,149
Translerred 1o Stage One . - - -
Transferred to Stage Two . . - N
Transferred to Stage Three . . . .
Tag effect on Lhe allowance as at the end of the year as a result of 2 change
in classification between the thre stages during the year - - - -
Changes resulting from modification [41,252) . {a1,252) 126,723
Written off facilities - . . -
Adjusiments due to changes in exchange rates . . . -
Taotal Balance at the End of the Year 333,087 - 33_&__0"8*'.;# 342,472
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Interest in Suspense:

The following is the movement on the interest in suspense:

Balance at the Beginning of the Year

Add: Interest suspended during the year

Less: Interest in suspense reversed to revenues
Translation differences

Written off facilities transferaed to off balance sheet items
Balance at the End of the Year

Balance at the Beginning of the Year
Add: Interest suspended during the year

Less: Interest in suspense reversed to revenues
Written off facilities transferaed to off balance sheet items

Balance at the End of the Year

As of December 31, 2020
Corporatcs
Individual Large
Retail) Corporate
(Customers  Real Estate Loans Customers SMEs Total
JD D JD JD JD
1,977,386 1,251,133 2,760,185 3,981,013 9,909,717
328,944 621,957 762,920 950,655 2,664,476
{132,513) {115,063) {144,941) (1£1,891) (504,410)
(17,670) (74,2635) 555,033 (240,282) (887,250)
(7,500) - - {23,330) (30,830)
2,148,647 1,683,760 2,763,131 4,556,165 11,151,703
As of December 31, 2019
Corporates
Individual Large
Retail) Corporate
{Customers Real Estate Loans Customers SMEs Total
JD JB JD Jn JD
1,955,428 966,577 2,286,197 3,666,265 8,874,467
207268 541,503 602,034 861,393 2,212,198
(149,508) (256,947) (188,046) {276,430) (870,931)
{35,802) - - {270,215) (306,017)
1,977,386 1,251,133 2,700,185 3,981,013 9,909,717

Direct credit facilities are distributed in accordance with geographical distribution and economic sectors as following:

Financial

Industrial

Trading

Real estate

Constructions

Agricnlture

Tourism, restaurants and public facilities
Shares

Individuals

Governtment and public sector

Total

Total
As of December 31,
Inside Kingdom ;():E:lifn 2020 2019

D JD JD JD
7,633,963 - 7,633,963 §,048,647
87,772,946 61,737,781 149,510,127 171,263,974
240,703,965 56,546,070 297,250,035 331,362,025
343.283,048 15,840,095 259,123,143 238,003,898
25441236 15,083,745 40,524,981 40,945442
5,852,154 659,342 6,511,496 4,863,462
63,068,128 35,025,613 08,093,741 102,410,297
11,556,787 - 11,556,787 11,322,224}
454,667,535 113,379,438 568,046,973 500,028,720
103,694,053 77,669,557 181,364,510 122,691,256
1,243,674,715 375,941,641 1,619,616,356 1,531,539,941
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Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

This item consists of the following:

Financial assets quoted in the market:
Governmental bonds guaranteed by the government
Corporate bonds and debentures

Foreign governmental bonds

Total financial assets quoted in the market

Financial assets unquoted in the market:
Corporate bonds and debentures

Treasury bills or guaranteed by the government
Total financial assets unquoted in the market
Total Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
Less: Expected credit loss provisien

Net financial assets at amortized cost

Analysis of bonds and bills:

Financial assets with fixed-interest rate
Financial assets with floating interest rate
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December 31,

2020 2019
ID D
219,643,092 206,307,665
30,290,562 27,218,660
31,852,447 9,405,766
281,786,101 242,932,091
66,434,000 28,192,320
934,739 1,610,020
67,368,739 29,802,340
349,154,840 272,734,431
(699,871) (198,632)
384,454,969 272,535,799
December 31,
2620 2019
D D
340,607,045 264,177,929
8,547,795 8,556,502
349,154,840 272,734,431
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- Distribution of financial assets at amortized cost according to the Bank's internal credit rating categories as

of December 31, 2020 &

2019 was as follows:

As of December 31, 2020 As of
December
Stage One Stage Two 31,2019
Item Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage
Level Level Level Level Three Total Total

1 219,643,092 - - - - 219,643,092 206,307,665

2 724,151 - - - - 724,151 -

3 5,688,967 - - - - 5,688,967 10,716,223

4 5,007,406 - - - - 5,007,406 6,725,912

5 80,320,242 - - - - 80,320,242 32,981,368

6 37,770,982 - - - - 37,770,982 16,003,263

v - - . - - - -

8 . - - - . - -

0 ; - - - - - -

10 - - - - - - -

Total 349,154,840 - - - - 349,154,840 272,734,431

- Financial assets at amortized cost credit stages distribution was as follows:
As of December 31, 2020 As of
December
Stage One Stage Two 31, 2019
Individual Collective Individua Collective Stage
Item Level Level 1 Level Level Three Total Total
Balance at the Beginning
of the Year 272,734,431 - - - - 272,734,431 203,996,033
New invesment during the
year 137,857,159 - - - - 137,857,159 132,367,120
Matured invesments {61,574,081) - - - - (61,574,081) (63,669,630)
349,017,509 - - - - 349,017,509 272,693,523

Transferred to stage one - - - - - - -
Transferred to stage two - - - - - - -
Transferred to stage three - - - - - - -
Changes due to the adjusments 137,331 - - - 137,331 40,908
Balance at the End of the
Year 349,154,840 - - - - 349,154,840 272,734,431
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- The movement on the expected credit loss provision was as follows:

As of
December
As of December 31, 2020 31,2019
Stage Stage Stage
Item One Two Three Total Total
Balance at the Beginning of the Year 198,632 - - 198,632 600,349
Credit loss on new balances during the year 403,806 - - 403,806 109,782
Expected credit loss reversal of matured
investments {17,407) - - (17,407) (477,395)
585,031 - - 585,031 232,736
Transferred to stage one - - - - -
Transferred to stage two - - - - -
Transferred to stage three - - - - -
Effect on the provision at the end of the period—
as a result of classification changes between the
three stages during the year - - - - -
Changes due to adjusments 114,840 - - 114,840 (34,104)
Balance at the End of the Year 699,871 - - 699,871 198,632

The maturities of these financial assets at amortized cost are as follows:

Over 1 Over 3
Month Months and Over 6 Over 1 Year
Uptol and Up to 3 Upto6 Months and and Over 3
Month Months Months UptolYear Upto3 Years Years Total
JD JD JD JD JD
December 31, 2020 6,000,640 18,070,528 20,610,042 15,598,000 247,403,862 41,471,768 349,154,840
December 31, 2019 - 8,750,010 47,369,743 860,009 156,383,614 59371,055 272,734,431
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BANK OF JORDAN

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. Intangible Assets

This item consists of computer software's which are amortized at an annual rate ranging from 15% to 20%,
the details are as follows:

December 31,

2020 2019
JD JD

Balance at the Beginning of the Year 5,986,282 4,998,823

Additions during the year 2,124,672 1,986,497

Amortization for the year {(1,202,801) (998,994)

Foreign currencies differences (35,708) (44)

Balance at the End of the Year 6,872,445 5,986,282

16. Other Assets
This item consists of the following;
December 31,
2020 2019
JD JD
Accrued interest income 10,391,109 13,059,915
Prepaid expenses 3,616,227 3,408,442
Assets foreclosed by the Bank in repayment of non-performing debts™* 58,067,461 53,844,537
Clearance cheques 2,427,148 -
Paid guarantees 1,692,367 3,697,797
Advanced payments on the acquisition of lands and real estates 255,912 1,049,107
Prepaid tax expenses 3,807,864 1,619,294
Accounts receivables and other debit balances 4,818,056 5,392,150
85,076,144 82,071,242

*The following is the movement on the assets foreclosed by the Bank in repayment of non-performing debts:

Foreclosed Assets

2020 2019
JD JD
Balance at the Beginning of the Year 64,202,177 59,991,327
Additions 7,516,737 4,993,591
Disposals (3,651,609} {782,741)
End of the year balance 68,067,305 64,202,177
Impairment provision of assets foreclosed by the Bank** (9.999,844) (10,357,640)
Balance at the End of the Year 58,067,461 53,844,537

According to the Jordanian Banks® Law, buildings and plots of lands foreclosed by the Bank in repayment of
debts from clients should be sold within two years from the foreclosure date. However, the Central Bank of
Jordan may extend this period for two more years in exceptional cases. Starting from the year 2015 and in
accordance with the Central Bank of Jordan Circular No. 10/1/4076 dated March 27, 2014 and Circular No.
10/1/2510 dated February 14, 2017 the bank has started to calculate gradual provision against the assets
foreclosed by the bank in exchange of credit facilities that have been in possession for more than 4 years.
Central Bank of Jordan issued Circular No. 10/1/16239 dated November 21, 2019 approving the extension of
Circular No. 10/1/2150 dated February 14, 2017, in which it confirmed postponing the provision calculation
until the end of year 2020 and amending the second clause of it. In accordance with central bank of Jordan

circular no 10/3/16628 dated December 27, 2020, circular no 10/1/2510 was extended till December 31,
2021.
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** The movement on the assets foreclosed by the Bank in repayment of non-performing debts provision loans
was as follows:

2020 2019
JD JD
Balance at the Beginning of the Year 10,357,640 9,927,792
Additions (357,796) 429,848
Balance at the End of the Year 9,999,844 10,357,640
17. Banks and Financial Institutions’ Deposits
This item consists of the following:
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Inside the  OQutside the Inside the Outside the
Kingdom of Kingdom of Kingdom of Kingdom of
Jordan Jordan Tatal Jordan Jordan Total
JD JD Jb JD JD JD
Current accounts and demand deposits - 9,945,487 9,945,487 - 5,766,667 5,766,667
Deposits maturing within 3 months 1,418,000 8,461,000 9,879,000 - 14,540,044 14,540,044
Deposits maturing within 3-6 months - - - - 10,000,000 10,000,000
Deposits maturing within 6-9 months - - - - - -
Deposits maturing within 9-12 months - - - - - -
Deposits maturity exceeds one year - 50,937,867 50,937,867 70,000,000 50,937,867 120,937,867
1,418,000 69,344,354 70,762,354 70,000,000 81,244,578 151,244,578
18 - Customer Deposits
Details of this item are as follows:
December 31, 2020
Government
and Publie
Individuals Corporations SME's sector Total
Description JD JD JD JD JD
Current accounts 355,874,393 103,252,081 80,310,197 6,688,230 549,124,501
Saving deposits 844,505,660 1,201,243 9,625,103 10,377 855,342,383
Term deposits 345,536,736 73,476,256 31,129,822 20,195,128 470,337,942
Certificates of deposits 21,508,350 11,565,000 1,309,000 - 34,282,350
Total 1,567,425,139 189,494,580 122,374,122 29,893,735 1,909,187,576
December 31, 2019
Government
and Public
Individuals Corporations SME's sector Total
Description JD JD JD Jb JD
Current accounts 316,215,766 64,341,378 73,812,652 13,011,528 467,381,324
Saving deposits 778,203,103 3,862,479 8,564,196 35,637 790,665,415
Term deposits 332,015,600 162,669,545 39,039,074 21,141,600 554,865,819
Certificates of deposits 93,066,189 11,359,000 1,760,360 - 106,185,549
Total 1,519,500,658 242,232,402 123,176,282 34,188,765 1,919,098,107

* Government and Public Sector deposits in Jordan amounted to JD 22,738,668 equivalent to 1/19% of total deposits for

2020 (JD 26,131,415 equivalent to 1/40% of total deposits for 2019).

* Non-interest-bearing deposits amounted o JD 702,448,649 equivalent to 36/79% of total deposits for 2020 (JD
641,780,616 equivalent to 33/44% of total deposits for 2019).

* Restricted deposits amounted to JD 16,822,597 equivalent to 0/88 % of total deposits for 2020 (JD 15,885,523

equivalent to 0/83% of total deposits for 2019).

¥ Dormant deposits amounted to JD 58,881,480 for 2020 (JD 68,696,918 for 2019).
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19. Cash Margins
The details of this item are as follows:

December 31,

2020 2019
JD JD
Cash margins against direct credit facilities at amortized cost 95,468,703 96,998,394
Cash margins against indirect credit facilities 24.350.606 23,595,527
119,819,309 120,593,921
20. Other Provisions
The details of this item are as follows:
Provision
Created Provision Foreign
Beginning  during the  Used During Cuwrrencies  Ending
Balance Year the Year Differences  Balance
2020 JD JD JD JD JD
Provision for end-of-service indemnity 4,032,642 466,137 (245,107) - 4,253,672
Provision for lawsuits raised against the Bank 863,478 73,678 (104,721) - 832435
Other provisions 115,091 241,416 {65,214) {75,250) 216,043
5,011,211 781,231 (415,042) (75,250) 5,302,150
2019
Provision for end-of-service indemnity 3,904,765 424 311 (296,434) - 4,032,642
Provision for lawsuits raised against the Bank 1,032,570 74,742 (243,834) - 863,478
Other provisions 256,905 {989) (140,733) (92) 115,091
5,194,240 498,064 (681,001) (92) 5,011,211
21. Income Tax
A.  Income tax provision:
The movement on the income tax provision is as follows:
2020 2019
JD JD
Balance at the Beginning of the Year 23,803,895 21,978,685
Income tax paid {22,692,105) (23,151,663)
Accrued Income tax 18,770,076 24,976,873
Balance at the end of the year 19,881,866 23,803,895
- Income tax presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss represents the following:
2020 2019
Income tax on current year’s profit 15,231,242 24,000,873
Previous years income tax 379,375 976,000
Deferred tax assets for the year-addition (1,567,870) (6,573,042}
Amortization of deferred tax assets 2,563,769 2,348 285
16,606,516 20,752,116
- Income tax in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income represents the following:
2026 2019
Accrued income tax on profits from the sale of shares of financial
assets through the statement of comprehensive income 3,538,834
3,538,834 -
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BANK OF JORDAN
{(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
AMMAN — JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The legal income tax rate in Jordan is 38% for banks, knowing that the legal income tax rate in Palestine in
which the bank has investments and branches is 15%, and in Syria (a subsidiary company) 23% and
subsidiaries in Jordan 28%.

A final settlement was reached with the Income and Sales Tax Department in Jordan up to the end of 2017,
and the Bank submitted its annual tax returns for the years 2018 and 2019, and paid the required amounts
according to the law, however no final seftlement was reached with the Income and Sales Tax Department

for those years yet, In the opinion of management and its tax advisor current booked provisions are sufficient
to pay the tax obligations.

A final settiement was reached with the Income tax and VAT departments on the results of the Bank’s
operations in Palestine until the end of the year 2018 and the bank submitted its annual tax retour for the year
2019 which is still not audited, In the opinion of management and its tax advisor current booked provisions
are sufficient to pay the tax obligations.

A final settlement was reached with the Income and Sales Tax Department in Jordan with regard to Excel for
Financial Investments Company (Subsidiary) until the end of year 2018 except for year 2016 for which the
company submitted its tax return for the years 2016 and 2019 and paid related taxes but still not reviewed by
the Income and Sales Tax Department yet, in the opinion of management and its tax advisor current booked
provisions are sufficient to pay the tax obligations.

A final settlement was reached with the Income and Sales Tax Department in Jordan with regard to Jordan
Leasing Company (Subsidiary) until the end of year 2017. The company submitted its tax return for the years
2018 and 2019 and paid related taxes but still not reviewed by the Income and Sales Tax Department vet, in

the opinion of management and its tax advisor current booked provisions are sufficient to pay the tax
obligations.

Taxes due over the Bank, its subsidiaries and external branches has been calculated for the year ended

December 31, 2020, and in the opinion of the management and its tax advisor current booked provisions are
sufficient to pay the tax obligations as of that date.

. The following is a summary of the reconciliation between accounting profit and taxable profit:

2020 2019
JD JD

Accounting profit 52,073,578 61,130,161
Tax-exempt profits (39,854,042) (22,855,536)
Undetectable tax expenses 33,558,257 33.948.836
Taxable profit 45,777,793 72,223,461
Income tax rate Yad 1 %e33,2

18,770,076 24,000,783
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BANK OF JORDAN

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

AMMAN — JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. Borrowed Funds

The details of this item are as follows:

Number of Installments

Periodic Price of
In The Installments Borrowing
December 31, 2020 Amount Total Remaining Maturity Collaterals Interest
JD JD
Borrowing from the Treasury Bonds
Central Bank of Jordan* 46,968,903 24 - 108 15-76 Monthly and bills Zero-1%
Borrowing from Jordan Assigning
mortgage refinance mortgage bounds
company 15,000,000 1 1 One payment for the company 4,15%
Borrowing from external
banl*** 7,090,000 i i One payment None Average
Quarterly, semi-
Rent lease obligations** 15,523,423 791 491 annual, annually None 5,75%
Total 84,582,326
Number of Installments
Periodic Price of
In The Installments Borrowing
December 31, 2019 Amount Total Remaining Maturity Collaterals Interest
JD Jn
Borrowing from the Treasury Bonds o o
Central Bﬁnk of Jordan® 8,923,541 24 - 113 4-83 Monthly and bills 1%-1.75%
3 5 a,
Lease obligations** 14,744,380 685 530 ag:fgfy“ﬁnfg;ly None ;\;Zfa/g“e
Total 23,667,921

* The above balances has been re-financed to the Bank’s customers listed under small and medium entities and comporates

with an interest rate ranging from 2% - 5%.

- This balance is borrowed at a fixed interest rate, and there is no borrowing at floating interest rates.
- Zero interest borrowings related to loans issued by the Central Bank of Jordan amounted to JD 33,128,585 as of
December 31, 2020. (ne zero-interest borrowings for the year ended 2019).

** This item represents the amount borrowed from Jordan Mortgage Refinance Company which is due in one payment for

three years.

**% This {tem represents borrowing from a foreign bank which is paid in one payment due on February 18, 202Isubject to

interest (Libor+ 3 months).

#% %% ease obligations — Against right of use of assets — leased :

In Jordanian Dinar

Maturity analysis - undiscounted contractual cash flows
Less than one year

Year to five years

More than five years

Total undiscounted lease obligations

Discounted lease obligations included in the consolidated
statement of financial position

Within one year

More than one year
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December 31,

December 31,

2020 2019
3,131,027 3,282,125
10,518,639 9,617,803
7,258,618 6,220,674
20,908,284 19,120,602
15,523,423 14,744,380
2,081,138 2,535,281
13,442,285 12,209,099
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BANK OF JORDAN
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
AMMAN — JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Other Liabilities

The details of this item are as follows:

Accrued interest payable
Accepted deferred cheques
Temporary deposits

Dividends payable

Deposits on safe boxes
Margins against sold real estate
Financial derivatives Note (41)

Expected credit loss provision against indirect credit facilities **
Other liabilities*

* The details of other liabilities are as follows:

Social security deposits

Income tax deposits

Accrued expenses

Incoming transfers

Board of Directors’ members remuneration
Other credit balances

59

December 31,
2020 2019
JD JD
5469474 10,391,002
7,521,812 7,250,887
6,844,610 4,198,390
2,126,474 2,183,274
174,168 175,355
26,700 37,000
238,254 -
8,845,153 10,206,853
9,175,767 7,051,042
40,422,412 41,493,803
December 31,
2020 2019
JD JD

264,041 287,036
260,643 307,919
6,839,253 5,486,915
455,931 272,766
55,000 55,000
1,300,899 641,406
9,175,767 7,051,042
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BANK OF JORDAN
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Indirect credit facilities distribution was as follows:
A) Letter of credit

As of December

As of December 31, 2020 31,2019
Stage One Stage Two
Item Individual Level Collective Level  Individual Level  Collective Level Staze Three Totat Total
Credit visk rating based on the Bank's internal credit rating
system:
‘l - - - - - - -
2 - - - - - . 12,728,446
3 2,039,917 - - - B 2,039.917 236,924
4 14.554,251 - 69,575 - - 14,623,826 3.656,506
5 34,544,393 - - - . 34,544,393 21,227,495
5 1,100,314 “ - - - 1,160,314 25,353,645
7 - - - - - - 3,549,511
8 - - - - - - 61.683
9 - - - - - - -
10 - - - . - B -
Talal 52,138,875 - 69,575 - - 52,308,450 69,214,211
Indirect facilitics movement disclosure:
As of December
As of Deeember 31, 2020 31,2018
Stage One Stage Two
Item Individusl Level Collective Level  Individual Level  Collective Level Stase Three Total Total
Balance at the bepinning of the year 65,203.017 . 3,949,514 - 61,683 69,214,211 65,119,225
New facilities during the year 18.855,351 - - - - 18,835,351 26,089,575
Facilities paid (26,835,098) . {418,536) - (61,683) {27,315,317) (20,506,159)
7,223,270 - 3,530,975 - - 60,754,245 70,702,601
Transferred te Stage One 3452,185 - (3,452,183) - - - -
Transferred 1o Stage Two {6,834,712) - 6,834,112 - - - -
Transferred te Stage Three - - - - - - -
iUttt - e : o mam
Changes resulting fom modification 1.652,441 - {14,967) - - 1,637,474 {3,264,812)
Adjustments due 1o changes in exchange rates - - - - - - .
Total Balance at the End of the Year 52,237,875 - 69,575 - - 52,308,430 69,214,211
Impairment provision movement diclosure:
As of December
As of Decemsber 31, 2020 31,2019
Stage One Stage Two
Eem Individual Level Colketive Level  Individual Level  Collective Eevel Stage Three Total Total
Balance at the beginning of the year 82,950 - 45,282 B 40,257 168,490 93,258
[mpairment Loss of new balances during the year 2408 . - - - 2,408 15,770
Recoveries fram impairment loss on investments due (34.025) - {4.404) = (40,257 {78.686) (7.684)
54,333 - £0,879 - - 52,212 101,444
Transferred 1o Stage One 40,402 - (40,402) - - - -
Transferred 10 Stage Two (15,088) - 15,088 - B - .
Transferred 10 Stage Three . - - . - - .
The effect on the provision at the end of the year as a result of
the reclassification between the three stages during the year 40,2813 ; (15.076) _ . (55.357) 50532
Changes resulting from modifications 56,387 - (350) - . 36,037 6,514
Adjustments due to changes in exchange rates - - - - - - -
Total Balance at the End of the Year 92,753 - 139 - - 92,892 168,490
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BANK OF JORDAN

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITEPR COMPANY)

AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bj Acceptances

As of Decemnber 31,

As of December 31, 2020 2019
Stage Cne Stape Two
Individual Collective Individuat Colleetive
Tota
Ttem Level Level Level Eevel Stage Three otal Total
Credit risk rating based on the Bank's internal credit rating
system:
) ) - - - . N -
2 . . - - - - .
3 1,385,571 : . - - 1,383,571 :
4 0,815,208 - 13,105 - - 10,828,403 1,820,830
5 1,438,633 - 882,314 - - 2,320,947 1,137,972
6 4,015,143 - 77,386 - - 4,092,529 1,739,581
7 - - - - - - 8,651,156
g - - . - - . -
9 - - . - . . .
10 - - N " - - N
Total 17,654,645 - 972,803 - - 18,627,450 19,349,13%
As of Decomber31,
Indirect facilitics movement disclosure: As of December 31, 2020 2019
Stage One Stage Two
Individual Collective Individual Collective
T tal
ftem Level Level Level Level Stage Three otal Tota
Balance at the Beginning of the year 10,697,983 - 4,651,156 - B 19,349,139 40,294,124
 fanitit i N N N 2 2
New facilities during the year 12,114,179 498,105 12,612,284 6,924,372
Facilities paid (6,598,083} . (7,23433) - - (13,932,31%) (8,013,543)
16,214,079 - 1,815,629 . - 18,629,108 39,205,453
Transferred to Stage One 1,246,148 - {1,246,248} - - - -
Transferred to Stage Two {616,408) - 616,406 - - - -
Transferred to Stage Three - - - - - - -
The effect on the provision at the end of the year as a result of " N 1154 11 105
reclassification between the three stages during the year (796,982) (174.172) (7L134) (323,595)
Chanpes resulting frem modification 1,607,706 - {38,210) B - 1,569,496 (19,332,719)
Adjustments due 1o changes in exchange rates - - - - - - -
Total Balance at the End of the Year 17,654,645 - 971,805 - - 18,627,450 19,349,139
As of December 31,
Impairment provision mevement diclosure: As of December 31, 2020 2019
Stape One Stape Two
Individual Collective Individual Collective Total Total
Item Level Level Level Level Stage Three
Balance at the Beginning of the year 30,986 35,688 . 75,674 58.905
Tnpaimment Loss of new balances during the year 9,630 2,578 - 12,208 33,003
Recoveries from impaitment loss on facilities duc (23.554) (27,843} . (31.397) (30.415)
26,062 10,423 - 36,485 61,583
Transterred 1o Stage Cue 1173 (7.373) . N B
Transferred to Stage Two {1.066) 1,066 _ . B
Transferred to Stage Three . R . . N
The effect on the provision at the end of the year as a result of
reclassification between the three stages duting the year {7.336) 3N - (6,764} 3913
Changes resulting from modifications 8,507 (456) . 8,141 10,178
Adjustments due to changes it exchange rates B _ _ . .
Total Balance at thie End of the Year 33.630 4232 . 37.862 75,674
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BANK OF JORDAN

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

AMNMNAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

C) Letters of guarantee

As of December

As of December 31, 2020 31,2019
Stage One Stage Two
Item Individual Level Cull::tll\'c Endividual Level Coltective Level  Stage Thiree Total Total
Credit risk rating based on the Bank's internal credit rating system:
: . - . . - - .
2 £99,390 - - - - 199,390 3,550,260
3 9,374,204 - 365,500 . - 9,739,704 3,829,921
4 30,068,718 - 137,88 - - 30,206,516 24,595,539
35 36,071,134 . 966,240 - - 37,031,374 13,959,994
6 21,187,368 - 1,245,450 - - 22,432,818 48,660,454
7 - - 860,622 - . 860,622 7,164,465
3 - - - - 77,030 77,030 2,483,227
9 - - - - 79,684 79,684 62,913
Hil - - - - 11,409,752 11,409,752 9,996,239
Total 96,900,814 - 3,575,630 - 11,566,466 112,042,910 114,413,012
As of December
Indireet {acilities movement disclosure; As of December 31, 2020 31,2619
Stage One Stage Twe
Item Individual Level Cn]]}:::ilve Individual Level Collective Level Stage Three Total Totat
Balance at the beginning of the year 94,706,168 - 7,164,465 . 12,542,379 14,413,012 132,219,991
New facitities during the Year 2,704,115 - 738 - - 2,704,853 22,881,396
Facilities paid {4,033,469) - (137,221) - (1,E83,578) (5,354,268) (33,195,489)
93,376,814 - 7,018,982 - 11,358,801 111,763,597 121,905,398
Transferred to Stage One 4,676,450 - (4,676,450) - - - -
Transferred to Stage Two (1,618,642) - 1,619,332 - {870y - -
Transferred ta Stage Three (51,000) - (620,419) - 671419 - B
The effect on the provision at the end of the year as a result of _ _
reglassification between the three stages during the year 239,193 33422 (461,686) (189.071) (4,193,239}
Changes resulting from modification 938,420 - 1,272,468 - - 2,210,888 (3,296,654}
Adjustinents due o changes in exchange rates (660,601) - (1,080,705} - {L,198) {1,742,504) (2,993)
Tatal balance at the end of the year 96,900,814 - 3,575,630 - 11,566,466 112,042,910 114,413,012
Impainment provision movement diclosure:
As of Becember
As of December 31, 2020 31,2019
Stage One Stage Two
Item Individual Level CD;!::SIW Individual Level Collective Level Stage Three Totak Total
Balance at the beginning of the yeac 554,089 . 116,005 - e 8,467,806 5,383,437
Impairment Loss of new balances during the year 16,344 - 3] - 386,631 403,006 698,863
Recoveries from impairment loss on facilities due (23.187) - (2,712 - (678.450) {704,409 {114.871)
547,246 - 113,264 - 1,505,893 8,166,403 6,467,429
Transferred to Stape One 64,133 - (64,133) - - - -
Transferred 10 Stage Two (16,076) - 16,644 - (568) - -
Transferred to Stage Three (970) - (£2,144} - 13,114 . -
The effect on the provision at the end of the year as a result of
reclassification bawween the three stages during the year {61,005) - {4,400} - 1451 46,046 1,692 465
Changes resulting from modifications (284,709) - 1,020 - (102) (283,791) 307,927
Adjustments dae to chanpes in exchange rates 24,972 - (52) . 221 24,699 {15)
Tatal balance at the end of the year 273,591 - 50,199 - 7,629,567 7,953,357 8,467,806
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BANK OF JORDAN

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

D) Unutilized Tacilities imlis.

ltem

Crredit risk rating based on the Bank's intemal eredit rting system:

S OB v U de W B2 —

10
Urclassified
Total

Unutilized facilities movement disclosure:

Balanee at the Beginning of the year
New facilities during the year
Facilities paid

Transferred 1@ Stage One
Transforred to Stage Two
Transfermed to Stage Three

The effect on the provision at the end of the year as 2 result of
reclassification between the three stages during the year

Changes resulting from modification

Written off facilities

Ad) due to changes in exchange s
Total Batance sl the End of the Year

Impairment provision movement disclosure;

Tiem
Balance at the Beginning of the year
Impai Loss of new bal during the year
R ies from impai loss on i due
Transferred 10 Stage One
Transferred to Stage Two
Transferred to Stage Three

The effect on the provision at the end of the year as aresult of
reclassification between the thive stages during the year

Changes resulting from modifications
Wiitten off facilitics

Ad

due to changes in exchang
Total Balance at the Enl of the Year

Ries

As of December 3,
As of December 31, 2020 019
Stage One Stape Two
Individual Level Collective Level Individual Level _ Collecilve Level Stage Three Total Total
105,676 . . E E 105,676 -
31,700,188 - - B - 31,700,188 3,545,000
70.817,728 - - . E 70,B17.728 11,340,082
39,346,851 - 730,159 - E 60077010 112,041,297
34212046 - 17,280,342 - - 31,492 388 61569573
o - 1,642,193 - . 1.642.193 183,564,413
- - 3646411 = . 3646410 33267994
- 65,621,764 - 462,355 - 66.084.119 49,271,187
194,182,489 65,621,764 23,299,105 462355 - 285,565,713 458,399,546
As of December 31,
As of December 31, 2020 2019
Stage One Stage Two
lndividusl Level Collective Level tadividusl Level = Collective Level Stape Three Taial Total
375,860,365 48635570 33,267.9% 632,617 - 458,399,546 387219416
9.644,498 5166342 331,688 8,631 - 15,152,160 80311410
(111,982,399 (5.164,83%) {10.506.161) (66.295} - (127,719,689 44,185.226)
173521469 48,635071 23,094,521 579,954 - 345,852,017 413.345,600
17,511 k02 407,648 (17,511 802) {407 648) - - -
(19,732,920} (261.373) 19,732920 261,573 - - -
{2,740) (211,397) (365.506) (55324) 335467 - -
(4.298,703) 375933 815498 77,098 (335.467) (3.565,641) 113,129.891)
(69.206,376) 16,576,580 (2.140,398} 6,702 - 154.763.592) 48,186.934
(1,611,043} - (326,028) . - (1.937.071) {3.097)
196,182,489 45,621,764 23,299.105 462,355 - 285,568,713 458,199,545
As of December 31,
As ol I ber 31, 2020 1019
Stage One Stage Two
Individual Level Colleclive Level ladividual Level __ Collective Level Stage Three Total Total
582,801 635,661 268,507 7912 - 1.494,883 1,562,785
7392 36129 31836 106 - 47,463 416,194
(79.298) {67.915) ¢149.736) 1832) - (297.781) (89.855)
510,898 603,877 122607 7186 - T2H.565 1,889,124
68,080 3077 (68.080) (507N - - .
{24.394) (3447 24894 1447 - - -
(20) (1.630) (6,130} {24 BO72 - B
{63.970) 846 50,153 219 {3,072) {20,824} {419.538)
(298,796) {(14.071) (17517 39 - (460,303) 25309
(685) - 1,711} - - 12.396) {2
190.610 460,649 104,166 5617 - 761,042 1494883
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Paid -Up Capital

25

The authorized capital of the Bank is JD 200 million as of December 31, 2020, and 2019.

The authorized capital of the Bank is JD 200 million by year end, divided into 200 million shares at a par
value of ID 1 each.

. Reserves

26.

Statutory Reserve

The amount accumulated in this account is transferred at 10% from the annual net income before tax during

the year and previous years according to the Banks Law and Companies Law. This reserve cannot be
distributed to shareholders.

Voluntary Reserve
The amounts accumulated in this account are transferred at 10% from the annual net income before taxes
during the previous years. This reserve will be used for the purposes approved by the Board of Directors.

Moreover, the General Assembly of Shareholders has the right to capitalize or distribute the whole reserve or
part thereof as dividends.

General Banking Risks Reserve

This item represents the general banking risks reserve in line with the instructions of the Central Bank of
Jordan, The balance of the general bank risk reserve has been transferred to retained earnings as of January
15T 2018 based on Central Bank of Jordan Circular No. 1359/1/10 dated January 25, 2018 and Central Bank
Instructions No. 13/2018 dated June 6, 2018 and other regulatory authorities.

Special Reserve

This reserve represents the periodic fluctuation reserve calculated according to the instructions of the
Palestinian Monetary Autherity concerning the Bank's branches operating in Palestine.

The restricted reserves are as follows:

Nature of
Reserve Amount Restriction
JD
Legal reserve 99,190,875 Companies and Banks Laws
General banking risks reserve 2,804,326 Regulatory bodies requirements
Special reserve 5,849,743 Regulatory bodies requirements

Foreign Currency Translation Differences

This item represents the differences resulting from the translation of net investment in foreign subsidiary
(Bank of Jordan — Syria) upon consolidating the financial statements.

The movement on this item during the year is as follows:

2020 2019
JD JD
Balance at the Beginning of the Year (12,268,120) (12,256,254)
Changes in the translation of net investment in the subsidiary Company
during the year* {587,401) (11,866)
Balance at the End of the Year (12,855,521) (12,268,120)

This item includes the Bank's net share of the structural position related to the investment in the capital of
Banl of Jordan — Syria for the years 2020 and 2019.
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27. Fair Value Reserve
The details of the fair value reserve are as follows:

Balance at the Beginnings of the Year
Unrealized gains— Equity instruments
Unrealized gains- debt instruments

Expected credit loss provision — debt instruments

(Loss) of equity instruments at fair value through comprehensive income
transferred to retained earnings as a result of the sale
Deferred Tax Liabilities

Balance at the End of the Year*

* The fair value reserve is presented net of deferred tax in amount of JD 48,946.

28. Retained Earnings
The details of this item are as follows:

Balazce at the Beginning of the Year
Dividends distributed to shareholders
Profit for the year

Transferred (to) from reserves

Profit transferred as a result for sale of financial assets through
comprehensive income*
Foreign currency translation differences

Balance at the End of the Year

2020 2019
JD JD
24,954,157 26,668,016
722,343 (2,945,694)
(532,176) 938,964
134,933 77,271
(34,403,592) .
3,032,119 215,600
(6,092,218) 24,954,157
2020 2019
JD JD
99,400,640 101,289,732
. (36,000,000)
35,794,598 40,163,256
(5,914,021) (6,057,292)
33,712,044 .
2,821,474 4,944
165,814,735 99,400,640

- Retained eamings include an amount of JD 21,808,399 restricted against deferred tax assets as of December

31,2020 (JD 22,804,298 as of December 31, 2019).

- Retained earnings include an amount of JD 439,810 as of December 31, 2020 which represents the effect of
early adoption of IFRS (9). These restricted amounts cannot be utilized unless realized as instructed by
Jordan Securities Exchange Commission. Also retained earnings include an amount of JD 813,437 as of
December 31, 2020 that cannot be utilized by distribution or any purpose unless there is a formal approval
from Central Bank of Jordan resulting from the application of Central Bank of Jordan circular No. 10/1/1359

dated January 25, 2018.
* Presented net of Income tax.

29, Declared Dividends

The Board of Directors recommended the distribution of 12% of capital as cash dividends to it’s shareholders
related to the year 2020 in its meeting held during the year 2021 equivalent to JD 24 Million which remain

subject to the approval of the General Assembly.
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. __Interest Income

31,

The details of this item are as follows:

Direct Credit Facilities at amortized cost:

Individual (retail customers):

Overdraft accounts

Loans and discounted bills

Credit cards

Real estate loans

Corporate Entities:

Large corporate customers;

Overdraft accounts

Loans and discounted bills

SMEs:

Overdraft accounts

Loans and discounted bills

Government and Public Sector

Other ifems:

Balances with central banks

Balances and deposits with banks and financial institutions
Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income
Total

Interest Expense

The details of this item are as follows:

Banks and financial institution deposits
Customers’ deposits:

Current and demand deposits

Saving accounts

Time and notice deposits

Certificates of deposit

Borrowed funds

Cash margins

Deposits insurance fees

Lease obligations interest

68

2020 2019
ID JD
45,729,532 48,474,467
1,335,160 1,650,601
39,983,762 42,549,301
4.410,610 4,274,565
16,662,155 18,961,088
44,053,951 55,954,995
27,426,194 36,370,792
5,091,169 5,372,250
22,335,025 30,998,542
16,627,757 19,584,203
3,688,834 4,131,069
12,938,923 15,453,134
7,667,306 8,715,135
2,446,563 4,108,507
6,591,623 13,570,149
12,282,740 10,030,613
1,254,044 -
136,687,914 159,814,954
2020 2019
JD JD
2,606,147 6,173,919
11,452 9,498
2,188,283 4,189,378
15,390,904 20,476,569
3,166,341 7,049,635
247,236 106,111
1,728,108 1,728,632
2,597,671 2,966,421
843,382 747,668
28,779,524 43,447,831
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32. Net— Commissions Income
The details of this item are as follows:
2020 2019
JD JD
Commission’s Income:
Direct credit facilities commissions 4,263,344 5,263,633
Indirect credit facilities commissions 2,810,037 3,262,080
Other commissions 13,888,986 15,809,462
Total 20,962,367 24,335,175
Less: Commissions Expense 1,115,155 591,990
Net Commissions Income 19,847,212 23,743,185
33,  Foreign Currencies Income
The details of this item are as follows:
2020 2019
JD JD
From trading / dealing 112,160 (12,610)
From revaluation 2,530,549 3,246,156
2,642,709 3,233,546
34. Gain (Loss) from Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
The details of this item are as follows:
Realized Unrealized Shares
Year 2020 Gain Gain Dividends Total
JD JD JD JD
Local shares 63,580 (11,654) 4,296 56,222
Right to receive financial assets at
fair value (Note 10) - 15,000,000 - 15,000,000
63,580 14,988,346 4,296 15,056,222
Realized Unrealized Shares
Year 2019 Gain {Losses) Dividends Total
JD JD JD JD
Local shares 518 (22,192) 6,444 (15,230)
518 (22,192) 6,444 (15,230)
35.  Othker Income
The details of this item are as follows:
2020 2019
JD JD
Revenues recovered from prior years 626,233 409,696
Gain from the sale of assets foreclosed by the Bank 338,603 673,459
Revenue from telephone, post, and swift 572,822 593,325
Rents received from the Bank’s real estate 181,851 256,909
Gains (Losses) from the sale of property and equipment 717,916 (6,692)
Interest in suspense reversed to income 504,410 870,931
Financial assets foreclosed by the bank revaluation loss - (326,702)
Other revenues 023,440 2,866,051
3,865,275 5,336,976
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Emplovees Expenses

37.

The details of this item are as follows:

Salaries, bonuses, and employees’ benefits
Bank’s contribution to social security
Bank’s contribution to provident fund
Medical expenses

Staff training expenses

Transportation and travel expenses

Life insurance

Other Expenses

The details of this item are as follows:

Rent

Printing and stationery

Telephone, post and swift
Maintenance, repairs, and cleaning
Fees, taxes, and licences
Advertisements and subscriptions
Insurance expenses

Electricity and heating

Donations

Hospitality

Professional, consultancy and legal fees
Board of Directors members remunerations
Miscellaneous

70

2020 2019
JD JD

25,436,637 27,095,023
2,089,018 2,254,086
1,661,669 1,651,959
1,117,072 1,327,592
246,455 365,630
359,825 732,575
69,632 70,803
30,980,308 33,497,668

2020 2019

JD JD

949,703 1,201,201
803,214 865,873
2,136,325 1,925,033
3,762,135 4,392,534
3,569,617 3,842,973
6,584,749 6,672,140
3,402,643 2,549,649
608,593 713,212
1,602,697 681,566
198,647 442,381
1,918,133 1,749,460
55,000 55,000
1,289,932 1,401,581
28,881,388 26,492,603
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38. Financial Assets Expected Credit Losses Expenses

39.

The details on this item are as follows:

Central banks balances

Balances with banks and financial institutions
Deposits with banks and financial institutions

Financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income — debt
securities

Direct credit facilities at amortized cost
Financial assets at amortized cost
Off balance sheet items

Earnings Per Share from Profit for the Year

40.

The details of this item are as follows:

Profit for the year (Bank's sharcholders)

Weighted average number of shares

Net income for the year/share (Bank's shareholders)
Basic

Diluted

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The details of this item are as follows:

Cash and balances with Central Banks maturing within 3 months
Add: Balances with banks and other financial institutions maturing
within 3 months

Less: Banks and financial institutions’ deposits maturing within 3
months

Restricted balances

71

For the year ended December 31,

2020 2019
JD JD
(32,537) 62,601
2,687 (674)
(87,116) 108,551
134,933 77,271
32,733,710 16,174,929
501,239 (401,717)
{1,384,003) 2,608,395
31,868,913 18,629,356
2020 2019
JD JD
35,794,598 40,163,256
200,000,000 200,000,000
0,179 0,201
0,179 0,201
December 31,
2020 2019
JD JD
338,993,477 374,017,791
190,726,236 188,326,285
(19,824,487) (20,306,711)
(96,977,030) (107,594,399)
412,918,196 434,442,966
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42, Related parties Transactions

Withiz ils normat activities, the Bank estered into transactions with its major shareholders, members of the Board of Directors, execative management and the associate Company at the commercial rates of interest and
commission. Moreover, ail loans and advances with related partics are performing, and no provision for probable credit losses has been taken thereon,

The fellowing ar¢ sumaries of balances and transactions with related parties:

Related party Total
December 31,
Board of
Directors Exceutives
Subsidiaries* Members Management Staff Provident Fund Other Partics 2020 2019
opsoliiat atement of Fingncial Position Hems: ID I JD JD Jn JB Jo
Assets;
Investments 45413294 - - - . 45415,294 43,415,284
Credit Facilities v 1,384,103 1,483,565 - 1852744 4,730412 43,864,185
Current accounts and Deposits 576,234 - - - - 576,234 799,105
Cash Margins 3,982,000 - - - - 3,982,000 3,982,000
Customer Deposits and Margins 14,072,994 1.195843 3,890,185 137,608 36,021,101 55,317,831 143,604,775
Bank Deposits 3,659372 - - - - 8.659.272 $.799,342
Bormrowed funds 1,561,616 - - - - 3,561,616 3,679,102
Qff-consnlidated balance sheet items
Letters of guarantee 725,000 300 - - 5,054,136 5820436 8,542,344
Acceptances and credits - - - - 2,302,281 2,302,281 3,391,097
Total
for the vear ended December 31,
2020 2009
Consnlidated Statement of Profit or Loss Items: J JDp
Credit intercst and commission 11,732 102,192 58.760 216 277471 450,371 3,609,254
Debit interest end commission 786,68 19,109 74,913 36,280 2,432,359 3,399129 6.515,201

Interest rades;

» Credit interest rates against facilities in JOD range from 1.5%% {minimum price represent interest raie against cash margin amounted 10 180%5) 10 9.25%.
- No credit interest in foreign currency.

« Debit interest rates for JOD range from 0.0025% to 5.75%.

- Debit interest rates for foreign currency tange from 0.06%5 o 1,06%.

* Balances and transacations with subsidiary companies are excluded from the eonsolidated financial statements, but presented for clarification purposes only.
- fnvestment in subsisidary « Syriz is shown at cost, noting that the bank has hedged against the impaisment of this investment in its records.
- Related parties number that have been granted facilities is 43 customers as of Deg 31, 2020.

2020 2019
JD JD
Salarics and exccutive benefits 2,587,570 2,395,460
Transportation and board secretary 36032 27.000
Board of directors membership, transportation and bonuses 595,031 665421
Total 3,218,633 3,087,881
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Rislt Management

First: Qualitative Disclosures:

The Bank manages banking risks through identifying the risks that it might be exposed to and
methods of challenging and mitigating them. This is achieved through implementing a group of
restructuring projects using best standards and banking acts that aim at separating risk management
activities from those related to development of business and operations (execution).

In this context, the Bank has formed a Risk Management Committee, derived from the Board of
Directors to ensure the presence of an effective internal monitoring function in accordance with the
policies and scope of work set for it by the Board of Directors.

Risk management assumes the responsibility of managing the various types of risks through:

Preparing policies and getting them approved by the Board of Directors.

Analysing the risk types (credit, market, liquidity, operations information security).

Developing measurement and control methodologies for each risk type.

Providing the Board of Directors and executive management with reports and information about
quantitative and qualitative measurements of the Bank risks.

The Bank has established several systems to control and measure risks like capital adequacy, liquidity
risk and ratios {LCR, NSFR) operating risks and events and market risk.

Credit Risks

Credit risks arise from the probable inability and/or lack of desire of the borrower or third party to
fulfil its obligations in a timely manner. These risks include on-consolidated financial statements
items such as loans and bonds, and off-consolidated financial statements items such as guarantees
and/or documentary credits causing financial losses to the Bank.

In this regard, the Bank reinforces institutional frameworks that govern the management of credit
through the following:

Setting up independent specialized departments for the credit management as follows:

Companies Credit Risk Department (for the management of companies’ credit risks).

Small and Medium Size Enterprises (SMEs) Risk Management Department (for management of
SMEs credit risks).

Individuals Credit Risk Department (for management of individual’s credit portfolios risks).

Credit Portfolios Risk Management Department: the department focuses on maintaining the quality of
credit granted to the Barik's clients (Corporate, SME & Individual). Studying the Key Risk Indicators
(KRI) and Key Performance Indicators (KPI) through preparing studies and reports covering the
performance of economic sectors and industries and comparing it with the performance of the Bank's
credit portfolios and associated provisions. Utilizing the aforementioned reports to establish proper
recommendations which in turn provide guidance for the business development units to target
promising economic sectors/industries or to avert expansion in the deteriorating ones.
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In addition to the above, the department of Credit Portfolios Risk Management conducts periodical
studies and reports to shed light on the below aspects:

The concentration of credit portfolio across economic activity levels.

The concentration of credit portfolio across product levels.

Reports covering the Bank's default ratios and coverage ratios compared to the banking sector.

Credit portfolios performance reports, conducted on segment basis (Corporate, SME, Government and
Individuals) compared to the banking sector in terms of growth and profitability rates.

The preparation for the implementation of IFRS (9) through conducting scenarios and reports required
to comply with the IFRS (9) implementation by the beginning of 2018.

Applying a risk rating system through which the clients will be classified under ten stages (ratings)
and according to the below factors:

Obligor Risk Rating (economic sector, management, financial standing, experience, etc).

Facility Risk Rating (risk weight will be assigned according to the type and nature of the facility).
Collateral Rating: (risk weight will be assigned according to the type and nature of the collateral),
which will directly impact the Recovery Ratio, thus the calculation of Loss Given Default LGD.,

Separating the Business Development Department from Credit Risk Departments,

Implementing a set of approved policies and procedures that outline principles for defining,
measuring, and managing the type of risk.

Determining credit concentrations at the credit type level, economic sector, geographical distribution,
and credit portfolios, etc. Credit risks are managed by departments according to their specialization.

Implementing an authorization and relationship management system;
Bank of Jordan adopts an authorization system that includes authority granting, delegation,
monitoring and relationship management of the various credit activities.

Determining credit risk mitigation methods:
Bank of Jordan adopts various methods to mitigate credit risks such as the following:
Providing the proper credit structure that matches its purpose and repayment period.

Ensuring the completion of all control aspects relating to the utilization of credit and the sources of its
payment.

Obtaining proper guarantees to hedge against any risks in this regard.
Analysing and evaluating credit transactions by credit risk departments.

Periodically evaluating guarantees according to the nature, type, and degree of risks to reinforce
guarantees and ensure their adequacy constantly.

Setting up specialized committees for approving credit.

Controlling credit execution by the credit control department in addition to a unit concerned with
documentation, completion of legal audit, and execution.

Applying credit management mechanisms (CREMS and E-loan).
Setting up a specialized department to follow up on the collection of dues and non-performing debts.
Setting up a committee for risk management at the Board of Directors level to review policies, credit

strategies, investments and risks.
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Determining the duties of the various credit risk departments concerning the mechanism and

periodicity of controls and issuance/submission of reports to the Board of Directors and Executive
Management.

Analysing economic fluctuations and changes in the structure and quality of credit portfolios.

Preparation and implementation of Stress Testing procedures.

Control Reports:

The credit risks departments, each according to its specialization, control and evaluate all credit
operations through a set of control procedures:

Daily control:

Monitoring credit viclations, un-renewed due credit ceilings, due accounts, and others.

Controlling the quality and distribution of the credit portfolic.

Rating credit risks, economic sector, credit type, guarantees, concentration, credit asset quality trends,
and others.

Monitoring credit exposure at the customer level (Total Exposure), geographic area, credit type,
economic sector, maturity date, guarantee type, and others,

These reports are submitted monthly to the risk management committee at the Board of Directors

level. Timely reports on daily operations are submitted to the General Manager,
Operational Risk

Operational risks arise from the inefficiency or failure of internal operations, employees, or systems
or may stem from external events including legal risks. The Operational Risk Unit was established in
2003 under the Risk Management Depariment to manage the Operational Risks in the bank where
qualified staff were appointed and automated systems were supplied since that date to empower the
unit to perform its duties effectively.

The Bank manages operational risks through the following process:

Setting the operational risks policy, approving it by the Board of Directors, and implementing it
across the bank and its affiliates. This includes the standards for defining and measuring risks in
addition to the Risk Appetite accepted for these risks.

Implementing an operational risk management system (CAREWeb).

Creating risk profiles for all Bank entities which include all operational risks that may affect the
entity, the related controls to mitigate them and the frequency of their testing to ensure effective and

continuous implementation. Reports on risk profiles are submitted to the Risk Committee on the
Board level for approval.

Internal Audit Department evaluates the validity of monthly self-assessment tests for the Bank’s
various units, classifies these units according to the approved classification standards and incorporates
them into the internal audit reports it submits to the Audit Committee on a timely basis. The
Operational Risk Unit incorporates self-assessment results in comparison with internal audit results
for all of the Bank's entities and submits them to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.

Continuous evaluation of the Risk Profiles:
In this regard, a self-assessment tool (Control & Risk Self-Assessment) has been applied to manage
operational risks through continuous evaluation of risks to identify new risks, ensure the efficiency of

control procedures to mitigate these risks, and update the risk profiles on a timely basis to reflect the
actual internal control environment.
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Setting up a database for operational incidents, analysing them and submitting reports on the
concentration and type of these incidents to the Risk Committee/Board of Directors.

Applying rating standards and evaluating the Bank’s entities according to international classification
standards for internal control environment.

Setting up and determining key risk indicators (KRIs) at the Bank’s level and provides the related
departments within the Bank with the results of these indicators to be monitored as well as applying
rating standards and the correction procedures to avoid the risk before its occurrence.

Preparation and implementation of Stress Testing procedures specialized for operation risks.

Providing the Risk committee on the Board of Directors level with periodic reports (monthly,
quarterly) that reflect the actual internal control environment for the various units in the Bank.

Evaluating the policies and procedures in the Bank to identify any control gaps in these processes and
arrange with concermed entities to rectify these gaps.

Conducting trainings and awareness sessions for the Bank's employees on Operational Risk
Management to enhance the internal control environment at the Bank,

The entity's risk profile is updated in coordination with the Internal Audit Department to identify the
risks to which the entity may be exposed and adversely affect the achievement of the objectives and
strategy of the entity and its profits. Any amendments to the entity's risk profile shall be presented to
the Risk Management Committee to be approved. The Internal Audit Department annually evaluates

the entity's control procedures and presents the results of the examinations to the Risk Management
Committee.

The Operational Risk profile is updated at the entity level for AML Risk in coordination with the
compliance department at the bank level for identifying AML and CTF risks and conirols that
mitigate them. Any amendments to the entity’s AML risk profile shall be presented to the risk
management committee to be approved by them. The Infernal Audit Department annually evaluates

the entity's control procedures and presents the results of the examinations to the and the Risk
Management Committee.

Liquidity and Mayrket Risk

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk represents the Bank’s inability to make the necessary funding available to meet its
obligations on their maturity dates or to finance its activities without incurring high costs or losses.
Moreover, liquidity risks are divided into two types:

Funding Liquidity Risk
This risk represents the Bank's inability to change assets into cash - such as the collection of
receivables - or to obtain funding to meet its obligations.

Market Liguidity Risk

This risk represents the Bank's inability to sell the asset in the market or selling the asset at a huge
financial loss due to weak liquidity or demand in the market and includes the following:
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Market Risk

Market risks: are the risks of exposure of the positions on and off the Bank's Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position to losses as a result of price fluctuations in the market. This includes the risks
arising from the volatility of interest rates and stock prices of investment portfolios, both for the
purpose of trading or exchange and include the following:

Interest rate risks.

Currency exchange rate risks (dealing with foreign currency).
Fluctuation in shares prices risks.

Goods risks.

Market risks arise from;

Changes that may occur in the political and economic conditions in markets.
Fluctuations in interest rates.

Fluctuations in the prices of financial instruments held for future buying and selling.
Gaps in maturities of assets and liabilities and interest rate re-pricing.
Holding of uncovered positions.

The substantial tools used to measure and manage markets risks are as follows:

Basis Point Value
Value at Risk
Stress Testing

The Bank manages the market and liquidity risk through:

A set of policies and procedures approved by the Board of Directors that define the principles for
defining, measuring, monitoring, monitoring and managing market risks and liquidity risks.

Asset and liability management system to adjust and measure liquidity risk and interest rates.
Setting up a liquidity crisis management plan that includes the following:

Specialized procedures for the management of liquidity risk.

Specialized committee to manage liquidity risk.

A liquidity contingency plan.

Developing measurement, management, and monitoring liquidity and market risk tools through:
Preparing liquidity risk reports according to the maturity scale.

Monitoring ceilings and quality of the investment portfolio.

Identifying sources of funds and classifying/analysing them according to their nature.
Monitor the application of liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) and compliance with the minimum ratio.

Controlling legal liquidity and daily cash liquidity. This means keeping an adequate amount of liquid
assets (cash and cash equivalents) to meet obligations.

Matching maturities of assets and liabilities, taking into consideration all infernal and external cash
flows,

Performing stress testing.

The preparation of a periodic analysis about the developments in local and international markets.
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Monitoring investment tools and analyzing the range of conformity with the issued investment limits
in the investment policy and the allowed losses Hmits.

Analysing ceilings and limitations of the investments and providing a recommendation to adjust it
according to improvements and circumstances of international and local markets, and diversifying
investment with what achieves best returns and less risks.

Analysing the investment concentrations on the level of each tool.
Reviewing and assessing the portfolio’s assets and liabilities.

Analysing credit rating for international and local banks according to the financial situation and how
much it is effected by the economic crises and the spread of its range globally.

Monitor interest trends on the volume of deposits, maturity date and its suspended range.

The preparation of reports about the exceeding limit in investments tools.

Monitoring the changes on interest prices in international and local markets,

Monitoring the sensitivity of investment tools for changes in interest prices on each investment tool.
Monitoring the pricing process for borrowing and lending/investments ceiling.

Monitoring the concentration on markets/tool and geographical distribution.

Submitting periodic reports to the Investment Committee and Risk Management Committee/Board of
Directors.

Information Security Risk
Defined as any potential threat that may lead to a failure in confidentiality, availability, and
integration of the Bank’s information. Information security unit has been established to protect the

Bank’s information, users and assets by applying high level policies and procedures through specific
definitions of mandatory baseline controls.

Bank of Jordan adopts the following principles to manage information security risks:

Review Information Security Policies and update the policies to be in line with international
standards.

Comply with PCI-DSS Requirements.

Monitor all systems, servers, and network components on a regular basis by using special tools to
counter any threat.

Review privileges based on job classification and function and restricted to least privileges necessary
to perform job responsibilities.

Identify threats and vulnerabilities and identify appropriate controls to mitigate any new risks.

Review and update Business Contingency Plan periodically and periodically perform the necessary
tests to check the effectiveness of the plan as well as the Disaster Recovery Plan.

Review and evaluate the physical security controls on a regular basis.

Coordinate or conduct security orientation and security awareness programs.

Reporting information security/Communication Progress and related cases to upper management,
Complying with SWIFT _ CSR requirements.

Preparation of IT management governance guide and related technology and to be published on the
Banlc’s website.

12. Applying IT management governance and related technology COBIT 2019.
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Compliance Risks

These represent the risks that arise from the probable failure of the Bank to comply with
(violate/transgress) the prevailing laws, regulations, instructions, banking laws, and code of ethics
issued by the international and local regulatory bodies, including the Bank’s internal policies.

The Bank has set up a compliance department, staffed with qualified and trained personnel, equipped
with automatic systems, and assigned with the task of managing this type of risk according to the
following criteria:

Risk of non-compliance with regulations, laws and regulations:

Preparing, developing and reviewing the compliance policy at Bank of Jordan on group level
periodically (at least one time/year), approving it by the Board of Directors, and enforcing it. This
policy includes the principles for defining, measuring, and controlling risks.

Applying an automatic system for managing compliance risks.

Evaluating and adopting all work policies and procedures and ensuring their compliance with laws,
regulations, and instructions governing the Bank’s work.

Preparing and applying compliance matrices, which include limiting the violation of laws and
regulations and ensuring compliance with them periodically according to the nature and type of the
matrix.

Monitoring the implementation of the code of professional conduct.

Preparing and monitoring implementation of a conflict of interest’s management mechanism.
Qualifying and training all Bank employees with regard to compliance management.

Providing the Board of Directors and Executive Management with periodic reports that include
violations and non-compliance at the Bank’s unit level.

Submit periodic report on the results of its work and monitors its compliance to the compliance
Committee/Board of Directors and the Risk Committee.

Risks of money laundering and terrorist financing:

As for Anti-Money Laundering activities, an autonomous unit within the Compliance Department has

been set up with appropriate and qualified capabilities and systems. The Bank manages the unit of
Anti-Money Laundering and Terrorism Finance as follows:

Preparing the policy of combating money laundering and terrorism financing and approving it by the
Board of Directors in accordance with the Law No. 46/2007 to combat money laundering and terrorist
financing, and the instructions issued pursuant to it and to monitor its application on the ground and
review it permanently.

The implementation of an automated system to check daily customer’s transactions.

Rating of customers in accordance to their risk grade.

Automated and periodic verification of the bank’s customers not being included in the lists of persons
prohibited from dealing with them internationally.

Carry out enhanced due diligence regarding transactions with high-risk clients.

Awareness and education for all bank employees on issues related to dealing with money laundering
and terrorist financing.

Identify and evaluate the risks of money laundering and terrorist financing that may arise in
connection with the development of products within new business lines, and those that may arise from
the use of new technologies within new business lines or under development with respect to both new
and existing products, and take appropriate measures to manage and reduce those risks.

80



1

BANK OF JORDAN
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
AMMAN -- JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Risks of FATCA Non-compliance and dealing with fraud cases:

The Financial and Tax Verification Unit was established / within the umbrella of the Compliance
Department, which includes both the Financial Verification Department which aims to combat and
address cases of suspicion, fraud and forgery, and the Tax Verification Section that meets the tax
compliance requirements of the FATCA law and this unit follows global best practices to prevent any
risks related to its business this unit was provided with qualified human resources and requirements for
managing the compliance process which was prepared according to the following:

Establish the organizational structure of the unit and determine the responsibility of each employee in
it.

The preparation and adoption of anti-fraud policy, corruption, and periodic review of this policy.
Prepare and approve a program to comply with FATCA requirements and a policy to deal with the
FATCA law to be reviewed and updated on pericdic basis, as needed.

Take measures to reflect all FFI Agreement requirements where required (amend procedures, business
models, ete.)

Contracting with a specialized company to implement a system to manage FATCA requirements.

To qualify and continuously train all bank employees in a manner that meets the requirements of the
unit in relation to dealing with the FATCA law and the requirements of the financial verification
department.

The compliance committee/Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing cases of fraud and
suspicion by following up on the periodic reports submitted to the committee.

The unit submits a periodic report on compliance with the FATCA requirements to the compliance
committee and Risk committee / Board of Directors.
The Bank manages and handles customer complaints according to the following:

Based on the instructions of dealing with customers with the fairness and transparency of No. 56/2012
issued by the Central Bank of Jordan on 31/10/2012, a unit was established to manage and handle
customer complaints and provide them with qualified human cadres and automated systems and
administratively follow the Compliance Department. The unit complies to the following basis:

Prepare a mechanism for the management and handling of customer complaints and their adoption as
required.

Preparation of the policy of dealing with customers fairly and transparently and duly adopted.

Preparing the policy of dealing with customer complaints and approving them according to the rules
according to the internal procedures instructions to deal with the complaints of customers of financial
and banking services providers No. 1/2017 dated 28/8/2017 issued by the Central Bank of Jordan.

Providing different communication channels to receive customer complaints.

IFRS (9) implementation related disclosures

First: Qualitative Disclosures

On July 24th, 2014, the International Accounting Standards Board issued the final version of IFRS 9
related to Financial Instruments and Provisions, which will replace IAS 39 and will be mandatory
effective from 1 January 2018, The standard includes the below:

Classification and measurement of financial instruments.
Determination of expected credit loss allowance.
Hedge accounting.

The standard came in response to the lessons learned from the global financial crisis, since one of the
reasons for the crisis was the delay in recognition of debt losses whereas Losses are recognized when
realized. The new standard requires establishing provisions for credit facilities based on the
expectations of borrower default or inability to meet financial commitments.
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This standard introduced radical amendments to the methods used to calculate bank provisions as the
current concept of assigning provisions is based on losses resulted from non-performing loans while
the new standard works in proactive basis by assigning provision against current performing credit
facilities assuming the occurrence of future default for such credit facilities. Based on the expectations
of the future of the working debt Proactive as expected credit loss provision.

Bank of Jordan carried out IFRS 9 implementation works in cooperation with Moody's where the
historical data of Bank of Jordan Groups were used to measure the expected credit losses weighted by
the impact of economic scenarios.

The Central Bank of Jordan instructions as well as the Bank's business Model, risk departments (risk
framework) and supervisory departments were all taken into consideration when forming Bank of
Jordan IFRS (9) methodology. The Bank’s management ensured that the methodology emulate the
Bank’s business model and apply the best practices, quantitative methods and statistical models to
produce the components of the expected credit loss formula in:

Expected Credit Loss = Probability of Default x Exposure at Default x Loss Given Default

IFRS (9) Scope of Implementation:

Bank of Jordan IFRS (9) methodology catered for applying the standard on group level (foreign
branches) and its subsidiaries and in line with the host country laws and regulations. The model of
Expected Credit Loss calculation covers the following:

Loans and credit facilities (direct and indirect).

Debt instruments carried at amortized cost.

Financial guarantees (as per the standards requirements).

Credit claims on banks and financial institutions (excluding current accounts used to cover the bank

operations such as remittances, Letters of Guarantee and Letters of Credit) which falls within a short
period of time (days).

The following are the main information and definitions used by the Bank to implement this standard:

Definition of Default:

The occurrence of 90 days or more past due where such event indicates the obligor inability to meet
the contractual obligations in full with the Bank.

Definition of Probability of Default PD:

Probability of Default represent the risk of the customer's inability to meet its obligations toward the
bank.

Determination of PD for Corporate and SME Portfolios: through mapping the obligors ratings
generated by the internal risk rating system with it's equivalent Probability of Default at this level of
risk, taking into account that each risk rate reflects a certain level of risk and weighted by the
portfolios historical default events (Corporates and SMEs).

Determination of PD for Retail Portfolio: these PDs were established based on the historical product
default data (collective level) for each product, where the Observed Default Rate is calculated by
applying a statistical model (Autoregressive Model) for evaluating the default rate for each product.

Definition of Exposure at Default EAD: represent the borrower outstanding indebtedness toward the
bank when default takes place.

The calculation of exposure at default were carried out in line with the historical utilization for the
credit facilities and according to its nature (direct, indirect, revolving and\or amortizing) thus the basis
for caleulating the exposure at default was set based on the facility nature and age.

Loss Given Default 1.GD: represent the bank loss resulted from non-performing credit loss
impairment, in other terms (1- Recovery Ratio).
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At the level of corporate and SME portfolios: The Bank determine LGDs for credit instruments under
Corporate and SME portfolios through using Moody’s RiskCalc the LGD model, the model depends
on the availability of several input such as obligor PD, business sector in addition to credit facility
nature {revolvinglamortizing) and takes into consideration the availability of tangible collaterals
(secured or unsecured) and the collateral type and value. In addition to the above, the risk calculation
LGD model avails LGD results according to credit maturity and its stage (12 months LGDs and the
lifetime LGDs) accompanied with recovery ratios for each credit instrument.

At the level of the collective portfolio: the rate of loss was determined at the product level based on

industry- standards and observed magnitudes in the region, in addition to business input from the
Bank of Jordan.

Zero LGDs was assigned for 100% cash collateralized facilities (dominated in the same currency) and
for facilities availed for the Government of Jordan andior backed by the Government of Jordan
(regardless of credit facilities currency).

Calculating the Expected Credit Loss ECL for Time Deposits Held with Other Banks:

Using the Banks Risk Calculation model, the probability of default and default due to default has been
reached. Through Banks Risk Calculation, the called Expected Default Frequency EDF is produced,
which is equivalent to the probability of default for the banks with which deposits are held. The risk
of default in the inputs of the Risk Calculation LGD model Loss due to default and then the balance is
calculated at default on the assumption of the entire deposit value without any modification to the

possibility of default as the deposits can be subject to the calenlation of the possibility of default for a
period of time adjustment,

Calculating the Expected Credit Loss ECL for Bonds;

The largest share of the bond portfolio is bonds guaranteed by the Government of Jordan and are not
subject to the expected credit loss.

The PDs calculated by using Banks Risk Calculation model to cater for banks bonds while PDs for
corporate bonds generated by mapping the Internal Risk Rate for the subject companies with the
equivalent PDs. LGDs determination by using the Risk Calculation LGD model (same as other assets
subject to ECL). Bond value at reporting date represent EAD. Once the ECL formula components
defined, the Bank executes the calculations to define the ECL for bonds.

Internal Credit Risk Rating:

Bank of Jordan applies an internal risk rating system to classify the risks of corporate and small and
medium-sized companies (SMEs) on a scale of 1-10, so each degree reflects the risk of default, thus
identifying the possibility of the customer's failure through its risk rating,

The customer risk rating process includes the study and analysis of the customer's quantitative data so
that the financial performance of the client is evaluated, the financial performance of the client, the
business activity and its relationship with the Bank as well as industry risks.

The risk rating table consists of 10 grades, each of which internally reflects the degree of risk
associated with the customer. The higher the level of the customer's risk, the greater the risk of
default. Consequently, more control is imposed on the client's account and more stringent procedures
are followed. The grades from 1 to 6 generally reflect relatively acceptable risks (hence credit is
included in the first stage), Grade 7 reflects a significant increase in the degree of risk to the client
(therefore included in the second stage/watchlist), finally grades 8-10 reflects the customer's entry in
the default case, accordingly to be classified within stage as a non-performing classification.

The table below shows the internal credit risk rating against customer risks and the probability of
default corresponding to each rating:

Internal credit Risk Rating Credit Stage Propability of Default
1-6 Stage One — performing From %0,008 to %4,2
7 Stage T'wo - watchlist From %6,5 to %15
8-10 Stage Three — Non performing %100
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Calculating Obligors Risk Rating and the Expected Credit Loss on Collective Basis:

Retail portfolio: Based on the historical product default data (collective level) for each product, where
the Observed Default Rate calculated by applying a statistical model (Autoregressive Model) for
evaluating the default rate for each product. Retail products categorized in 4 groups: housing loans,
personal loans, auto loans and revolving loans including credit cards knowing that these products
share the same characteristics in terms of: credit risk, collateral type, interest rate and maturity.

Calculating Obligors Risk Rating and the Expected Credit Loss on Individual Basis;

At the level of the portfolio of corporates and SMEs: By determining the classification of the client by
the business segment (Business Segment), whether companies or small and medium enterprises and
then study the historical default rate of the portfolio Historical Default Data (for the previous five
years) and therefore give the customer degree of risk commensurate The Segment Level Risk Rating
is the historical default rate of the portfolio,

After determining the probability of default for the client at the portfolio level, the expected credit
loss for the customer is calculated on an individual basis, depending on the nature of the facilities
granted to the customer/age of credit and guarantees (as applicable to all SME customers).

IFRS (9) Implementation Governance:

Bank of Jordan IFRS (9) methodology covers the Governance procedures followed in applying the
IFRS (9) which summarize the roles and responsibilities for all parties involved in implementation
works in addition to data checking mechanisms applied in checking the data used in IFRS 9)
implementation.

Governance procedures covers audit role and the validation of expected credit loss adequacy allocated
by the Bank. In addition to the above Audit is also responsible for conducting periodic review to
ensure data accuracy used in applying the IFRS9 in order to meet the regulator requirements.
Furthermore, Audit are in charge of monitoring involved units and ecvaluate the IFRS 9
implementation by generating periodic reports to the board who in turn approve the results and role
responsible for applying effective monitoring through defining committees and unit roles in the Bank
to unit roles in the Bank to provide the proper infrastructure and ensure work integration between
these units ensure work integration between these units.

Changes in Credit Risk and Determinants Followed by the Bank's in Calculation of Expected Credit
Loss:

Adopting the Internal Credit Rating System adopted by the Bank of Jordan in addition to the decisions
of the Credit Committee. For the purpose of determining a significant change in the classification of a
customer's risk rating, the rating of the customer five years ago is compared with their current rating
or (due appearance) for 30 days or more, which requires the transfer of the customer from Stage I to
Stage 2 while a decline in customer rating (two notches) indicates a substantial change in the credit

type.

For the purpose of transfer of credit claims between the stages, the following controls have been set:
Adoption of a standard (30-day due period) since the inception of the application as an indication of
an increase in credit risk.

If there is a maturity of more than 30 days and up to 59 days at the account level, all the facilities
granted to the customer are classified as Stage 2.

Client classified under watchlist, all it’s products granted shall remain within Stage 2 until the
customer is obliged to pay (3) monthly instalments, two quarterly instalments or one semi-annual
premium, In the case of a customer's commitment and the transfer of its classification to a regular
transaction, the customer is treated according to the base number of days due only.

If the classified client is not performing all the products granted to him remain within Stage 3. If the
account is seftled, the client is transferred to Stage 2, the classification of the customer will be under

watch list transferred from non performing and the client will stay under this classification until point
3 is met.
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Applying Macroeconomic Scenarios on the Expected Credit Loss {ECL) Results:

The ECL result is a weighted average of 3 scenarios (40% of baseline scenario + 30% of downside
scenario + 30% of upside scenario) on the final result of the expected credit loss at the
facility/instrument level and the expected credit foss is the result of the maturity of each facility and
the stage at which the customer is classified (Stage 1, Stage2 & Stage3).

Several factors were used to predict the expected future events and to use more than one scenario
(basic, negative and positive). These factors were summarized in the adoption of the impact of change
in GNP, the performance of the financial market (for the corporate portfolio and SMEs) and the
change in the consumer price index and the performance of the financial market (For the collective

portfolio).

Employing the impact of economic scenarios in calculating the expected credit loss:

Corporates and SMEs Portfolio

The most statistically relevant model is one that includes the performance of the
financial market Equity and GDP as independent variables having an impact on
credit quality (dependent variable). Whenever one of these variables changes, it
will affect the quality of credit (negatively or positively).

Based on the results of the statistical test (t-statistics), the economic variables (the
performance of the financial market and the GDP) were adopted as they were

considered the most appropriate to determine the change in the credit quality of
the customer.

Collective Portfolio

The economic indicators adopted in the calculation of the credit loss are the
Consumer Price Index (CPI) and the Stock Prices Proxies Index (SPI) as an
indicator that reflects the position of the labor market.These indicators were
selected after studying the extent of their correlation with default rates according
to historical data.

Bonds

The propability of default PD and the loss given default: financial data were
entered for the Banks bonds purchased as this process produces Expected Defanlt
Frequency which is equivalent to the probability of defaultThen LGD is
generated after that exposure at default EAD is calculated assuming the full bond
value. The expected ECL loss is calculated using the Moody's Impairment
calculation model.

Jordan Leasing Company

EAD is calculated based on the total value of the contract and not on the value of
the receivables {net of utilized), regardiess of the percentage of utilization linked
to the percentage of completion. The calculation of the loss given default, taking
into consideration the good coverage through the percentage of contribution and
real estate value coverage of the loan, as the percentage of the contribution is
fixed whether the project is within the stages of completion or completed,
Linking the customer’s portfolio propability of default with the point in time
propability of defauit PIT PD to be subject to economic scenarios. Accordingly,
the expected credit loss results have been produced at the customer level by
classifying them within the collective or individval portfolio.

Excel for Financial invesmnet

EAD is calculated on the gross limits although the utilization is tied to the deposit
of shares (it is not possible to utilize without a contribution from the customer)
which represents the most conservative balance. Calculation of the LGD based on
the percentage of the customer's contribution (l-percentage of the customer's
contribution), Linking the customer’s portfolio propability of default with the
point in time propability of default PIT PD to be subject to the economic
scenarios and will therefore produce the expected credit loss at the client and
portfolio levels.

Bank’s Deposits

Calculating the probability of default and the loss given default LGD for the
production of Expected Default Frequency EDF, which is equivalent to the
probability of default for the banks whose deposits are held. The LGD is then
generated and then EAD is calculated assuming the full deposit value then ECL is
calculated using the Moody's ImpairmentCale model.
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As a result of the COVID 19 pandemic and the developments resulting from it, the Bank has taken a
set of measures since the start of the pandemic and during the year 2020, including the following:

Restructuring and postponing the credit facilities instalments in accordance with the Central Bank of
Jordan instructions for taking appropriate measures to face the pandemic.

Measuring the expected risks of the economic sectors for all customers at the level of Bank of Jordan
Group, as this was done through the Central Bank of Jordan issued instructions measuring the impact
of the COVID 19 pandemic on the bank’s portfolios to assess the expected impact of the pandemic by
classifying the degrees of customers / sectors affected into three degrees as follows:

Highly impacted: customers/ sectors expected to be classified under non-performing debts (stage 3)
after 2-3 months.

Medium impact; customers/ sectors expected to be classified under non-performing debts (stage 3)
after 6 months.

Low impact: customers/ sectors expected to be classified under non-performing debts (stage 3) after 9
Months.

In light of above, business units have studied their corporate, commercial / individual portfolios in
terms of a set of indicators as shown below:

Corporate and Commercial Portfolio:

The business units of both Corporate and commercial clients have studied a set of indicators,
including cash flows, the client's financial position and related economic activity to provide the
degrees of client’s impact degrees. The Credit Risk Department included this category of clients in the

third stage, and raised its risk rating to (8) and its probability of default to (100%), leading to the
calculation of expected credit losses for each sector / customer.

Individuals Portfolio:

The Retail Banking Services Department studied the affected customers and sectors, and the Credit
Risk Department included this category of customers within the third phase, and raised the probability
of its default to (100%4), leading to the calculation of the expected credit losses for each customer.

At the same time, the impact of the crisis on customers was reassessed by the end of 2020 and
compared with what was measured at the start of the pandemic, accordingly the size of the expected
credit losses impact were reflected in the financial statements.

Expected credit losses were estimated based on a set of expected economic conditions as at that date
and in view of the rapid development of the current situation, the bank took into consideration the
impact of high volatility on future macroeconomic factors when determining the severity and
likelihood of economic scenarios to determine expected credit losses. This volatility was reflected
through the modification in the scenarios building methods, and determining the fature factors used
from the statistical distribution of the factors of the credit cycle index, which can be derived from a
number of observable historical factors such as risk returns, credit growth, margins or credit
assumptions, as well as the forward looking.

The bank has updated the macroeconomic factors used in calculating the probability of default to
reflect the development resulting from the COVID 19 pandemic in coordination with Moody's, which
were determined from the statistical distributions of the credit cycle index factors. The bank conducts
the study and periodic review of these factors and scenarios on an ongoing basis.

In addition to that, Bank of Jordan management has paid special attention to the impact of COVID 19
pandemic on qualitative and quantitative factors when determining the large increase in credit risk and
assessing indicators of impairment risk in the sectors likely to be affected. This led to a downgrade of
some credit exposures and recognition of expected credit losses and impairment provisions, as set out
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Second: Quanfitative Disclosures:
{43/A) Credit Risk

Exposure to credit risk (after expected credit losses provisions and interest in suspense and before

collateral held or other mitigation factors):

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position items
Balances with central banks

Balances with banks and financial institutions
Deposits with banks and financial institutions
Financial assets through comprehensive income — debt
instruments at fair value

Credit facilities:

Individuals (retail customers)

Real estate loans

Corporates

Large corporale customers

SMEs

Government and public sector

Financial assets at amortized cost (Bonds & Treasury Bills)

Off-Balance Sheet

Letters of guarantee

Letters of credit

Acceptances

Un-utilized direct and indirect facilities limits
Total

2020 2019
D D

283,016,956 311,972,465
190,722,330 188,323,327
89,525,567 208,123,765
25,344,463 25,909,988
1,466,739,098  1,409,525437
510,934,395 450,266,813
247351,731 230,192,310
527,426,549 606,717,530
319,177,566 393,044,807
208,248,983 213,672,723
181,026,423 122,348,784
348,454,969 272,535,799
2,403,803,383  2,416,390,781
104,089,553 105,945,206
52,214,558 69,045,721
18,589,588 19,273,465
284,804,671 456,904,663
2,863,502,753  3,067,559,836

The guarantees and mitigating credit risk factors against credit exposure mentioned above include the

following:

Obtaining suitable guarantees and recording them correctly against any potential risks. These
guaranfees represent cash guarantees, and non-cash guarantees such as real estate, vehicles,
equipment and stock mortgages in addition to guarantees and credit derivatives binding to all parties

involved and legally exercisable at ail competent courts.

Having a credit rating system for the Bank’s customers and relying on the credit ratings issued by

international credit agencies for banks and companies.

Performing periodic evaluations of guarantees according to the nature, type and degree of risk to

ensure regularly their adequacy against the credit granted.

Conducting a legal audit of all contracts and documents their applicability according to the Bank’s

system, laws and regulations.
Having financial derivatives that mitigate market risks.
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BANK OF JORDAN

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Rescheduled Loans

These represent loans classificd previously as aon-perfonning, removed from non-performing eredit facilities aceording to proper scheduling, and reclassified as debts under watch list,

total rescheduled loans amounted to JD 8,069,952 as of December 31, 2020 (JD 7,276,037 as of December 31, 2019).
This balanee represents the rescheduled loans cither classified as watch list or returned to performing loans,

2. Restructured Loaos

Restructuring means to rearrange facilitics installments by increasing their duration, pestponing some installments or increasing their grace period, and classifying them as debts under
watch list. Tetal restructured loans amounted to JD 74,075,951 as of December 31, 2020 (JD 40,564,788 as of December 31, 2015},

3. Bondls, Debentures and Treasury Bills

The schedule below shows the distribution of boads, debentures and bills according to the international agencies’ classification:

Included within financiak

assets at faiv value through Within Financial Assets
Rating Grade Rating Agency Classifiention ocCI at Amortized Cost Total
JD JD JD
Forcign Bank Bonds Moody's A2 - 3,547,795 3,547,795
Foreign Bank Bonds Maody's A3 - 7,860,374 7,860,374
Foreign Bank Bonds Moody's Aad - 724,151 724,151
Foreign Cerporate Bonds Moody's Ba3 - 11,045,616 11,045,616
Foreign Government Bends Maoody's Ba3 18,129,573 2,128,831 20,258,404
Jordanian Government Bonds Moody's Bl - 202,096,620 202,096,620
Jordanian Govermment Bills Meody's Bl - 17,546,472 17,546,472
Foreign Government Bonds Moody's Bl - 7.405,937 7,405,937
Foreign Bank Bonds Moody's B2 7,214,800 7,112,626 14,427,516
Foreigt Govermment Bonds Moody's B2 - 22,317,679 22,317,679
Unrated Bonds - 467,368,739 67,368,730
Total 25,344,463 349,154,840 374,499,203
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BANK OF JORDAN
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
AMMAN — JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
43/b Market Risks:
Qualitative Disclosure:
These risks arise from the fluctuations in the fair values or the future cash flows of financial
instruments due to the changes in market prices such as (interest rate, currency exchange rate, and
shares prices). Moreover, market risks arise from the existence of open positions in interest rates,
currency exchange rates, and investments in shares. These risks are monitored according to specific

policies and procedures through special committees and associated work centres and include the
following:

Interest rate risks.
Currency exchange rate risks.
Fiuctuation in share prices risks.

Market risks: are the risks of exposure of the positions on and off the Bank’s Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position to losses as a result of price fluctuations in the market, This includes the risks
arising from the volatility of interest rates and stock prices of investment portfolios, both for the
purpose of trading or exchange.

Market risks arise from;

Changes that may occur in the political and economic conditions in markets.

Fluctuations in interest rates.

Fluctuations in the prices of financial instruments held for future buying and selling.

Foreign currency fluctuations.
Gaps in maturities of assets and liabilities and interest rate re-pricing,

Creation of uncovered positions.

Interest Rate Risks

Interest rate risks arise from the probable impact of changes in interest rates on the value of other
financial assets. The Bank is exposed to the risk of interest rates due to a mismatch or a gap in the
amounts of assets and liabilities, according to the various time limits or review of interest rates in a
certain period. Moreover, the Bank manages these risks through reviewing the interest rates on
assets and liabilities based on the risk management strategy undertaken by the Asset and Liability
Management Committee. The Bank follows a policy of hedging all financial assets and financial
liabilities whenever the need arises. Hedging is against anticipated future risks.

The Bank has developed analysis scenarios to measure the sensitivity of interest rate risk in addition
to providing a system for controlling the difference in the history of re-pricing. This ensures control,
reduces risk, and takes into account acceptable risk and balancing maturities of assets with
liabilities, as well as the gaps and benefits of hedging their prices.

Foreign Currency Risks
Foreign currency risks are the risks arising from changes in the values of financial instruments as a

result of fluctuations in the prices of foreign currencies, the bank is using a good policy to manage
its foreign currency positions.
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BANK OF JORDAN
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Bank’s investment policy includes a set of controls that limit this type of risk monitored by a
market risk unit such as follows:

Exceeding limits is not allowed, and any currency excess is settled immediately.
Any dealer should close the position immediately when the loss reaches the allowed maximum limit,

The Treasury and Investment Department analyses and controls open positions daily. It closes the
positions in case of excesses of ceiling, loss limits or heightened risks due to market fluctuations.

The following is the net foreign currency positions at the Bank:

December 31,
Currency Type 2020 2019
Jb JD

UsD 9,602,601 14,157,575
GBP (463,644} 123,954
Euro 953,644 71,089
JPY 4417 3,282
Other currencies (36,530,118) (40,647,534)

(26.,433,100) (26,291,634)

Share Prices Risks
Share prices risks result from the changes in the fair values of investments in shares. The Bank
manages these risks through diversifying investments across various geographical areas and

economic sectors. Most of the shares investments held by the Bank are listed in Amman Stock
Exchange,

Markets Risk Management

The Bank follows financial and investment policies for risk management within a specified strategy.
Moreover, the Bank has an Asset and Liability Management Committee that supervises, and
controls risks and performs the optimal strategic distribution of assets and liabilities both on and off
the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. Moreover, a market risk unit was established,

staffed with qualified human resources, and equipped with electronic systems. These risk
management procedures include the following:

Preparation and implementation of an investment policy approved by the Board of Directors and the
Central Bank of Jordan.

Preparation and application of a market risk management policy approved by the Board of Directors
including the criteria for the definition, measurement, and monitoring of this type of risk.

Implementation of (Reuters) Application to monitor continuity risk in the global capital market, cash
markets and currency exchange.

Preparation of a mechanism for management of ceilings of local and foreign investments,
Development of market risk measurement, management, and monitoring tools through:

Value at risk (VAR).
Basis point analysis,
Stress testing.

Defining stop loss limit.

Preparation of investment concentration reports (geographical distribution, economic sector,
currency, tool, etc.).

Controlling investment ceilings.

Controlling investment operations (based on financial positions, local and international stocks and
bonds).

Preparation of periodic reports, to be presented to the Investment Committee and Risk Management
Committee /Board of Directors.
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BANK OF JORDAN

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Quantitative Disclosures;

100

. Interest Rate Risks
December 31, 2020
Sensitivity of Interest
Revenue Analysis Sensitivity of
Currency Increase in Interest Rate (%) {Profits and Losses) Equity
D D
UsDh 2% 192,052
GBP 2% (9,273)
Euro 2% 19,073
IPY 2% 88
Other Currencies 2% (730,602)
Sensitivity of Interest
Revenue Analysis Sensitivity of
Currency Decrease in Interest Rate (%) (Profits and Losses) Equity Analysis
D D
USD 2% (192,52)
GBP 2% 9,273
Euro 2% (19,073)
IPY 2% (88)
Other Currencies 2% 730,602
December 31, 2019
Sensitivity of Interest
Revenue Analysis Sensitivity of
Currency Increase in Interest Rate (%) {Profits and Losses) Equity
JD D
USD 2% 283,152
GBP 2% 2,479
Euro 2% 1,422
JPY 2% 66
Other Currencies 2% (812,951)
Sensitivity of Interest
Revenue Analysis Sensitivity of
Currency Decrease in Interest Rate (%) (Profits and Losses) Equity Analysis
b D
uUsD 2% (283,152)
GBP 2% (2,479
Euro 2% (1,422
JPY 2% (66)
Other Currencies 2% 812,951



BANK OF JORDAN

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LYMITED COMPANY)

AMMAN — JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Foreign Currency Risks

December 31, 2020
Increase in Currency Effect on Profits
Currency Exchange Rate (%) or Losses Effect on Equity
D D
UsD 5% 480,130 -
GBP 5% (23,182) -
Euro 5% 47,682 -
PY 5% 221 -
Other Currencies 5% {1,826,506) -
December 31, 2019
Increase in Currency Effect on Profits
Currency Exchange Rate (%) or Losses Effect on Equity
D D
Ush 3% 707,879 -
GBP 3% 6,198 -
Euro 5% 3,554 -
IPY 5% 164 -
Other Currencies 5% (2,032,377) -
3. Fluctuation in Share Prices Risks
December 31, 2020
Increase in Effect on Profits
Indicator Index or Losses Effect on Equity
D ID
Amman Stock Exchange 5% 1,644 229,381
Palestine Stock Exchange 5% - 270,589
December 31, 2019
Increase in Effect on Profits
Indicator Index or Losses Effect on Equity
D JD
Amman Stock Exchange 5% 25,636 2,260,706
Palestine Stock Exchange 5% - 279,004
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BANK OF JORDAN

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

AMMAN ~ JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Concentration of Fareign Currency Risk

December 31, 2020

Currency USD GBP Euro JPY Other Total
Ttem Jb JD JD JI» JD JD
Assets:
Cash and balances with Central Banks 65,276,656 953,272 28,572,052 137 42,550,333 137,352,450
Balances with banks and linancial institutions 141,603,856 9,330,508 1,674,059 35,640 23,604,060 176,248,123
Financial assets through comprehensive income 27615278 - - - 48,130 27,663,408
Direct credit facilities at amortized cost 220,549,675 669,152 13,953,486 - 160,610,059 395,782,372
Financial assets {at amortized cost and at fair value and associates) 1£8,014,184 - 4,083,910 - 689,266 122,787,360
Other assels 4,007.714 1,645 232,793 45 8,917,246 13,159,443
Total assets 577,067,363 10,954,577 48,516,300 35,522 236,419,094 872,993,156
Liabilities:
Banks and financial institutions” deposits 4,402,362 199 398,828 - 3,650,876 8,652,265
Customers’ deposiis 442 626,642 11,319,543 44,699,595 31,405 206,876,398 705,553,583
Cash marging 26,183,512 74,365 2,257,700 - 8,114,823 36,630,400
Other liabilities 94,252 246 24,114 6,533 - 54,307,115 148,590,008
Total Liabilitics 567,464,762 11,418,221 47,562,656 31,405 272,949,212 899,426,256
Net concentration in the consolidated statement of financial pesition for the year 2020 9,602,601 (463,644) 953,644 4417 (36,530,118) (26,433,100)
Commitments and contingent liabilities off balance sheet for the year 2020 75,607,462 - 8,335,657 420,719 5,746,200 90,110,038

December 31, 2019

Currency USD GBP Euro JPY Other Total
Fem JD JD JD JD Jb JD
Total Assels 641,617,925 7,891,752 23,379,821 71,714 210,668,560 883,629,772
Total Liabilities 627,460,350 7,767,798 23,308,732 638,432 251,316,094 909,921,406
Net concentration in the consolidated statement of {inancial position for the year 2019 14,157,575 123,954 71,089 3,282 (40,647,534) (26,291,634)
Commitments and contingent liabilities off Balance Sheet for the vear 2019 94,463,700 192,385 9,086,043 2,529.925 6,857,695 113,129,748

-102-



S g0l

ST0°LOI*0ZF (z8Z'1cp'619) 96S'€88'E6T LES'LOT'E6S (6LL'985'8) (6£6'685°1) 068'652'0L 966'FOETEL
10566 L87°T 0L9°L86°690°( SET'SHL'05T £6S°LT0° T 189°8PS'60T PFPSEPIT T6T'L66'TOT 988" TIE0IE
9TS T0I'80L'T 88E'955*05H PER'BPYIPS 0E1'S6TYIL T06° 196091 T05'p9L'TTT 8BELST'TLY 8S'LIYTHY
SO LOF 9P (LLP*SSELTE) (g1£'c99'se) F61'8IT"C6 L PE6'ST POV LLY bR SI0'GPS'PEY PrProcetLGT
6E6'900°05E°T 97R'S6H'8SE P09 TIS EEE 9EOET'DIE SES'OBL'FOT SSO00TPIE £60°600°ES 098'198'1L5
TP TTH O LIV TTH O - - - - - -
9b6'sh 996'sY - - - - - -
9ZE'T8CFY €8¢°3Z1°ct £r8 156 PEEIST6T 6T6'1SHY FECe98 £00°¢09°L E3S A
998'188'61 998°188'61 - - - - - -
051208 0S1'Z0%'s - - - - - -
60E618°611 IELLIE LY CIETI0 FSC'LRY 0E9°LLE'S 1L9TIS PRO'SET 9ZE'9¢9'19
9.5 2816061 64984 T0L B058SI°CTE 1€1'€5T7'65T 9L6'95TTH! 0sHPIETI 900°061°0F 9L8'650'E0E
POETILOL LBF'SH6'G - L9%'LEG'DS - - 000°196°C 000'816'9
BLEEIHTILT GrEOPT'IES 9rE 658" L8L 008'8PT" 60T ISTIEL0TT GLI'BLY'ES] BII'Re5'SES POE'R61°699
FrI'9L0'S8 PFI'9L0'CS - - - - - -
66£°808'1T 66E'R08'1T - - - - - -
S EL8'9 SPP'TLR'D - - - - - -
P6S C66'CS PGS E66'ES - - - - - -
696 FSH REE - 6ES°LIT I 0LO'TOV'LYT $96'L95°C1 Ire'zogot S16'E90'8s 6£9'000'0
860°6EL9IH L - FrET99'00 SSEPRTEL LST'E91'S0T 28T 15°LE 80Z0L6'915 61ILSIETY
TEH'ERY'66 686°8EEL £9t'PeisT - - - - -
LS LPT'08T LPECIH0S - 70519688 - €66'C9S €66'E9S 886'FPL6E1
686'LES 6HE 164'££9'8¢€T 000°5£9°01 - - - - 865597001
ar ar ar ar ar ar ar ar
jmo], s18a1au] SN SATIA IEIR 1O} SIJIUOIA SIBUOTAI WIUOTA
INOYHAL SWID)[ £ UBIJ DI04 €0) 1 woly S$UILOYA] O 0L 0} ¢ oL £ 01 1 woxy { uweyy ssa]

degy Buna f-03 1509)u]
SRR oL

$1A88Y [e30],

GI0Z T3 X

duny Burorad-ay 1sa00uf

sapiqel] 0L

SINIqEl SO

satfIqel xel pala]

SPURY pomoLIog

uoisiaozd xey awoou]

suoisiaoxd Arpung

suifanw yse)

sisodap si2woisn)

s)1sodap ,SUOHMNSUI [EIOUEUY PUB syuLy

SSTIEr |

SIOSSY ()0},

SHISSE 19410

S)2SST X1 PaLaja(]

sjosse ajqiiueuy

1AN ~ wawdinba pue Apadosg

1503 PIZIUOWIE JB SISST [RIOUBLLL]

150D POZILGWIE 18 SANIIESE] HP2ID 10311

an[eA IIT) JE SIOSSE [2oUulL]
SZONMIISUT [BISUBUY pue syueq giiam 1sodap pue saouepeg

syueg [2NUB) YA SOOUL|EY PUE YSTD)
51055y

0THT T2

Alumyew Io furonid-21 15919101 Jo Spoiad U0 paskq St UOIEONISSE[)

By DUIIIId-ay J5013)Uf

SENFWILVLS TVIONVNIM QELVAITOSNOD HILL OL SILON

NVJHOr - NVIAINY
(ANVJWNOD GALIAYT ONIAFOHITU VIS DN}
NYAHOr 40 NV



- FOE-

(Araneur pa3dadxs 0) SmMproddy) 51955V [0,
sonmqeg [ejog,

SanIqel 2O

SSIqel; Xe) paLjad

uorsiaoxd X a10auy

suotsiaoid Aipung

spunj paasonog

sulglew ysey)

susodap  s1awoisn))

sis0dap SUGTITHISUL [RIDUBUL) PUE SHUBE]
FnIqery

6107 "[§ 2quIDag

(AumE paadxa o) BUIpI0RIY) SISSY [I0F,
sanIqesy 1e30.L

SILN[IGEN 20

sanilqel] Xel patarag

uosiaoad xe) auroou]

suoisiaosd A1ptng

SpUry pmoLIog

surfaew yseo

snsadap ,SIowWoIsn)

spsodop | SEONMNSUL [BIOUBUL) pUE SYULE

0THT "Ie 1quiaag

9TS'ISI'B0L'T G6II'LLE'90T £69°058°09Y 19F°60D°L8L £TO6'POY'LIT SOE'8POTET 0P T0LPLI T9°658 L9
105666 LBT Y LLOS6T6E TEPED0°G05 TOC' IO 198 995" DE0LYE FRITOLOSLT SoF0TeTI SLPPRTOEY
£08°C6T 1+ TO8'Z0I° 1€ - P03°6SL $6.°8E6°1 60TPIT'T 161°428°C £00'1#9'T
$90'180°c SOO°I80E - - - - -
$68°C08°cT - - - 86€° 1256 08L'09L°F - LESTITS'6
LIZ' 110 NTe's - - - - - -
126°£99"¢T - 195°518°8 6TI6TL'G LOE'TLL'E FS0'tF9 9T ISE SPSiSTT
1Z26°€65°0Z1 - L88°97L°TE SSEFOL'ET ARt Al €1£°9T0°s T PIOGOL Y
LOT'860°6 16" - ¥86°06t" €91 LOT'SEF" 00 c0L'eeF6 1L 8T8 0TH'TST 8EL'$THPTI $P908L°TSE
BLEPFT'IS] - - LO8LEG'0TL - G00°000"0¢ - 11L90£'0T
ar ar ar ar ar ar ar dar
0L, AEmE SIIA € sTEK 162K SHUOIA SIRUOI V0L | HTGHAL
INOHIAL IIAQ £ 03 [ Woaf [ 03 SHIUOYA] O WIGL] 0 0} € WOTf € 01 [ Woay
LR EIFTILE 068°LSET8I 997°€5S TS S86°9F0" 699 016°TTL'Ob] 0LS'6TE'881 I HELH 996'867°L.08
GEGO00°0STT 6I0°TPL'EG STO°SRISr9 990°991°Z5¢ STR681'8TE AT 3 Fa TS| I89°ESH'PTY 1TE'8SL LS
TIVETror LH'SET'LT LOB'8ES'] 0TS"L0L SFTHER'T PLE'LIT'E 0817622 T00'TIF'E
9k6'8t 956'31 - - - - - -
998° 18861 1P9'ESL - - LES'SET'L 96L°0L6° 1 000°0LF' 1 TOLIES'E
051°T0E°S 061°20¢°¢ - - - - - -
9TE'TIS Y - 1¥502L'E CTHESEHS 06£°166%1 1 095 E9T Y $S6°TTTOL 8CPIET
60618611 - 12572 LET'LLYT 6EET18L"8 1E€%16 LF9'EST #T£'896'301
QLS LBIB06'T FE°CECGE 951°¢85°TH9 608°069°F¥T 10Z°550p0E FSE'OPE'9E 0EG'6FT'LOI SPL'9GY PEE
PeEEoL’oL L8F'SHE'G - L98'LE6'0S - - 000°196'T 000°816°9
ar ar ar ar ar ar ar ar
o], %umhﬂung SIEDX § m.:h.u\r .:5> SPuoA SUGTA IO T URPTAA
INOIPRIAY MO €03 [ woely[ 1 6} SYIUOA O WioLy 90} € Woay €0) | wodg
ISIUSUNEBIS

ODUBNL PAIEPIOSUOS JO S1Ep Y] 1T SeNINICH [ENoEii00 10) polad SUTHEER 5ijj U0 SAT{qu (PAIuR0oSIPUn) at] SSZ1IEUNns o[qey STYT 1I5aL,]

SR ABPIIDY ]

SINTIWIALYLS "TYIDNVNIY AHLVAITOSNOD HHL OL SILON

NVIHOI - NVININY

(ANVIINOD QALINFE ONIQTOHARVHS DI1901d)

NVGHOTL d0 NV



BANK OF JORDAN

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

AMDMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Second: this table summarizes the financial derivatives maturities on the remaining period of contractual maturity from the date of the consolidated financial statements.

Financial derivatives/liabilities which have been totally reconciled inciude:

Trading Derivatives
Currency Derivatives:
QOutflow

Inflow

Total

Items off-consolidated statement of financial pesition:

Letters of credit and acceptances

Un-utilized balances
Letters of guarantee
Operational lease contracts

Capital commitments

Total

Letters of credit and acceptances
Un-utilized balances

Letters of guarantee
Operational lease contracts

Capital commitments
Total

- 105 -

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2089
from 3 Months to from 3 Mouths to
Up to 3 Months One Year Total Up to 3 Months One Year Total
JD JD JD 4D Jb JD
(15,056,025} (1,001,190) (16,057,213) (3,704,431} (2,215,154) (5,919,583)
4,809,032 1,009,927 15,818,939 3,729,732 2,228,114 5,957,846
(246,993) 8,737 (238,254) 25,301 12,960 38,261
As of December 2028
Up to I Year 1to 5 Years Over 5 Years Total
JD JD JD JD
70,935,900 - - 70,935,900
285,565,713 - - 285,565,713
111,150,378 §92,532 “ 112,042 910
2,081,138 7,652,316 3,789,969 15,523,423
[,125,912 - - 1,125,912
470,859,041 #,544,848 5,789,969 485,193,858
As of December 2019
Up to I Year 1to5 Years Over 5 Years Total
D JD JD JD
88,563,350 - - 88,563,350
438,399,546 - - 458,399,546
114,370,472 42,540 - 114,413,012
2,535,281 7,393,887 4,815,212 14,744,380
3,417,296 - - 3,417,296
667,285,945 7,436,427 4,815,212 679,537,584
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BANK OF JORDAN

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

AMMAN — JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45. Analvsis of Assets and Liabilities Maturities:

The following table provides analysis of assets and liabilities according to the expected period of its

recovery or settlement;

Assets
Cash and balances with Central Banks

Balances with banks and financial institutions
Deposits with banks and financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
comprehensive income

Direct credit facilities at amortized cost
Financial assets at amortized cost
Property and equipment — Net
Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Other Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities

Banks and financial institutions’ deposits
Customers’ deposits

Cash margins

Other provisions

Income tax provision

Borrowed funds

Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities

Total Liabilities
Net

December 31, 2020
Up to1 Year Over 1 Year Total
JD JD JD
338,902,989 10,635,000 349,537,989
190,722,330 - 190,722,330
563,995 88,961,572 89,525,567
15,157,042 - 15,157,042
- 34,526,410 84,526,410
706,401,800 760,337,298 1,466,739,098
60,235,360 288,219,609 348,454,969
- 53,993,594 53,993,594
- 6,872,445 6,872,445
- 21,808,399 21,808,399
11,629,371 73,446,773 85,076,144
1,323,612,887 1,388,801,100 2,712,413 987
9,879,000 60,883,354 70,762,354
972,358,227 936,829,349 1,909,187.576
118,119,641 1,699,668 119,819,309
- 5,302,150 5,302,150
18,128,225 1,753,641 19,881,866
26,709,362 57,872,964 84,582,326
- 48,946 48,946
10,720,374 29,702,038 40,422.412
1,155,914,829 1,094,092,110  2,250,006,939
167,698,058 294,708,990 462,407,048
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BANK OF JORDAN

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

AMMAN — JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Analysis of Assets and Liabilities Maturities:

The following table provides analysis of assets and liabilities according to the expected period of its

recovery or settlement:

Assets

Cash and balances with Central Banks
Balances with banks and financial institutions
Deposits with banks and financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through
comprehensive income

Direct credit facilities at amortized cost
Financial assets at amortized cost

Property and equipment — Net

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Other Assets

Total Assets
Liabilities

Banks and financial institutions” deposits
Customers' deposits

Cash margins

Financial derivatives

Other provisions

Income tax provision

Borrowed funds

Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities

Total Liabilities
Net

December 31, 2019
Up to 1 Year Over 1 Year Total

JD JD JD
384,396,176 - 384,396,176
188,323,327 “ 188,323,327
38,056,946 170,066,819 208,123,765
628,716 - 628,716
- 80,865,636 80,865,636
572,966,810 836,558,627 1,409,525 437
56,968,956 215,566,843 272,535,799
- 52,802,587 52,802,587
- 5,986,282 5,986,282
- 22,804,298 22,804,298
7,340,299 74,769,204 82,109,503
1,248,681,230 1,459,420,296 2,708,101,526
30,306,711 120,937,867 151,244,578
1,049,113.916 869,984,191 1,919,098,107
64,162,679 56,431,242 120,593,921
- 5,011,211 5,011,211
23,803,895 - 23,803,895
5,003,231 18,574,650 23,667,921
- 3,081,065 3,081,065
9,631,198 31,862,605 41,493,803
1,182,111,630 1,105,882.871 2,287.994,501
66,569,600 353,537,425 420,107,025

109



BANK OF JORDAN

{PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Some financial assets and lisbilities of the Bank are evaluated at fiir valuc at the end of each fiscal period, the following table shows the information about how to determine the fair value of these financial assets and labilitics
{cvaluation methods and inpets used),

Fair Value

Fair Value and the

December 31, December JE, The Levef of Fair Evatuation Method and Important Intangible Important
Financial Assets/Financial Liabilities 2020 2019 Value Enputs Used Inputs Intangible Inputs
i3] i3]
Finaneial Astets at Fair Value
Financial Assets af Fair Value Through Income Statement
Stated Rates in financial
Shares that have an available market price 12883 512,720 Level One markets Docs Not Apply Does Not Apply
Financial Statements issued

Shares that do not have an available market price 124,158 115,996 Level Two by companics Does Not Apply Docs Not Apply
Receive rights at Fair value 15,000,000 . Level One Dctermined price Daes Mot Apply Does Not Apply
Totat 13,157,041 §28,716

Financial Assets at Fair Value tirough Comprehensive Income

Stated Rates in financial
Shares that have available market price 9,999,353 50,794,195 Level Gne markets Does Not Apply Daes Not Apply

Financial Statements issead
by companics or observable

Shares that do not have available market price 49,182,554 4,161,453 Level Two market input Does Nat Apply Does Not Apply
Total 59181947 54955648

Stated Rates in financiai
Bonds that have available markst price 25344463 25.909.938 Level Gne markets Does Not Apply Doss Not Apply
Tetal 25344463 25,909,938

Staled Rates in financial
Asscis Foreclosed by Bank -

- Level One markets Does Not Apply Docs Not Apply
Stated Raies in Bnancial
Forward contracts forgign currency - 38,261 Level One markets Dees Not Apply Does Not Apply
Total Financial Assets at Fair Value 90,683,452 $1,532,613

Financizl Liabilities at Faly Valoe:

Stated Rates in financial
- Level One markets Daes Not Apply Does Mot Apply
‘Total 238,254 -

Forward contracts foreign currency 238234

There were no transfers benveen level 1and leve! 2 during the year of 2020

Except as detailed in the table below, we believe that the carrying amount of financial assets and Fabilitics shown in the conselidated financial of the Bank approximate their fair value, because the Bank management
belizves that the carrying value of the items is equivalent to the fair value, and his is due 1o elther its short-term maturity or having interest rates that have been repriced during the year,

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 The Level of
Book Yalue Fair Yalue Book Value Falr Value Fair Valup
n D n i) D

Financial Assets of Nen-Specilied Fair Valiee
Balances at central banks 283,107,443 283,121,142 312,229,050 212,241,852 Level Two
Balances at banks and financial institulions 190,726,236 100,748,749 188,326,285 188 476,380 Level Two
Deposits at banks and financial institutions 89,564,000 90,818,151 208,249,314 213,803,299 Level Two
Loans, bills and other 1,465,186407 1,469,103,909 1,364, 163,670 1,367,341,050 Level Two
Financial assets at amortized cost 349,154,840 353,782,663 27273440 276,726,076 Level Two
Total Finznciak Assets of non-specified Fair Value 2,377,738.927 2387,574,614 2.345,702,780 2,358,588,657
Figiancial Liabiities of Non-Specified Fair Value
Deposits at banks and financial instinutions 70,762,354 70,906,640 151,244,578 152,150,581 Level Two
Customers' deposits 1,909,187 576 1,914,526,143 1,919,098,107 1,928,585,706 Level Two
Cash insurance 119.819.309 116.821.325 120.593.921 120.598.195 Level Two
Tota) Financial Liabikities of Non-Specified Fair Value 2000769219 2.105,254,108 2,100,936,606 2,201,334,152

The Eair value for the Enancial asscts and liabilities that are in level 2 and level 3 swere determined in accordance to agreed pricing modcls, which reflect the credit risk of the parties dealing with it

isclased
December 31, 2029 Deeember 31,2019 The Level of
Book Vaiue Fair Value Book Value Fair Value Fair Value
i JD D D iD
Other assets 68.067.303 114485914 64.202.177 110.857.621 Level Two
68,067,305 F14,485,914 64,202,177 110,857,621
‘The above items set cut the fair value of non-financial assets that are & ined on the basis of prices of similar instruments in an inactive market.
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BANK OF JORDAN
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LEIMITED COMPANY)
AMMAN — JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Capital Management

Capital Components:

Paid-Up Capital:

The paid-up capital of Bank of Jordan consists of (200/1) million ordinary shares at a nominal value
of JD 1 per share. The Bank maintains capital, statutory reserves, and retained earnings to meet the
growth in its operations and the requirements of local and regional expansion.

Regulatory Capital:
Regulatory capital is considered a control tool according to the requirements of regulatory authorities
and Basel (IIT) for the purposes of achieving control over the adequacy of capital and the ratio of

regulatory capital to risky and weighted assets and market risk. Regulatory capital according to Basel
(I1I) consists of:

Ordinary shares, retained earnings, accumulated comprehensive income items, declared reserves,
minority interest and profit after tax and expected distributions and regulatory adjustments.

Regulatory Authorities” Requirements:

The regulatory authorities’ instructions entail that the minimum capital shall be JD 100 million.
Moreover, banks have been requested to increase their capital adequacy ratio to not be less than
14.5% according to the Central Bank of Jordan instructions, and the ratio of owners’ equity to total
assets financial leverage ratios must not be less than 4%.

Achieving the Objectives of Capital Management:

The Bank’s management aims at achieving the capital management objectives through developing
(enhancing) the Bank's activities, achieving a surplus in operating profits and revenues, and optimally
investing available funds. All of this is geared towards reaching the targeted growth in owners’ equity,
reflected in the increase in the reserves and retained eaming

The regulatory capital adequacy ratios according to the standard approach are as follows:

In Thousands In Thousands
Primary Capital Items for Ordinary Shareholders (CET 1): of JD 2020 of JD 2019
Paid-up capital 200,000 200,000
Statutory reserve 99,191 94,066
Voluntary reserve 47 134
Other reserves 5,850 5,850
Fair value reserve (6,092) 24,954
Retained earnings 140,561 95,285
Non-controlling interest in the capital of subsidiaries 3,236 3,432
Less: Regulatory capital adjustments {41,536) {41,059
Total Primary Capital Ordinary Shareholder (CET 1) 401,257 382,662
Additional Capital Items
Stage one provision balance against debt instruments not
exceeding 1.25 % of the total risk weighted assets 7405 9,870
General banking risk reserve 2,804 2,196
Total additional capital 10,209 12,066
Total regulatory capital 411,466 398,728
Total risk weighted assets 2,156,718 2,155,969
Capital adequacy ratio (%) 19,08% 18,31%
Primary capital for ordinary shareholders (CET 1)% 18,60% 17,75%
Capital adequacy Tier 1 (%) 18,60% 17,75%
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BANK OF JORDAN
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
AMMAN — JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
a.  Contingent Liabilities:

2020 2019
JD JD

Letters of credit includes: 52,308,450 69,214,211
Acceptances 18,627,450 19,349,139
Letters of guarantee:

Payment 35,257,524 36,787,251
Performance 46,805,604 51,317,006
Other 29,979,782 26,308,755
Un-utilized direct and indirect credit facilities limits 285,565,713 458,399 546
Total 468,544,523 661,375,908

Expected credit loss provision based on IFRS (9) requirements on the off — balance sheet items

(unfunded) amounted to JD 8,845,153 for the year ended December 31, 2020 (JD 10,206,853 as of
December 31, 2019).

b. Contractual Obligations:

2020 2019
JD JD
Contracts for purchasing of property and equipment* 1,125,912 3,417,296
Contracts for operating and financing lease™* 15,523,423 14,744 380
Total 16,649,335 18,161,676
* These commitments mature in less than | year.
s

These commitments mature between 1 year to 10 years,

C. __Lawsuits against the Bank

The Bank is a defendant in lawsuits demanding cancellation of the Bank’s claims against others,
lifting of real estate mortgages, compensation for damages, and non-cashing of cheques. These
lawsuits amounted to JD 7,910,297 as of December 31, 2020 (JD 19,113,597 for prior year). In the
opinion of the management and legal counsel, no material financial liability is likely to be incurred
as a result of these lawsuits in excess of provision recorded which amounted to JD 832,435 as of
December 31, 2020 (JD 863,478 prior year). However, amounts that will probably be paid by the
Bank as a result of dismissal or amicable settlement of these lawsuits will be taken to the
consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss or against the recorded provision when paid.

49. Comparative Fioures

Some comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year classification, this
amendment did not have any impact on the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year ended and as of December 31, 2019.
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